
 
 
 

June 9, 2025 Committee of the Whole Meeting – 6:30 p.m. 
 
 

 

 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
The following order of business may be changed by majority vote of the Board at any meeting.     

 

 
Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices    ⚫    24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan 48036 

 
 

   * Indicates Board Action Needed   ** Indicates Roll Call Vote Needed 

A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call, Voting Meeting 

B. Human Resources Office – Elementary Principal Recommendations 

1. *Higgins Principal – Employment Recommendation 
2. *Tenniswood Principal – Employment Recommendation 

C. Hearing of School District Patrons 
Please note: The Board will provide 30 minutes for public comment and speakers will be asked to limit their comments to 5 minutes.  If you did not 

have a chance to speak, the Board will provide additional time at the end of the meeting for public comment. 
 

D. Superintendent’s Report 

1. District Update 
2. Bond update 
3. Department Updates 

E. Curriculum and Instruction Office 

1. Student Travel Requests 
2. Michigan High School Athletic Association (MHSAA) Resolution 

F. Business Office  

1. Consent Agenda Items 

• Budget Report 

• Payment Registers 

• Purchases (None this month) 

• Summary of Investments & Wire/ACH Transfers 
2. Truth-in-Budget Hearing 
3. Recommendation to Accept the Amended Budget 
4. Recommendation to Accept the Budget 
5. Recommendation for District’s Annual Renewal for Insurance with M.A.I.S.L. 
6. Recommendation for Workers Compensation Insurance 
7. Amended Resolution to Add Middle School East as a Voting Precinct 
8. *Barton Malow Construction Manager Agreement 

G. Human Resources Office 

1. Employment Recommendations 
2. *Layoff Resolution 
3. *Non-Affiliated Contracts 
4. *Non-Affiliated Furlough Days Resolution 

H. Other Matters 

1. *Amendment to Superintendent Employment Contract 
2. Letter to Prosecutor 
3. Gap in Governance – Second Reading of Board Policy Recommendation 

I. Hearing of School District Patrons Follow-up 

J. Board Member Comment 

K. **Closed Session - Motion to enter closed session under section 8(1)(c) of the Open Meetings Act for 
strategy and negotiation sessions connected with the negotiation of a collective bargaining agreement. 

L. *Adjournment  



Keith Howell 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

Michael W. Van Camp 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

Anita Dzieszkowski 
SUPERVISOR FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6311 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Al Doss Sharon Ross John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER 

AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Initiator:  Mike Van Camp 

  

Board Meeting: June 9, 2025 

 

Agenda Item:  Employment Recommendations 

  

Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 

Informational Material 

 Other_______________________ 

 

 

Background:   

 

The Higgins Elementary Principal vacancy was posted alongside the Tenniswood Elementary 

Principal vacancy, both internally through our district application website and externally through 

the Michigan Association of Secondary School Principals (MASSP) and the Michigan 

Association of Superintendents & Administrators (MASA). The position was posted for ten 

business days, during which we received 30 applications, 23 from external candidates and 7 from 

internal candidates. After screening the applicants’ qualifications, 8 candidates were selected for 

interviews. 

 

Current Status:   

 

Amanda Melymuka is the recommended candidate for the Higgins Elementary Principal 

position. Amanda brings 14 years of educational leadership experience and a strong dedication to 

supporting the growth and success of students, staff, and families. Amanda joins us from 

Bloomfield Hills Schools, where she served as the Elementary Program Consultant. In that role, 

she worked closely with educators and administrators to strengthen instructional practices, 

promote student-centered learning environments, and support the diverse needs of all learners. 

Amanda holds a Master’s Degree in Early Childhood Education from the Oakland University 

and will be an asset to the students, staff and community at Higgins Elementary. 

 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion:   

 

Administration is recommending that the Board motion to approve the recommendation for Ms. 

Amanda Melymuka as the Principal for Higgins Elementary, and with the Board President’s 

permission, allow her to make a few remarks. 

 

 

MV/jd 
 

 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


Keith Howell 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

Michael W. Van Camp 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

Anita Dzieszkowski 
SUPERVISOR FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6311 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Al Doss Sharon Ross John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER 

AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Initiator:  Mike Van Camp 

  

Board Meeting: June 9, 2025 

 

Agenda Item:  Employment Recommendations 

  

Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 

Informational Material 

 Other_______________________ 

 

 

Background:   

 

The Tenniswood Elementary Principal vacancy was posted alongside the Higgins Elementary 

Principal vacancy, both internally through our district application website and externally through 

the Michigan Association of Secondary School Principals (MASSP) and the Michigan 

Association of Superintendents & Administrators (MASA). The position was posted for ten 

business days, during which we received 30 applications, 23 from external candidates and 7 from 

internal candidates. After screening the applicants’ qualifications, 8 candidates were selected for 

interviews. 

 

Current Status:   

 

Destiny Moore is the recommended candidate for the Tenniswood Elementary Principal position. 

Destiny brings with her four years of educational leadership experience and a strong passion for 

supporting students, staff, and families. Most recently, Destiny served as Assistant Principal with 

National Heritage Academies, where she also took on the role of Interim Principal. She led the 

implementation of a school-wide Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports (PBIS) system 

and focused on cultivating a school culture rooted in collaboration, care, and student success. 

Her leadership has consistently centered on fostering strong relationships and building a positive 

environment where students and staff feel seen, supported, and empowered to grow. Destiny 

holds a Master’s Degree in Education Technology from Michigan State University and will be an 

asset to the students, staff and community at Tenniswood Elementary. 

 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion:   

 

Administration is recommending that the Board motion to approve the recommendation for Ms. 

Destiny Moore as the Principal for Tenniswood Elementary, and with the Board President’s 

permission, allow her to make a few remarks. 

 

 

MV/jd 

 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
Adam Lipski Al Doss Sharon Ross John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY  TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or 
marital status in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, 
L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries 
related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT 

 
  

Lisa E. Montpas 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 
 
 

Kimberly Rawski 
DIRECTOR FOR 

SECONDARY EDUCATION 
 

Dr. Tony Sedick 
INTERIM DIRECTOR FOR 

ELEMENTARY EDUCATION 
 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300 
586.783.6312 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

 

 

  DEPARTMENT OF CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 
 
 
 

                                                   
   

Initiator:  Lisa Montpas                      
                                 
Board Meeting: June 9, 2025                                                
       
Agenda Item:  Student Travel Requests 
 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
According to Board Policy Article VIII, Section 19 Field Trips and Other District Sponsored Trips “Board 
approval is required for field trips and other District-sponsored trips which are planned to take students 
out of the United States or overnight.” 
 
Current Status: 
The following student travel requests have been received for approval.  These student travel trips are 
educational trips, aligned to curriculum, chaperoned and organized by School Personnel: 
 

1. Student travel is requested for 110 L’Anse Creuse High School North Band Students to travel to Echo 
Grove Camp in Leonard, Michigan on August 10, 2025 and return on August 15, 2025.  The students will 
be learning their 2025 show.  The trip is requested by Dan Griffith.  There will be 2 staff; D. Griffith and S. 
Oranchuk and 25 parents to chaperone the trip. 

2. Student travel is requested for 7 Pankow Thespian Students to travel to Michigan Education Theatre 
Association Camp in Marquette, Michigan on July 22, 2025 and return on July 24, 2025.   Students will 
attend a leadership camp.  The trip is requested by Gregory Trzaskoma.  There will be 1 staff; Gregory 
Trzaskoma chaperoning the trip. 

3. Student travel is requested for 30 Middle School East Student Council and NJHS students to travel to 
Washington, D.C. on May 13, 2026 and return on May 15, 2026.  The trip is a leadership event.  The trip is 
requested by Shawn Conger.  There will be 2 staff; S. Conger and H. Budnick and 10 parents to chaperone 
the trip. 

 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments): 
Administration is recommending approval for the above student travel requests at the June 23, 2025 
board meeting. 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
Adam Lipski Al Doss Sharon Ross John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY  TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or 
marital status in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, 
L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries 
related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT 

 
  

Lisa E. Montpas 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 
 
 

Kimberly Rawski 
DIRECTOR FOR 

SECONDARY EDUCATION 
 

Dr. Tony Sedick 
 DIRECTOR FOR 

ELEMENTARY EDUCATION 
 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300 
586.783.6312 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

 

 

  DEPARTMENT OF CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Initiator:  Dr. Major Mickens 
 
Board Meeting: June 9, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Michigan High School Athletic Association Membership Resolution 
  
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
The Michigan High School Athletic Association (MHSAA) membership is renewed on an annual basis 
by school districts for secondary schools.  The association sponsors statewide tournaments and makes 
eligibility rules with respect to participation.   
 
 
Current Status: 
The MHSAA is requesting approval of a resolution for renewal of membership for the 
2025/2026 school year.  
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments): 
Administration will recommend approval of the resolution for renewal of MHSAA 2025/2026 
membership at the June 23, 2025 board meeting. 
 



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT 

  

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE  

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da VIa Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 
 

 

 
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA  
 
Board Meeting: June 9, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Budget Report & Quarterly Budget Update 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
This report provides the Board with a monthly expenditure overview by fund for the 2024-2025 
fiscal year, showing the original total budgeted expenditures, actual expenditures month-to-
date, year-to-date encumbrances, and the remaining balance in each category as of the current 
month. In addition, the Comparative Statement compares current year-to-date revenues and 
expenditures with those of the prior year and displays the current year’s Board-approved 
budget alongside the year-to-date projected budget. 

 
Current Status: 
Attached is the Budget Report as of April 30, 2025. Due to the upcoming audit, the next Quarterly 
Budget Update will cover the period ending September 30, 2025. 

 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration will recommend that 
the Board of Education motion to approve the budget report as presented.  
 
 
KK/jh 
 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


 5/15/25  11.30.49                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  04/30   FISCAL PERIOD 10   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         1

AMEND MAR         ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  5/15/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

11 GENERAL FUND

 111 Elementary Instruction                  28,904,321.00    2,176,044.12   20,067,111.96    6,276,287.54    2,560,921.50    8.85 %
 112 Middle/Jr. High                         14,850,711.00    1,061,563.56   10,300,716.53    3,098,900.31    1,451,094.16    9.77 %
 113 High School                             21,864,196.00    1,941,149.63   15,216,315.25    4,596,915.96    2,050,964.79    9.38 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                    247,829.00             .00      104,837.21             .00      142,991.79   57.69 %
 122 Special Education                       10,672,233.00      831,045.75    7,490,598.85    2,084,855.47    1,096,778.68   10.27 %
 125 Compensatory Education                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                  2,820,615.00      225,783.86    1,900,672.35      532,597.74      387,344.91   13.73 %
 211 Truancy/Absenteeism Serv                   296,324.00       27,314.89      241,779.24       12,382.61       42,162.15   14.22 %
 212 Guidance Services                        2,213,521.00      169,135.15    1,544,803.31      471,758.03      196,959.66    8.89 %
 213 Health Services                            377,731.00       31,666.28      303,428.74       40,824.47       33,477.79    8.86 %
 214 Psychological Services                     956,978.00       72,170.29      636,538.10      215,869.10      104,570.80   10.92 %
 215 Speech/Audiology Services                1,649,862.00      126,030.89    1,118,279.43      386,022.12      145,560.45    8.82 %
 216 Social Work Services                     1,578,709.00      108,425.34    1,004,154.51      342,427.06      232,127.43   14.70 %
 218 Teacher Consultant                         489,315.00       36,506.43      322,307.52      118,428.63       48,578.85    9.92 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                 1,317,660.00       97,356.74      995,262.51       30,277.53      292,119.96   22.16 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                    1,483,707.00       85,208.94      880,931.84      202,246.98      400,528.18   26.99 %
 222 Educational Media Service                1,007,693.00       78,433.51      764,661.34       74,277.52      168,754.14   16.74 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                  1,568,300.00      119,833.33    1,220,392.59      171,316.36      176,591.05   11.26 %
 229 Other Instr Staff Srvices                  123,352.00       12,698.00      101,896.46       14,268.90        7,186.64    5.82 %
 231 Board of Education                         342,140.00       38,307.19      270,525.21        2,534.00       69,080.79   20.19 %
 232 Executive Admin                          1,142,004.00       62,782.86      894,572.25      158,297.52       89,134.23    7.80 %
 241 Office of Principal                      9,132,769.00      782,467.32    7,023,619.59    1,247,577.05      861,572.36    9.43 %
 252 Fiscal Services                          1,671,261.00      137,370.68    1,445,086.44      169,680.29       56,494.27    3.38 %
 257 Internal Services                            3,000.00        3,413.74-         377.30-            .00        3,377.30  112.57 %
 259 Other Business Services                     62,200.00        1,368.64       15,996.27             .00       46,203.73   74.28 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                 12,320,718.00    1,036,591.55    9,419,033.42      404,164.08    2,497,520.50   20.27 %
 266 Security Services                          310,938.00       27,141.30      172,310.86       34,254.22      104,372.92   33.56 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                     6,418,565.00      591,341.92    4,754,577.08      360,685.20    1,303,302.72   20.30 %
 282 Communication Services                     136,943.00        9,680.94      105,385.25       18,179.14       13,378.61    9.76 %
 283 Staff Services                           1,793,464.00      113,777.39    1,324,656.30       99,660.00      369,147.70   20.58 %
 284 Support Services Tech                    2,197,669.00      124,640.50    1,727,303.07      168,984.16      301,381.77   13.71 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                           562,048.00       19,851.49      487,512.89       15,938.61       58,596.50   10.42 %
 299 Other Support Services                            .00        5,179.23        5,179.23             .00        5,179.23-    .00 %

11 GENERAL FUND                    * TOTAL  128,516,776.00   10,147,453.98   91,860,068.30   21,349,610.60   15,307,097.10   11.91 %

12 ATHLETIC FUND

 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                           .00             .00          691.28             .00          691.28-    .00 %
 266 Security Services                           10,000.00             .00          787.98             .00        9,212.02   92.12 %
 293 Athletic Activities                      2,714,640.00      363,481.97    1,889,759.60       84,568.94      740,311.46   27.27 %

12 ATHLETIC FUND                   * TOTAL    2,724,640.00      363,481.97    1,891,238.86       84,568.94      748,832.20   27.48 %

14 STATE GRANT FUND

 111 Elementary Instruction                     970,589.00       66,928.79      502,524.20      180,275.30      287,789.50   29.65 %
 112 Middle/Jr. High                             23,634.00             .00        2,432.22             .00       21,201.78   89.70 %



 5/15/25  11.30.49                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  04/30   FISCAL PERIOD 10   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         2

AMEND MAR         ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  5/15/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 113 High School                                  9,598.00             .00        6,979.53             .00        2,618.47   27.28 %
 118 Pre-school                               1,638,636.00       87,107.63      868,965.90       28,061.16      741,608.94   45.25 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                     31,118.00             .00             .00             .00       31,118.00  100.00 %
 125 Compensatory Education                   4,987,628.00      329,549.90    2,817,346.56      704,579.09    1,465,702.35   29.38 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                     83,100.00             .00             .00             .00       83,100.00  100.00 %
 131 Adult/Cont Ed Basic                        206,897.00       33,982.92      152,563.95       30,216.48       24,116.57   11.65 %
 132 Adult/Cont Ed Secondary                     16,021.00       16,762.72-            .00             .00       16,021.00  100.00 %
 212 Guidance Services                        1,103,632.00       76,413.65      804,458.16      255,557.87       43,615.97    3.95 %
 213 Health Services                            381,144.00       25,516.39      211,633.82       83,909.62       85,600.56   22.45 %
 216 Social Work Services                       615,948.00       44,422.61      412,020.54      146,437.98       57,489.48    9.33 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                      518,578.00       33,526.53      294,230.78      107,767.67      116,579.55   22.48 %
 222 Educational Media Service                   51,312.00        3,921.62       31,249.31       12,836.83        7,225.86   14.08 %
 225 Technology Assisted Inst                    14,946.00       13,592.00       13,690.67             .00        1,255.33    8.39 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                    355,225.00       23,859.69      385,428.16       35,385.78       65,588.94-  18.46-%
 227 Academic Stu Assessment                     19,150.00       26,739.85       28,446.55             .00        9,296.55-  48.54-%
 249 Other School Admin                                .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 252 Fiscal Services                             24,167.00        3,888.08       18,528.42        2,350.29        3,288.29   13.60 %
 257 Internal Services                              840.00             .00             .00             .00          840.00  100.00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                     10,313.00             .00             .00             .00       10,313.00  100.00 %
 266 Security Services                          102,029.00        4,805.20       93,255.65            4.48        8,768.87    8.59 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                        18,875.00          355.00          455.00             .00       18,420.00   97.58 %
 281 Plan, Research & Dev                           952.00             .00             .00             .00          952.00  100.00 %
 282 Communication Services                       4,800.00           73.66        1,953.88             .00        2,846.12   59.29 %
 283 Staff Services                              11,098.00          425.00        1,750.50             .00        9,347.50   84.22 %
 284 Support Services Tech                          700.00             .00          687.00             .00           13.00    1.85 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                           104,362.00        8,196.78       76,866.86        4,224.41       23,270.73   22.29 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                    26,939.00             .00        5,059.72             .00       21,879.28   81.21 %
 331 Community Activities                        10,081.00        4,225.12        6,608.99             .00        3,472.01   34.44 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                     32,960.00             .00       32,960.00             .00             .00     .00 %
 452 Site Improvement Services                   13,000.00             .00        1,953.00        2,800.00        8,247.00   63.43 %
 453 Architectur & Eng Servs                     10,000.00             .00          800.89             .00        9,199.11   91.99 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                    8,670.00             .00             .00             .00        8,670.00  100.00 %

14 STATE GRANT FUND                * TOTAL   11,406,942.00      770,767.70    6,772,850.26    1,594,406.96    3,039,684.78   26.64 %

15 FEDERAL GRANTS

 111 Elementary Instruction                     103,578.00       44,534.63       90,238.47       37,675.87       24,336.34-  23.49-%
 112 Middle/Jr. High                             51,220.00        8,785.64       16,912.09       14,349.50       19,958.41   38.96 %
 113 High School                                       .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 118 Pre-school                                        .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                    269,656.00             .00      105,234.01             .00      164,421.99   60.97 %
 122 Special Education                        2,850,959.00      199,431.62    1,736,230.86      603,950.03      510,778.11   17.91 %
 125 Compensatory Education                   1,051,767.00       52,790.51      461,761.09      146,280.85      443,725.06   42.18 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                     64,795.00        7,023.34       66,225.81           16.86        1,447.67-   2.23-%
 131 Adult/Cont Ed Basic                         87,000.00          105.13       11,963.08-            .00       98,963.08  113.75 %
 132 Adult/Cont Ed Secondary                    110,602.00       23,246.31      157,042.30       55,839.68      102,279.98-  92.47-%
 212 Guidance Services                           40,631.00        2,905.34       26,504.72            5.62       14,120.66   34.75 %
 213 Health Services                                   .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 214 Psychological Services                      64,776.00        2,200.00       47,976.19          800.00       15,999.81   24.70 %
 215 Speech/Audiology Services                    1,150.00             .00          150.00             .00        1,000.00   86.95 %



 5/15/25  11.30.49                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  04/30   FISCAL PERIOD 10   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         3

AMEND MAR         ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  5/15/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 216 Social Work Services                       113,233.00       17,799.91       78,460.25       41,663.55        6,890.80-   6.08-%
 218 Teacher Consultant                         353,589.00       27,081.06      243,527.97       89,231.24       20,829.79    5.89 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                      745,637.00       42,343.10      377,517.28      138,052.37      230,067.35   30.85 %
 222 Educational Media Service                    5,747.00             .00             .00             .00        5,747.00  100.00 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                    163,568.00       12,108.41      107,438.04       39,211.57       16,918.39   10.34 %
 227 Academic Stu Assessment                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 231 Board of Education                           2,000.00             .00             .00             .00        2,000.00  100.00 %
 232 Executive Admin                                   .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 241 Office of Principal                               .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 252 Fiscal Services                                   .00             .00             .02-            .00             .02     .00 %
 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 266 Security Services                            8,767.00          979.15        9,166.12             .45          399.57-   4.55-%
 271 Pupil Trans Services                        72,514.00        3,144.04        3,144.04             .00       69,369.96   95.66 %
 281 Plan, Research & Dev                         4,000.00             .00             .00             .00        4,000.00  100.00 %
 282 Communication Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 283 Staff Services                                 390.00           85.00          475.00             .00           85.00-  21.79-%
 284 Support Services Tech                             .00             .00      355,445.85             .00      355,445.85-    .00 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                            70,840.00             .00             .00             .00       70,840.00  100.00 %
 331 Community Activities                       161,394.00       45,898.86       88,426.68       21,980.19       50,987.13   31.59 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                      8,667.00             .00             .00             .00        8,667.00  100.00 %
 361 Welfare Activities                          17,283.00          528.45        9,477.64             .00        7,805.36   45.16 %
 371 Non-Public Schl Pupils                      37,219.00          997.44       13,287.22        3,056.21       20,875.57   56.08 %
 391 Other Community Services                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 411 Payments Oth K-12/In Stat                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

15 FEDERAL GRANTS                  * TOTAL    6,460,982.00      491,987.94    3,982,678.53    1,192,113.99    1,286,189.48   19.90 %

25 CAFETERIA

 252 Fiscal Services                             83,700.00             .25             .00             .00       83,700.00  100.00 %
 259 Other Business Services                     15,180.00        1,250.20       11,881.28             .00        3,298.72   21.73 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                     65,942.00        2,369.94       34,746.97        1,312.24       29,882.79   45.31 %
 291 Pupil Activities                             4,163.00             .00             .00             .00        4,163.00  100.00 %
 297 Food Services                            6,238,509.00      627,889.02    4,807,031.70      146,380.85    1,285,096.45   20.59 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                    200,000.00             .00             .00             .00      200,000.00  100.00 %

25 CAFETERIA                       * TOTAL    6,607,494.00      631,509.41    4,853,659.95      147,693.09    1,606,140.96   24.30 %

26 COMMUNITY EDUCATION FUND

 259 Other Business Services                     50,100.00        4,035.38       38,578.38             .00       11,521.62   22.99 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                      1,802.00             .00        1,092.52             .00          709.48   39.37 %
 283 Staff Services                                 300.00             .00             .00             .00          300.00  100.00 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                   319,613.00       33,894.48      307,039.88        2,967.10        9,606.02    3.00 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                    887,189.00       97,964.34      764,156.70        6,261.70      116,770.60   13.16 %
 391 Other Community Services                   220,563.00           27.44      189,203.95             .00       31,359.05   14.21 %

26 COMMUNITY EDUCATION FUND        * TOTAL    1,479,567.00      135,921.64    1,300,071.43        9,228.80      170,266.77   11.50 %



 5/15/25  11.30.49                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  04/30   FISCAL PERIOD 10   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         4

AMEND MAR         ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  5/15/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

27 PRESCHOOL FUND

 118 Pre-school                                 437,402.00       37,849.42      383,969.29        2,492.81       50,939.90   11.64 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                     75,831.00        7,818.47       75,138.13        3,816.58        3,123.71-   4.11-%
 311 Community Serv Direction                     5,700.00          209.14        1,340.67             .00        4,359.33   76.47 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                    568,498.00       43,274.61      466,739.35       30,501.77       71,256.88   12.53 %

27 PRESCHOOL FUND                  * TOTAL    1,087,431.00       89,151.64      927,187.44       36,811.16      123,432.40   11.35 %

29 STUDENT/SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS

 296 Oth Stu/Schl Activity Exp                         .00             .00        1,500.00-            .00        1,500.00     .00 %

29 STUDENT/SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS   * TOTAL             .00             .00        1,500.00-            .00        1,500.00     .00 %

31 2025 SCHOOL BOND DEBT RETIREME

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

31 2025 SCHOOL BOND DEBT RETIREME  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

34 2015 SWAPTION (FORMERLY 2008 S

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 639 fund modification                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

34 2015 SWAPTION (FORMERLY 2008 S  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

35 2021 REFUNDER

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00   10,324,920.77   11,489,841.54             .00   11,489,841.54-    .00 %

35 2021 REFUNDER                   * TOTAL             .00   10,324,920.77   11,489,841.54             .00   11,489,841.54-    .00 %

37 2015 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00    5,080,031.25    5,505,079.94             .00    5,505,079.94-    .00 %

37 2015 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00    5,080,031.25    5,505,079.94             .00    5,505,079.94-    .00 %

39 2023 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00    3,566,875.00    4,494,100.00             .00    4,494,100.00-    .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00        1,000.00             .00        1,000.00-    .00 %

39 2023 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00    3,566,875.00    4,495,100.00             .00    4,495,100.00-    .00 %



 5/15/25  11.30.49                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  04/30   FISCAL PERIOD 10   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         5

AMEND MAR         ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  5/15/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

41 2025 SCHOOL BOND FUND SERIES 1

 259 Other Business Services                    671,491.00      128,414.24      545,356.91             .00      126,134.09   18.78 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                     2,628,157.00      231,500.00      783,316.00             .00    1,844,841.00   70.19 %
 452 Site Improvement Services               28,789,667.00             .00    3,949,311.17      133,629.59   24,706,726.24   85.81 %
 453 Architectur & Eng Servs                           .00             .00       98,000.00             .00       98,000.00-    .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services               78,582,176.00      598,962.10    2,900,578.60-   6,554,819.44   74,927,935.16   95.34 %
 459 Othr Facilities Acq & Con                         .00        6,097.00       22,395.50             .00       22,395.50-    .00 %

41 2025 SCHOOL BOND FUND SERIES 1  * TOTAL  110,671,491.00      964,973.34    2,497,800.98    6,688,449.03  101,485,240.99   91.69 %

46 BLD & SITE 2008

 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 639 fund modification                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

46 BLD & SITE 2008                 * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

47 B & S 2010 SERIES A TAXABLE

 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 646 FUND MOD-2008 BLDG&SITE                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

47 B & S 2010 SERIES A TAXABLE     * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

62 SCHOLARSHIP FUND

 298 Oth Priv Purpose Trust Ex                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

62 SCHOLARSHIP FUND                * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

83 Compensated Absence Internal S

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

83 Compensated Absence Internal S  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

** GRAND TOTALS  268,955,323.00   32,567,074.64  135,574,077.23   31,102,882.57  102,278,363.20   38.02 %
 *BUDGET # 01 Amended March                   3/31/2025 AMEND MAR



Keith Howell 
  SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

     
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  

 

  
Initiator:                        Kathy Konon, CPA 
  
Board Meeting: June 9, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Payment Registers 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
The Payment Register and Purchase Card Report for all funds are presented to the Board 
of Education each month for review as part of the Consent Agenda. Each check run for 
the month is summarized and totaled by fund, providing a clear financial overview. 
Additionally, the detailed documents include the signatures of two Board members, 
ensuring proper authorization and oversight. 
 
 
Current Status: 
The Payment Register for all funds are presented as of April 30, 2025, as follows: 

 

• April 2, 2025 

• April 16, 2025 

• April 30, 2025 

• Purchase Card Reports for March 2025 (reviewed) 
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and is subject to approval by the Board 
of Education.  Administration will recommend that the Board motion to approve the Payment 
Register at their next Regular Board Meeting. 
 
 

KK/jh 





































































































































































Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA    
 
Board Meeting: June 9, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Summary of Investments & Wire/ACH Transfers 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
As part of fiscal management, available cash funds are invested to earn income for the district. 
Since investing carries both interest rate and credit risk, the Board has established a policy 
requiring a monthly investment report. Additionally, as part of financial management 
operations, the business office routinely transfers to and from the district’s bank accounts. To 
provide oversight of this process, a monthly report is prepared by the accountant, detailing the 
date of each transaction, the bank accounts involved, the purpose of the transfer, the amount, 
and the requesting fund. 

 
 
Current Status: 
The report, reflecting data as of April 30, 2025, includes details on the investing institution, type 
of investment, amount invested, interest rate, and the fund respective. It also summarizes ACH 
and wire transfers as of the same date for the General, Debt, Food and Nutrition, and Trust & 
Agency funds. 

 
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration will recommend that 
the Board of Education motion to approve the Summary of Investments & Wire/ACH transfers 

at their next Regular Board Meeting. 
  
KK/jh 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary of investments as of: April 30, 2025  

 

   

Institution Type  Amount Rate Date 

Purchased 

Due Date Fund Number 

of Days 

 

JPMorgan Chase 

 

Checking 

 

$12,674,577.34 

 

N/A 

 

Varies 

 

Immediate 

 

GF 

 

- 

        

JPMorgan Chase Checking $177,342.02 N/A Varies Immediate  IF - 

        

JPMorgan Chase 

 

Checking $4,862,773.49 N/A Varies Immediate DF - 

JPMorgan Chase 

 

Checking 0 N/A Varies Immediate Bond  

        

Fifth Third Bank Depository $2,169,805.85 N/A Varies Immediate  GF - 

        

Fifth Third Bank Depository $1,495,987.05 N/A Varies Immediate  IF - 

        

Fifth Third Bank Depository $1,866,533.75 N/A Varies Immediate  F&N - 

        

MILAF 

 

MILAF 

 

Investment 

 

Investment 

$6,226,126.17 

 

$999,139.42 

N/A 

 

N/A 

N/A 

 

N/A 

Varies 

 

Varies 

GF 

 

IF 

- 

 

- 

MILF Investment $1,061,622.34 N/A N/A Varies F&N - 

MILAF Investment $170,695.13 N/A N/A Varies Scholarship 

Fund 

- 

Huntington Bank Investment $104,908,949.44 N/A N/A Varies Bond - 

Calendar YTD 

Accumulative Earnings 

for all Funds 

 $100,208.58 

 

 

$305,824.48 

N/A 

 

 

N/A 

N/A 

 

 

N/A 

Varies 

 

 

Varies 

Interest 

 

Bond 

Interest 

- 

 

 

- 

NOTE:        

State Aid Payment –  

April 21, 2025 

Deposited to JPMorgan 

Chase                                      

 $9,645,346.78  N/A    

 

B&S = Building & Site 

CF = Cafeteria Fund 

DF = Debt Fund 

GF = General Fund 

 IF = Internal Fund 

  

 

  

 

 

Rates as of April 30, 2025: 
Federal Reserve  

     Non-Asset Backed     30 days       N/A 

          60 days       4.31 

     Asset Backed         30 days       4.39 

          60 days       4.39 

 

Note: N/A. indicates trade data insufficient to 

support calculation of the particular rate. 



 

L’ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

Summary of General, Debt, Cafeteria and Trust & Agency Funds Wire Activity  

April 1 through April 30, 2025 

 

  1 of 1  

1 4/03/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

BMO Purchasing Card Activity through April 27th ($160,758.49) ACH GF 

2 4/02/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Bank of America 4/04/25 PR Direct Deposit ($1,693,235.10) Wire GF 

3 4/02/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

MSGCU 4/04/25 Net Payroll Deductions ($329,976.36) Wire GF 

4 4/04/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Wells Fargo Bank 4/04/25 Annuities Funding ($141,916.23) ACH GF 

5 4/16/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Bank of America 4/18/25 Net Payroll Deductions ($1,473,855.59) Wire GF 

6 4/16/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

MSGCU 4/18/25 Net Payroll Deductions ($473,483.33) Wire GF 

7 4/18/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Wells Fargo Bank 4/18/25 Annuities Funding ($141,906.60) ACH GF 

8 4/25/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

UMB Bank Refunding 2023 Bonds ($3,566,875.00 Wire DF 

9 4/25/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Huntington National 

Bank 

2015 Refunding Bond (General Obligation 

Unlimited Tax) 

 

($5,080,031.25) Wire DF 

10 4/25/25 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

UMB Bank 2021 Refunding Bonds ($10,324,920.77) Wire DF 

 

 



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jefferey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

           

                         
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA 
 
Board Meeting: June 9, 2025 
 
Agenda Items4:  Recommendation to accept the Projected 2024-2025 Final Amended 

General Fund Budget and the Projected 2025-2026 Original General Fund 
Budget  

  
 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
Background: 
Typically, for the current year a final General Fund budget is presented near the end of the fiscal 
year to reflect anticipated total revenues and expenses. For the upcoming 2025-26 fiscal year, 
the Board of Education is required to adopt a budget based on the Truth-in-Taxation and Truth-
in-Budgeting Act for the General Fund by June 30th.  
 
 

Current Status: 
To reflect changes in revenue and expenses during the 2024–2025 fiscal year, a projected final 
amended budget has been prepared by district administration and is recommended for 
approval. The Truth-in-Budget hearing is scheduled for June 23, 2025 for the 2025-26 fiscal year.  
The projected 2025-2026 Original General Fund budget has also been reviewed by district 
administration and will be recommended for approval following the budget hearing. 
 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration will recommend that the Board motion to approve the recommendation for the  
projected 2024-2025 Final Amended General Fund Budget and the projected 2025-2026 Original 

General Fund budget at their next Regular Board Meeting. 

 

KK/jh 

 

       















Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

             
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA 
 
Board Meeting: June 9, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Recommendation to Approve the District’s Annual Renewal of Insurance 

with M.A.I.S.L. 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
Background: 
The participation of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools in the M.A.I.S.L. insurance pool is reviewed annually. 

The pool includes: 

1. Package Premiums - property, general liability, automobile liability, physical damage and 

inland marine.  

2. Excess Property/Liability 

3. Boiler and Machinery 

4. School Board Legal 

5. Errors and Omissions/Crime 

 

Current Status: 
At the May M.A.I.S.L. Board of Directors meeting, Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services 

presented the renewal information.  The total annual premium is $530,104.00 and includes cyber 

insurance and keeping the funding of the Loss Fund at 100%. The premium summary is attached.  

  
 

 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration will recommend that the Board motion to approve the District’s Annual Renewal of Insurance with 
M.A.I.S.L. at their next Regular Board Meeting. 
. 
 

KK/jh 





Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross          John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

     
Initiator:         Kathy Konon, CPA 
 
Board Meeting:      June 9, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:          Recommendation for Workers Compensation Excess Insurance Policy 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
As an employer, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools is required to maintain workers 
compensation insurance.  The district is self-insured employer, meaning that we are 
responsible for payment of claims under the retention limit.  Claims over the retention 
limit are covered by our excess policy. Due to the complexity of workers compensation 
rules and regulations our claims are serviced by a third-party administrator.  
 
Current Status: 
Our current excess insurance policy, held with Benchmark Insurance, is set to expire on 
June 30, 2025. This policy was renewed in June 2023 with an annual premium of 
$35,586 and includes a retention of $500,000.  
 
During the year, we worked with Gallagher, to solicit quotes and it was determined that 
our current self-insured program is the most cost-effective option.  Due to our staff 
anticipated reductions and we didn’t want to incur costs on higher salaries, we were 
delayed in providing information to ASU Group.  We are awaiting ASU Group to issue 
and evaluate proposals for new excess insurance coverage and expect to present this 
information to the Board for approval at the June 23rd meeting. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration will recommend that the Board motion to approve the Workers 

Compensation Excess Insurance quotes at their next Regular Board Meeting. 

KK/jh 
 



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 
 
 
 
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA   
 
Board Meeting: June 9, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Amended Resolution to Add Middle School East as a Voting Precinct  
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
It has been the practice of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools to enter into agreement with local 
municipalities to permit use of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools facilities as voting precincts for 
public elections. 
 
 
Current Status:   
Municipalities have submitted resolutions requesting permission to use district facilities for 
public elections from 2024 through 2028. Chesterfield Township is seeking to utilize Middle 
School East for voters in lieu of Francis A. Higgins Elementary School. Currently, the township is 
approved to use Joseph M Carkenord Elementary School, Green Elementary School and Francis 
A. Higgins Elementary School. 
 
 
 Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 

Administration will recommend that the Board of Education motion to approve the Voting 
Precinct at their next Regular Board Meeting. 
 

KK/jh 

 













Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA 
 
Board Meeting: June 9, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Barton Malow Contract  
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
Background: 
The district has partnered with Barton Malow Builders, LLC, for over 30 years to provide 
construction management advisory services for L’Anse Creuse Public Schools. They were not 
only active in assisting the district during the bond application process with the state but also 
with the bond campaign. 
 

Current Status: 
Barton Malow, Clark Hill, District Counsel, and the district have spent the last several months negotiating 
a Standard form Agreement between the Owner and Construction Manager as Adviser Edition. (AIA 
document C132).  This agreement is consistent with industry standards for school bond work.  The 
contract includes a 1.99% administration fee, which is customary for industry standards and does not 
exceed the limits for reimbursable and general conditions based on the agreed-upon scope of work. 
 (Total of a not to exceed of about 7.97%) 

  
 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve Barton Malow contract as presented.  

 

KK/jh 



Document C132
®

 – 2019

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction Manager as 
Adviser

Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

1

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 

The author of this document has 

added information needed for its 

completion. The author may also 

have revised the text of the original 

AIA standard form. An Additions and 

Deletions Report that notes added 

information as well as revisions to the 

standard form text is available from 

the author and should be reviewed. A 

vertical line in the left margin of this 

document indicates where the author 

has added necessary information 

and where the author has added to or 

deleted from the original AIA text.

This document has important legal 

consequences. Consultation with an 

attorney is encouraged with respect 

to its completion or modification.

This document is intended to be used 

in conjunction with AIA Documents 

A132™–2019, Standard Form of 

Agreement Between Owner and 

Contractor, Construction Manager as 

Adviser Edition; A232™–2019, 

General Conditions of the Contract 

for Construction, Construction 

Manager as Adviser Edition; and 

B132™–2019, Standard Form of 

Agreement Between Owner and 

Architect, Construction Manager as 

Adviser Edition. AIA Document 

A232™–2019 is adopted in this 

document by reference. Do not use 

with other general conditions unless 

this document is modified.

AGREEMENT made as of the 1st day of October in the year 2024
(In words, indicate day, month and year.)

BETWEEN the Owner:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools
24076 F. V. Pankow Boulevard
Clinton Township, Michigan 48036

and the Construction Manager:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

Barton Malow Builders LLC
26500 American Drive
Southfield, Michigan 48034

for the following Project:
(Name, location, and detailed description)

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools
2024 Bond Election
See Detailed Description of the Project for the 2024 Bond Election attached hereto as 
Exhibit D.

The Architect:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

Partners in Architecture, PLC
65 Market Street
Mount Clemens, Michigan 48043

The Owner and Construction Manager agree as follows.



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

2

TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 INITIAL INFORMATION

2 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

3 SCOPE OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGER’S BASIC SERVICES

4 BASIC SERVICES

5 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

6 COST OF THE WORK

7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

11 COMPENSATION

12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 1   INITIAL INFORMATION
§ 1.1 This Agreement is based on the Initial Information set forth in this Section 1.1.
(For each item in this section, insert the information or a statement such as "not applicable" or "unknown at time of 

execution.")

§ 1.1.1 The Owner’s program for the Project:
(Insert the Owner’s program, identify documentation that establishes the Owner’s program, or state the manner in 

which the program will be developed.)

See Detailed Description of the Project for the 2024 Bond Election attached hereto as Exhibit D.   The 2024 Bond 
issue is $188,700,000.00 and the total Not-To-Exceed limit on the Cost of the Work for which the Construction 
Manager will provide services hereunder is $102,455,648.00.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Owner may approve 
in writing the final Scope of the 2024 Bond Election Projects with advice and input from the Architect and 
Construction Manager.  Such Scope of Work shall then amend the Detailed Description of the Project attached hereto 
as Exhibit D.

§ 1.1.2 The Project’s physical characteristics:
(Identify or describe pertinent information about the Project’s physical characteristics, such as size; location; 

dimensions; geotechnical reports; site boundaries; topographic surveys; traffic and utility studies; availability of 

public and private utilities and services; legal description of the site, etc.)

See Detailed Description of the Project for the 2024 Bond Election attached hereto as Exhibit D.

§ 1.1.3 The Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, as defined in Section 6.1:
(Provide total and, if known, a line item breakdown.)

.1 Subject only to written amendment agreed to by the Owner, the Owner’s total Not-To-Exceed limit on the Cost of 
the Work is set forth in Section 1.1.1 above.  The Not-To-Exceed limit shall include the Cost of the Work, as defined 
in Article 6 of this Agreement.  Any services provided under this Agreement are subject to the Not-To-Exceed limit.  



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

3

In the absence of an express provision to the contrary in this Agreement, the Construction Manager shall perform the 
required services in a manner that will render a Cost of the Work for the Project that does not exceed the most current 
Owner-approved Not-To-Exceed limit.

.2  The amount of the Owner’s overall Not-To-Exceed limit of the Cost of the Work for the Project set forth in §1.1.1 
above is inclusive of all hard construction costs, General Conditions, and contingency for the Project.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Cost of the Work does NOT include the compensation of the Architect, its 
employees, agents or the Architect’s consultants, the Construction Manager, its employees, agents or the Construction 
Manager’s consultants or Personnel Reimbursable Rates, the costs of the land, rights-of-way, financing, other costs 
which are the responsibility of the Owner, such as Technology Designer, Project Financial Consultant, Project Market 
Study Consultant, Project Investment Banker, etc., and other "soft costs" that are the responsibility of the Owner.  
Technology design services should not be included in the Construction Manager’s Scope of Work, except for 
coordination purposes.  If any portion of the Construction Manager’s compensation is based upon a percentage of the 
Cost of the Work, then, for the purpose of determining such portion, it shall not include the compensation of the 
Construction Manager, the Construction Manager’s consultants, Personnel Reimbursable Rates or Office General 
Condition Costs.

.3  The Construction Manager acknowledges that the Owner has established a Not-To-Exceed limit for the Cost of the 
Work as a condition of this Agreement.  The Construction Manager shall perform the requirements of the Contract 
Documents adhering to the Owner’s established Not-To-Exceed limit for the Cost of the Work.  Notwithstanding 
anything contained herein to the contrary, the Owner, in its sole discretion, shall work with the Construction Manager 
in determining how the contingency, if any, allocated for the Project shall be utilized.

§ 1.1.4 The Owner’s anticipated design and construction milestone dates and schedule is described in Exhibit F:
.1 Design phase milestone dates, if any:

See Exhibit F

.2 Construction commencement date:

See Exhibit F

.3 Substantial Completion date or dates:

See Exhibit F

.4 Other milestone dates:

There will be a different Substantial Completion date for each Project falling under this Bond Program. 
As used herein, the Substantial Completion date shall be the date for each particular Project as set forth 
in Exhibit F

§ 1.1.5 The Owner intends the following procurement method for the Project:
(Identify method such as competitive bid or negotiated contract.)

Competitive bid with multiple Prime Contractors secured through competitively bid contracts.

§ 1.1.6 The Owner’s requirements for accelerated or fast-track design and construction, multiple bid packages, or 
phased construction are set forth below:
(Identify any requirements for fast-track scheduling or phased construction and, if applicable, list number and type of 

bid/procurement packages.)

The Construction Manager shall consult with the Owner on all fast-tracking, equipment and material expediting and 
bid-packaging deemed necessary in order to meet the Owner’s schedule referred to in Section 1.1.4, in the Owner’s 
discretion.  The Construction Manager shall cause all Contractors to include any and all costs required to comply with 
Owner’s schedule.



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

4

§ 1.1.7 The Owner’s anticipated Sustainable Objective for the Project:
(Identify and describe the Owner’s Sustainable Objective for the Project, if any.)

If any are identified, to be determined later by mutual agreement.

§ 1.1.7.1 Reserved.

§ 1.1.8 Other Project information:
(Identify special characteristics or needs of the Project not provided elsewhere.)

If any, to be determined later by mutual agreement.

§ 1.1.9 The Owner identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 5.5:
(List name, address, and other contact information.)

§ 1.1.9.1 Owner’s Designated Representative.  The Owner identifies the following individual as its Owner’s 

Designated Representative.  The Owner may change the designated representative upon written notice to the 

Architect; and the Owner may modify the scope of authority of the designated representative in like manner:

Kathy Konon
Assistant Superintendent for Business and Operations

or

Don Gratton
Director of Operations
L’Anse Creuse Public Schools
24076 F. V. Pankow Boulevard
Clinton Township, Michigan 48036

§ 1.1.9.2 Owner’s Representative.  The Owner has engaged Stoner Advisory Group, LLC, as an independent Owner 
Representative on the Project.  The Construction Manager shall keep the Owner and Owner’s Representative informed 
in matters regarding the Project.  Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement and specifically authorized by the 
Owner, the Owner’s Representative is not authorized to commit the Owner in matters regarding changes in the Work, 
Construction Schedule, or grant approval on behalf of the Owner.  The Owner and/or the Owner’s Representative have 
the sole right to make decisions in matters regarding the Project.  The following individual, subject to change upon 
written notification from the Owner to the Construction Manager, shall be primary contact for the Owner’s 
Representative:

John Stoner

§ 1.1.9.3 Reviews.  Unless otherwise directed by the Owner in writing, the Construction Manager shall provide the 
Owner’s Designated Representative and Owner’s Representative, if any, copies of all documents for the Owner’s 
review, approval, or consideration.  The Owner’s Designated Representative and/or Owner’s Representative shall 
render decisions and furnish information as promptly as reasonably possible so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the 
services or Work of Construction Manager, understanding that Owner is a public body, which decisions may need to 
be run by its Board of Education. 

§ 1.1.10 The persons or entities, in addition to the Owner’s representative, who are required to review the Construction 
Manager’s submittals to the Owner are as follows:
(List name, address, and other contact information.)

The Construction Manager shall assist the Architect during the Design Phases to ensure that the Architect’s design 
complies with the Project budget and schedule and confirm the constructability and completeness of the 
Design/Construction Documents.  It is recognized that the Construction Manager’s review is made in the Construction 
Manager’s capacity as a construction manager and not as a licensed design professional, unless otherwise specifically 
provided in the Contract Documents.



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

5

§ 1.1.11 Unless provided by the Construction Manager, the Owner shall retain the following consultants and 
contractors, with whom the Construction Manager shall coordinate:
(List name, legal status, address, and other contact information.)

.1 Land Surveyor:

To be Determined.

.2 Geotechnical Engineer:

To be Determined

.6 Other, Consultants:
(List any other consultants retained by the Owner.)

Technology Designer:  Integrated Design Solutions, LLC

Environmental Consultant:  To Be Determined.

§ 1.1.12 The Construction Manager identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 2.5:
(List name, address, and other contact information.)

Daryl Dombrow,
Barton Malow Builders LLC
26500 American Drive
Southfield, Michigan 48034

§ 1.1.13 The Construction Manager’s staffing plan as required under Section 3.3.3 shall include:
(List any specific requirements and personnel to be included in the staffing plan, if known.)

The staffing plan based on the current schedule and hourly rates is included in Exhibit A. 



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

6

Additionally, the Construction Manager agrees to commit key personnel throughout the duration of the Project as 
identified in Exhibit C, subject to the continued employment of any named individuals by the Construction Manager.  
Construction Manager shall promptly notify the Owner if services of any one of the listed key personnel become 
unavailable due to circumstances beyond the Construction Manager’s control – e.g., extended illness or disability, 
death, or termination of employment, etc. Owner shall have the right to approve or reject alternate key personnel 
employed by the Construction Manager to replace the unavailable key personnel.  Construction Manager shall agree to 
provide the services of the alternate key personnel selected by Owner.  Construction Manager is not entitled to 
additional compensation for any such substitution(s) of the key personnel.  The assignment of key personnel shall also 
include members of the Construction Manager’s consultants.

§ 1.1.14 The Construction Manager’s consultants retained under Basic Services, if any:
(List name, legal status, address, and other contact information of any consultants.)

Not Applicable  

§ 1.1.15 The Construction Manager’s consultants retained under Additional Services:

None, unless agreed to in writing by Owner.  

§ 1.1.16 Other Initial Information on which this Agreement is based:

Not Applicable 

§ 1.2 The Owner and Construction Manager may rely on the Initial Information. Both parties, however, recognize that 
the Initial Information may materially change and, in that event, the Owner and the Construction Manager may, adjust 
the schedule and The Construction Manager’s services, and the Construction Manager’s compensation may be 
adjusted as mutually agreed to by the parties. The Owner and the Construction Manager shall cooperate with one 
another to fulfill their respective obligations under this Agreement.  Both parties shall endeavor to maintain good 
working relationships among all members of the Construction Team.

§ 1.3 Without in anyway limiting or restricting the Owner’s rights or use of the Instruments of Service, the parties 
shall agree upon written protocols governing the transmission and use of, and reliance on, Instruments of Service or 
any other information or documentation in digital form.

§ 1.3.1 Reserved.

§ 1.4 The term "Contractors" refers to persons or entities who perform Work under contracts with the Owner that are 
administered by the Construction Manager and Architect. The term "Contractors" is used to refer to such persons or 
entities, whether singular or plural. The term does not include the Owner’s own forces, or separate contractors, which 
are persons or entities who perform construction under separate contracts with the Owner not administered by the 
Construction Manager and Architect.

ARTICLE 2   CONSTRUCTION MANAGER’S RESPONSIBILITIES
§ 2.1 The Construction Manager shall provide the professional services as set forth in this Agreement, whether 
performed by the Construction Manager, its employees or agents, and the Construction Manager’s consultants as 
enumerated in Sections 1.1.13 and 1.1.14 of this Agreement and any other services included in this Agreement as 
Basic Services.  The Construction Manager represents that it is properly licensed in the jurisdiction where the Project 
is located to provide the services required by this Agreement, or shall cause such services to be performed by 
appropriately licensed professionals.  Additionally, the Construction Manager, its employees, agents and Construction 
Manager’s Consultants shall maintain all necessary licenses, certifications, registrations, permits or other 
authorizations necessary to act as licensed (or registered) professional for the Project until the Construction Manager’s 
and Construction Manager’s Consultants’ duties hereunder have been fully satisfied.

§ 2.2 Any other Paragraph or Section in this Agreement, the Contract Documents or any other document to the 
contrary notwithstanding, all services provided by the Construction Manager under this Agreement shall be performed 
in a reasonably prompt manner and in accordance with the standard of reasonable care and skill exercised by a 
construction manager of recognized experience and expertise similar to the Construction Manager’s in the 



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

7

construction of public school facilities. The Construction Manager shall be responsible for the degree of care and skill 
for all services provided hereunder whether such services are provided directly by the Construction Manager, its 
employees or agents, or by the Construction Manager’s consultants hired by the Construction Manager. 

The Construction Manager acknowledges that the services to be provided by the Construction Manager under this 
Agreement shall include assisting the Owner in complying with the Owner’s obligations set forth in Michigan Revised 
School Code (MCL 380.1 et seq., including, but not limited to 380.1264, as amended) the School Building 
Construction Act (the "Act") (MCL 388.851 et seq., as amended), the Occupational Code (MCL 339.2011, as 
amended), the Stille-Derossett-Hale Single State Construction Code Act (MCL 125.1501 et seq.) and the Michigan 
Building Code. The Construction Manager shall also assist the Owner in complying with all of the Owner’s 
competitive bidding requirements under Sections 1267 and 1274 of the Michigan Revised School Code, as amended 
and the prevailing wage requirements of MCL 408.1101, et seq., as amended and as applicable ("Michigan’s 
Prevailing Wage Act"), including the maintenance of records as may be necessary to enable compliance with the 
reporting or inspection requirements under the Michigan’s Prevailing Wage Act. While the Construction Manager 
does not take responsibility for providing legal advice or design responsibility, the services of the Construction 
Manager shall be provided consistent with those statutes. Further, the Construction Manager shall be responsible for 
costs incurred to correct any action taken by the Owner based on the Construction Manager’s services which are 
inconsistent with the requirements of those statutes, or other applicable statutes, in effect at the time the latest 
construction and building permit is issued provided that such inconsistent services were not performed by 
Construction Manager at the direction of the Owner.  Finally, the Construction Manager acknowledges that for 
purposes of the Act, the Construction Manager is designated as the person qualified to supervise and is in charge of 
construction.

§ 2.3 Unless modified by this Agreement, the Construction Manager shall provide its services in conjunction with, and 
where indicated in this Agreement in reliance upon, the services of an Architect as described in AIA Document 
B132™–2019, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect, Construction Manager as Adviser 
Edition, as modified between the Owner and Architect. The Construction Manager shall not be responsible for the 
negligence, breach of contract or wrongful conduct of the Owner or the Owner’s separate contractors, suppliers, or 
consultants, any Contractor or subcontractor or supplier of any tier, the Architect or its consultants, or any of their 
agents or employees, or any other person(s) or entities performing portions of the Work.  However, nothing herein 
shall relieve the Construction Manager of its duties pursuant to this Agreement.

§ 2.4 The Construction Manager shall coordinate its services with those services provided by the Owner, the 
Architect, the Contractors, and the Owner’s other consultants and separate contractors. Except to the extent the 
Construction Manager knows of any inaccuracy, the Construction Manager shall be entitled to rely on, and shall not be 
responsible for, the accuracy and completeness of services and information furnished by the Owner, the Architect, and 
the Owner’s other consultants and separate contractors provided that the Construction Manager shall exercise proper 
precautions relating to safe performance of the Work. The Construction Manager shall provide prompt written notice 
to the Owner and the Architect if the Construction Manager becomes aware of any error, omission, or inconsistency in 
such services or information and if the Construction Manager fails to provide such written notice, the Construction 
Manager shall be responsible for any additional costs and services necessary to correct issues caused by such 
inconsistencies.

§ 2.5 The Construction Manager shall identify a Principal-in-Charge authorized to act on behalf of the Construction 
Manager, and fully commit the Construction Manager’s resources with respect to the Project.  The Construction 
Manager’s Principal-in-Charge shall be identified on Exhibit C.

§ 2.6 Reserved.

§ 2.7 Except with the Owner’s knowledge and consent, the Construction Manager shall not engage in any activity, or 
accept any employment, interest or contribution that would reasonably appear to compromise the Construction 
Manager’s judgment with respect to this Project.

§ 2.8 The Construction Manager shall obtain and maintain the following insurance during and for the duration of this 
Agreement.  The Construction Manager may charge the Owner for such insurance at the rate set forth in Section 11.7 
below, but such rate may only be applied to the amount of Construction Manager’s Fee and not the Cost of the Work. 
The insurance required by Section 2.8 shall be written for not less than the limits specified or required by law, 
whichever coverage is greater.  Coverages, whether written on an "occurrence" or "claims-made" basis, shall be 



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

8

obtained and maintained without interruption from a company or companies lawfully authorized to do business in the 
State of Michigan, and with an A.M. Best’s Rating of "A-", or better, from the date of commencement of operations 
under this Agreement until the date of final payment and termination of any coverage required to be maintained after 
final payment.

§ 2.8.1 Commercial General Liability with primary, noncontributory coverage, including for ongoing and 
products-completed operations hazards, on which Owner, and its consultants, and the Architect are named as additional 
insureds, with policy limits of not less than One Million and 00/100 Dollars   ($  1,000,000.00  ) for each occurrence and  
Five Million and 00/100 Dollars  ($  5,000,000.00  ) in the aggregate for bodily injury and property damage.

§ 2.8.2 Automobile Liability covering vehicles owned, and non-owned vehicles used, by the Construction Manager 
with policy limits of not less than  Five Million and 00/100 Dollars  ($  5,000,000.00  ) per accident for bodily injury, 
death of any person, and property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance and use of those motor vehicles, 
along with any other statutorily required automobile coverage.

§ 2.8.3 Excess Umbrella Liability with policy limits of not less than Fifteen Million and 00/100 Dollars 
($15,000,000.00).  The Construction Manager may achieve the required limits and coverage for Commercial General 
Liability and Automobile Liability through a combination of primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance, 
provided such primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance policies result in the same or greater coverage as the 
coverages required under Sections 2.8.1 and 2.8.2, and in no event shall any excess or umbrella liability insurance 
provide narrower coverage than the primary policy. The excess policy shall not require the exhaustion of the 
underlying limits only through the actual payment by the underlying insurers.

§ 2.8.4 Workers’ Compensation that meets or exceeds the statutory limits and Employers Liability with policy limits 
not less than One Million and 00/100 Dollars   ($  1,000,000.00  ) each accident,  One Million and 00/100 Dollars  ($  
1,000,000.00  ) each employee, and  One Million and 00/100 Dollars ($  1,000,000.00  ) policy limit.

§ 2.8.5 Professional Liability covering negligent acts, errors and omissions in the performance of professional services 
with policy limits of not less than Five Million and 00/100 Dollars ($ 5,000,000.00 ) per claim and Five Million and 
00/100 Dollars ($ 5,000,000.00 ) in the aggregate, for liability arising out of any negligent acts, errors and omissions in 
the Construction Manager’s, its employees, agents, and Construction Manager’s consultants  rendering of or failure to 
render professional services under this Agreement, including without limitation Construction Manager’s services, as 
well as any and all subsequent addition or additions or amendments thereto.  Insurance amounts must be annually 
renewed and maintained in force for a period of not less than the Statute of Limitation and Statute of Repose periods in 
the state where the Project is located after the Project’s relevant Date of Substantial Completion or the last day service 
is rendered by the Construction Manager on the Project, whichever shall be the later.  The Construction Manager shall 
immediately notify the Owner if this insurance becomes not available or the required coverage amount is substantially 
changed from the current coverage carried by the Construction Manager or as required herein.

§ 2.8.6 Additional Insured Obligations. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Construction Manager shall cause 
the primary and excess or umbrella policies for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability to be 
endorsed to include the Owner and its consultants, and the Architect as additional insureds for claims caused in whole 
or in part by the Construction Manager’s negligent acts or omissions. The additional insured coverage shall be primary 
and non-contributory to any of the Owner’s insurance policies and shall apply to both ongoing and completed 
operations.

§ 2.8.7 The Construction Manager shall provide certificates of insurance to the Owner that evidence compliance with 
the requirements in this Section 2.8.  See Certificates of Insurance attached hereto as Exhibit E and incorporated 
herein by reference. Such Certificates of Liability Insurance must be endorsed to provide that the Owner will be given 
at least thirty (30) days’ notice of cancellation or change in insurance coverage.

§ 2.8.8 With respect to any of the insurance policies provided by the Construction Manager pursuant to this Agreement 
which are "claims made" policies, in the event at any time any such policies are cancelled or not renewed, the 
Construction Manager shall provide a substitute insurance policy(ies) with terms and conditions and in amounts which 
comply with the terms of this Agreement and which provides for retroactive coverage to the date of cancellation or 
nonrenewal to fill any gaps in coverage which may exist due to the cancellation or nonrenewal of the prior "claims 
made" policy(ies).  With respect to all "claims made" policies which are renewed, the Construction Manager shall 



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

9

provide coverage retroactive to the date of commencement of work under this Agreement. All said substitute or 
renewed "claims made" policies shall be annually renewed and maintained in full force and effect for three (3) years 
from the date of completion of the Project.

§ 2.8.9 In addition, if at any time throughout the Term of this Agreement Owner desires Construction Manager to 
increase any or all of the above-referenced minimum insurance requirements, Owner shall request a price from the 
Construction Manager for said cost. If Owner, then, chooses to increase said minimum insurance requirements, Owner 
shall reimburse the Construction Manager for the difference of the insurance premium(s) at cost without any mark-up.

§ 2.8.10 The Construction Manager shall ensure that the Contract Documents applicable to the Contractors and 
Subcontractors require that Contractors and Subcontractors to include the Owner and its consultants and the Architect 
and its Consultants as additional insureds on all Comprehensive General Liability, Automobile and umbrella or excess 
policies applicable to the Project held by Contractors and Subcontractors with primary, noncontributory coverage, and 
including for ongoing and products-completed operations hazards.  The Construction Manager shall further ensure 
that Contractors and Subcontractors include the Owner and its consultants and the Architect and its consultants as 
additional insureds on all Comprehensive General Liability, Automobile and umbrella or excess policies applicable to 
the Project held by Contractors and Subcontractors.

§ 2.8.11 Waiver of Subrogation. See AIA A232-2019, Article 11.3, as amended for the Project, which is incorporated 
herein and attached hereto as Exhibit I.  The Owner and Construction Manager both acknowledge that neither party is 
waiving its insurer(s) right to subrogation hereunder. To the extent any term in this Agreement or any of the Exhibits 
attached hereto are contrary to this provision, such contrary term shall be deemed void and unenforceable.

§ 2.8.12 The Construction Manager shall maintain for the duration of this Agreement pollution liability insurance 
providing Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per pollution event and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) policy 
aggregate.

§ 2.9 If requested by the Owner, the Construction Manager shall assist the Owner, Architect, and other Project 
participants in establishing written protocols for the development, use, transmission, reliance, and exchange of digital 
data, including building information models for the Project.

§ 2.10 A centralized electronic document management system will be used on the Project, and the Construction 
Manager shall be responsible for managing and maintaining the centralized electronic document management system. 

§ 2.11 The Construction Manager shall retain all Project related documents and information it receives, and the Owner 
and Architect shall have access to the documents and information. The Construction Manager shall transmit the 
documents and information to the Owner at final completion. 

§ 2.12 Bond Contingency. Basic Compensation of the Construction Manager and of the underlying school construction 
Projects will be financed through the Owner’s issuance of General Obligation Unlimited Tax School Bonds (the 
"Bonds").  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the Construction Manager 
acknowledges that compensation of any services to be performed by the Construction Manager is expressly contingent 
upon the Owner’s issuance of General Obligation Unlimited Tax Bonds for all Projects.  The Construction Manager 
shall not provide any further services until the Construction Manager receives written notice from the Owner that the 
Owner has issued the above-referenced Bonds and authorizes the Construction Manager to proceed under this 
Agreement, unless otherwise directed by the Owner in writing.  In the event that the Owner does not issue such Bonds, 
in the complete discretion of the Owner, the Owner may terminate this Agreement and the Owner shall not be 
responsible for compensating the Construction Manager.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Construction Manager 
shall obtain the Owner’s approval in writing before proceeding to working or incurring any costs on any Series 2 
Projects. In the event the Owner provides it approval, but the Owner has not issued the Bonds for Series 2, the Owner 
shall be responsible to compensate the Construction Manager for those Series 2 services rendered up to the date of 
termination of the Project(s).



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

10

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the Construction Manager acknowledges that 
the Construction Manager must receive the Owner’s Approval in writing after each completed Phase hereunder and 
may not proceed to the next Phase without the Owner’s express approval to proceed.

ARTICLE 3   SCOPE OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGER’S BASIC SERVICES
§ 3.1 Definition (Please see Exhibit H – Scope of Services for additional requirements.) 
The Construction Manager’s Basic Services consist of those described in this Article 3 and Article 4 and any other 
services identified in Article 12 or elsewhere in this Agreement as Basic Services unless specifically designated as an 
Additional Service herein, and include but shall not be limited to those usual and customary Preconstruction and 
Construction Phase Services construction coordination and scheduling, constructability review, cost estimating, and 
allocation of construction activities among the Multiple Prime Contractors. The Owner, Construction Manager, and 
Contractors may agree, in consultation with the Architect, for the Construction Phase to commence prior to 
completion of the Preconstruction Phase, in which case, both phases will proceed concurrently.

§ 3.1.1 The Construction Manager accepts the relationship of trust and confidence established by this Agreement, 
covenants with the Owner to cooperate with the Architect and exercise the Construction Manager’s skill, judgment 
and fiduciary responsibilities in furthering the interests of the Owner; to furnish efficient construction administration, 
management services and supervision; and to perform its services in an expeditious and economical manner consistent 
with the Owner’s interests.  The Construction Manager shall fully execute the Work described in the Contract 
Documents, except to the extent specifically indicated in the Contract Documents to be the responsibility of others.

§ 3.1.2 The Construction Manager, as part of its Basic Services, shall apply for all available utility rebates on behalf of 
the Owner.  

§ 3.2 Preconstruction Phase
§ 3.2.1 The Construction Manager shall review and analyze the program and other information furnished by the 
Owner and any evaluation of the Owner’s program provided by the Architect, to ascertain the requirements of the 
Project considering the Owner’s long term plans regarding facilities, systems and equipment, and shall assist the 
Owner and the Architect in order to arrive at a mutual understanding of the program, schedule, construction budget 
and other design parameters.

§ 3.2.2 The Construction Manager shall provide a preliminary evaluation of the Owner’s program, schedule and 
construction budget requirements, each in terms of the other. The Construction Manager shall maintain a current 
budget statement for the Project.

§ 3.2.3 The Construction Manager shall prepare, and deliver to the Owner, for the Owner’s approval, a written 
Construction Management Plan that includes, at a minimum, the following: (1) preliminary evaluations required in 
Section 3.2.2, (2) a Project schedule, (3) cost estimates, (4) recommendations for Project delivery method, and (5) 
Contractors’ scopes of Work. The Construction Manager shall periodically update the Construction Management 
Plan, for the Owner’s approval, over the course of the Project, but not less than monthly, or as otherwise reasonably 
requested by the Owner.

§ 3.2.4 The Construction Manager shall prepare and periodically in writing, at least monthly or at other appropriate 
intervals agreed to by the Owner and Construction Manager, update the Project schedule included in the Construction 
Management Plan for the Architect’s review and the Owner’s acceptance. The Construction Manager shall obtain the 
Architect’s approval for the portion of the Project schedule relating to the performance of the Architect’s services. The 
Project schedule shall coordinate and integrate the Construction Manager’s services, the Architect’s services, other 
Owner consultants’ services, and the Owner’s responsibilities and highlight items that affect the Project’s timely 
completion.

§ 3.2.5 The Construction Manager shall update the Project schedule to include the components of the Work, including, 
but not limited to, phasing of construction, times of commencement and completion required of each Contractor, 
ordering and delivery of products, materials and equipment, including, but not limited to, those that must be ordered in 
advance of construction, obtaining the required reviews and approvals of authorities having jurisdiction over the 
Project, and the occupancy requirements of the Owner.  The Construction Manager shall provide the current Project 
construction schedule for each set of bidding documents.



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

11

§ 3.2.6 Based on the preliminary design and information prepared or provided by the Architect and other Owner 
consultants, the Construction Manager shall prepare, for the Architect’s review and Owner’s approval, preliminary 
estimates of the Cost of the Work or the cost of program requirements using area, volume or similar conceptual 
estimating techniques, including the establishment of sufficient contingency to reasonably anticipate the development 
of the Project’s design documents.  If the Architect suggests alternative materials and systems, the Construction 
Manager shall provide cost estimates and, in conjunction with the Architect, shall provide cost-benefit evaluations of 
those alternative materials and systems and may also provide its own suggestions.  It is understood that the Cost of the 
Work and Project budget will be set by these estimates.

§ 3.2.7 The Construction Manager shall expeditiously review design documents during their development and advise 
the Owner and Architect on proposed site use and improvements, selection of materials, building systems, and 
equipment. The Construction Manager shall also provide recommendations to the Owner and Architect, consistent 
with the Project requirements, on constructability; availability of materials and labor; sequencing for phased 
construction; time requirements for procurement, installation and construction; and factors related to construction cost 
including, but not limited to, costs of alternative designs or materials, preliminary budgets, life-cycle data, and 
possible cost reductions.

§ 3.2.8 The Construction Manager shall review recommendations for systems, materials, or equipment for the impact 
upon cost, schedule, sequencing, constructability, and coordination among the Contractors. The Construction 
Manager shall discuss its findings with the Owner and the Architect, and coordinate resolution, as necessary, of any 
such impacts.

§ 3.2.9 As the Architect progresses with the preparation of the Schematic Design, Design Development and 
Construction Documents, the Construction Manager shall prepare and update in writing, at least monthly and at the 
end of each Design Phase, or at other appropriate intervals agreed to by the Owner, Construction Manager and 
Architect, an estimate of the Cost of the Work with increasing detail and refinement. The Construction Manager shall 
include appropriate contingencies for design, bidding, price escalation, and market conditions in the estimates of the 
Cost of the Work. The estimate shall be provided for the Architect’s review and the Owner’s approval. The 
Construction Manager shall advise the Owner and Architect if it appears that the Cost of the Work may exceed the 
Owner’s Project budget, and shall make recommendations for corrective action.  The Architect shall be entitled to rely 
upon the Construction Manager’s estimates in the performance of Architect’s services, unless Architect knows or 
should have known the estimates to be incorrect. In that event, the Owner, Architect, and Construction Manager must 
agree to meet in order to mutually agree upon the estimate, program and schedule.  In the event that the Construction 
Manager’s estimates are materially incorrect and the Architect relied upon the same, the Construction Manager must 
reimburse the Owner for increased fees paid to its Architect to correct such design, if any.  The Construction Manager 
shall be entitled to rely upon the Architect’s design documents including but not limited to the Schematic Design, 
Design Development, and Construction Documents in the performance of Construction Manager’s services, unless the 
Construction Manager knew or should have known that the information was inaccurate.  In the event that the 
Architect’s Schematic Design, Design Development and Construction Documents contain significant errors and the 
Construction Manager relied upon the same, the Architect shall reimburse Owner for increased fees paid to its 
Construction Manager to correct and update such estimate, if any.

§ 3.2.10 As the Architect progresses with the preparation of the Schematic Design, Design Development and 
Construction Documents, the Construction Manager shall consult with the Owner and Architect and make 
recommendations for revisions whenever the Construction Manager determines that the design, or details, adversely 

affect cost, scope, schedule, constructability, or quality of the Project.

§ 3.2.11 The Construction Manager shall provide recommendations and information to the Owner and Architect 
regarding the assignment of responsibilities for temporary Project facilities and equipment, materials and services for 
common use of the Contractors. The Construction Manager shall verify that such requirements and assignment of 
responsibilities are included in the proposed Contract Documents.

§ 3.2.12 The Construction Manager shall provide recommendations and information to the Owner regarding the 
allocation of responsibilities for safety programs among the Contractors.

§ 3.2.13 The Construction Manager shall provide recommendations to the Owner on the division of the Project into 
individual Contracts for the construction of various categories of Work, including the method to be used for selecting 



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

12

Contractors and awarding Contracts. The Construction Manager shall review the Drawings and Specifications and 
make recommendations as required to provide that (1) the Work of the Contractors is coordinated, (2) all requirements 
for the Project are assigned to the appropriate Contract, (3) the likelihood of jurisdictional disputes is minimized, and 
(4) proper coordination is provided for phased construction.  The Construction Manager is to provide to the Owner a 
schedule of all categories of Work that it recommends to be separately bid, along with the estimated cost of each. 
Efforts shall be made to avoid unnecessary Contractor to Subcontractor relationships, along with their resultant 
pyramiding Contractor mark-up costs, when such are not beneficial for the Owner.

§ 3.2.14 The Construction Manager shall expedite and coordinate the ordering and delivery of, products, materials and 
equipment in support of the schedule, including those that must be ordered in advance of construction.  The 
Construction Manager shall further ensure that cost estimates based on preliminary plans will include purchase 
recommendations on products, materials and/or equipment requiring long lead times and recommendations on early 
bid packages, pre-purchase of products, materials, equipment and systems of construction, which are to be 
incorporated into the Contract Documents, and other similar options.

§ 3.2.15 The Construction Manager shall assist the Owner and Architect in selecting, retaining, and coordinating the 
professional services of surveyors, geotechnical engineers, special consultants, and construction materials testing 
required for the Project.

§ 3.2.16 The Construction Manager shall provide an analysis of the types and quantities of labor required for the 
Project and review the availability of appropriate categories of labor required for critical phases. The Construction 
Manager shall make recommendations for actions designed to minimize adverse effects of labor shortages and adverse 
effects of supply chain issues for availability and delivery of products, materials and equipment.

§ 3.2.17 The Construction Manager shall assist the Owner in obtaining information regarding applicable requirements 
for equal employment opportunity programs, and other programs as may be required by governmental and quasi- 
governmental authorities for inclusion in the Contract Documents.

§ 3.2.18 Following the Owner’s approval of the Drawings and Specifications, the Construction Manager shall update 
and submit the latest estimate of the Cost of the Work and the Project schedule for the Architect’s review and the 
Owner’s approval.

§ 3.2.19 The Construction Manager, in consultation with the Owner and the Architect, shall develop bidders’ interest 
in the Project and establish bidding schedules. The Construction Manager shall assist the Owner and the Architect 
with the development of the Bidding Documents, which consist of bidding requirements and proposed Contract 
Documents. The Construction Manager, with the assistance of the Architect and in consultation with the Owner, shall 
prepare and issue Bidding Documents to bidders, prepare, publish and post necessary bid advertisements, and conduct 
pre-bid conferences with prospective bidders. The Construction Manager shall issue the current Project schedule with 
each set of Bidding Documents. The Construction Manager shall assist the Owner and Architect in:  (1) obtaining 
competitive bids; (2) confirming responsiveness of bids or proposals; (3) determining the successful bid or proposal, if 
any; and (4) recommending awards and preparing contracts for construction. The Construction Manager shall assist 
the Owner and Architect with regard to questions from bidders and with the issuance of addenda.  All bid documents 
shall include the modified form of construction contracts that will be used.  Said form shall be reviewed and approved 
by the Owner’s legal counsel prior to issuance of any bidding documents.  The Construction Manager (with the 
Architect’s assistance) shall include in the bidding documents a requirement that Contractors provide adequate 
training, manuals and facility systems information once the relevant portion of the Project is completed.  Construction 
Manager shall not distribute any bidding or procurement information to any third party without the Owner’s and/or 
Architect’s prior written approval.

§ 3.2.20 The Construction Manager shall develop and submit a list of prospective bidders to whom copies of the 
bidding documents are to be sent for the Architect’s review and the Owner’s approval (which submission shall not be 
construed to exclude other parties permitted to bid under applicable law). Additionally, the Construction Manager 
acknowledges that the services to be provided by the Construction Manager under this Agreement shall include 
assisting the Owner in complying with all of the Owner’s competitive bidding requirements under Sections 1267 and 
1274 of the Michigan Revised School Code, as amended.



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

13

§ 3.2.21 After the Owner receives bids, the Construction Manager, with the assistance of the Architect, shall review 
bids, prepare bid analyses, conduct post-bid interviews and make recommendations to the Owner for the Owner’s 
award of Contracts for Construction or rejection of bids.  When recommending awards to the Owner, it is the 
Construction Manager’s responsibility to confirm to the Owner in writing that the successful bidder is the "lowest 
responsible bidder" as that term is used in Attorney General Opinion, 1959-60, No. 3303, Vol. 1, p. 169. All references 
to Arbitration shall be removed from each AIA type contract prepared, including, but not limited to, Arbitration 
language within the Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor and the General Conditions of the 
Contract for Construction. The Construction Manager will conduct pre-award conferences with successful bidders and 
prepare the form of construction contract, which shall be subject to review by the Owner’s legal counsel.

§ 3.2.22 The Construction Manager, with the assistance of the Architect, shall prepare the Construction Contracts for 
the Owner’s review and approval utilizing the Owner-approved AIA A132-2019 and shall advise the Owner on the 
acceptability of Subcontractors and material suppliers proposed by Contractors.  The Construction Manager will 
prepare Construction Contracts that are in no way inconsistent with any provision of this Agreement or General 
Conditions which shall be subject to review and approval by the Owner’s legal counsel.

§ 3.2.23 The Construction Manager shall advise the Owner as to all building and special permits required for the 
Project and shall obtain all building permits and special permits for permanent improvements, except for permits 
required to be obtained directly by the Contractors. The Construction Manager shall verify that the Owner has paid 
applicable fees and assessments. The Construction Manager shall assist the Owner and Architect in filing documents 
required for the approvals of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project.  The Owner shall have the 
final authority as to which governmental authorities have jurisdiction over the Project as well as the extent to which 
they have jurisdiction over the Project. As such, the Construction Manager shall only file with governmental 
authorities the documents the Owner concurs should be so filed.

§ 3.2.24 Reserved.

§3.2.25 The Construction Manager shall keep the Architect and the Owner informed of any changes in requirements, 
general market conditions, supply chain, or in construction materials, systems or equipment as the Drawings and 
Specifications are developed.

§3.2.26 In the event that the lowest bid(s) relative to any Project(s) exceed(s) the funds appropriated for the Project or 
the final estimates provided by the Construction Manager, as approved by the Owner, the Construction Manager shall 
assist the Architect in consultation with and at the direction of the Owner, shall proceed in accordance with Section 6.5 
hereof, as part of the Construction Manager’s Basic Services with no additional cost to the Owner.

§ 3.3 Construction Phase
§ 3.3.1 The Construction Manager shall provide on-site administration of the Contracts for Construction in 
cooperation with the Architect as set forth below and in AIA Document A232™–2019, General Conditions of the 
Contract for Construction, Construction Manager as Adviser Edition, as modified for this Project or by this Agreement 
or as mutually agreed to by the Owner, Architect and Construction Manager. The terms of this Agreement shall 
control any inconsistencies between this Agreement and the General Conditions of the Contract. 

§ 3.3.2 The Construction Manager’s responsibility to provide Construction Phase Services commences with the award 
of any Contract for Construction and terminates 30 days after the date the Owner accepts the final Certificate for 
Payment, issued by the Architect or 30 days after final payment to all Contractors is due, whichever is earlier, except 
for those responsibilities detailed in Section 3.3.30 and Article 12.

§ 3.3.3 The Construction Manager shall provide a staffing plan to include one or more representatives who shall be in 
attendance at the Project site whenever the Work is being performed.

§ 3.3.4 The Construction Manager shall provide administrative, management and related services to coordinate 
scheduled activities and responsibilities of the Contractors with each other and with those of the Construction 
Manager, the Owner and the Architect. The Construction Manager shall coordinate the activities of the Contractors in 
accordance with the latest approved Project schedule and the Contract Documents.  Such duties shall include 
verification that all necessary submittals of the Contractors, including but not limited to insurance certificates and 
performance/payment bonds, are timely received from the Contractors and are in compliance with the Contract 



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

14

Documents.  The Construction Manager shall verify all insurance certificates are current, correct and kept up-to-date 
throughout the term of this Agreement.  The Construction Manager shall also maintain a record of individual 
insurances to verify that all Contractors are and stay in compliance.  The Construction Manager shall provide 
sufficient organization, personnel and management to carry out the requirements of this Agreement. The Owner 
reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to remove or change any of the Construction Manager’s personnel. Prior to 
actual removal and/or substitution, the Owner shall notify the Construction Manager of its intent to remove such 
employee and the Construction Manager shall replace such employee as soon as reasonably possible with an employee 
which the Owner deems acceptable.

§ 3.3.5 The Construction Manager shall review and analyze the construction schedules provided by the Contractors to 
update the Project schedule, in writing, at least monthly, or as otherwise agreed to by the parties, incorporating the 
activities of the Owner, Architect, and Contractors on the Project, including activity sequences and durations, 
allocation of labor and materials, processing of Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, and delivery and 
procurement of products, materials and equipment, including those that must be ordered in advance of construction. 
The Project schedule shall include the Owner’s occupancy requirements showing portions of the Project having 
occupancy priority. The Construction Manager shall update and reissue the Project schedule as required to show 
current conditions. If an update indicates that the previously approved Project schedule may not be met, the 
Construction Manager shall recommend corrective action, if any, to the Owner and Architect.

§ 3.3.6 The Construction Manager shall schedule and conduct meetings at least biweekly with the Owner and other 
relevant parties to discuss matters such as procedures, progress, coordination, and scheduling of the Work, and to 
develop solutions to issues identified. The Construction Manager shall prepare and promptly distribute minutes to the 
Owner, Technology Designer, other consultants of Owner, Architect and Contractors.

§ 3.3.7 In accordance with the Contract Documents and the latest approved Project schedule, and utilizing information 
from the Contractors, the Construction Manager shall review, analyze, schedule and coordinate the overall sequence 
of construction and assignment of space in areas where the Contractors are performing Work.  If an error or omission 
is not detected until the Construction Phase, and if correction of the error or the incorporation of the omitted item or 
feature should reasonably been installed prior to other work, but the Construction Manager’s sequence of construction 
was incorrect, then the cost of removal and/or reconstruction/installation required to begin incorporation of the 
omitted item or correction of an error shall be borne by the Construction Manager.  If an error or omission is not 
detected until the Construction Phase due to the negligence of Construction Manager, and if correction of the error or 
the incorporation of the omitted item or feature should reasonably been installed prior to other Work, were it not for 
the negligence of Construction Manager, then the cost of removal and/or reconstruction/installation required to begin 
incorporation of the omitted item or correction of an error shall be borne by the Construction Manager.  However, 
Construction Manager shall not be responsible for errors or omissions resulting from its reliance upon the information 
furnished by the Owner, the Owner’s consultants, its separate contractors, the Architect, the Architect’s consultants or 
their agents or employees.

§ 3.3.8 The Construction Manager shall coordinate all tests and inspections required by the Contract Documents or 
governmental authorities, observe the on-site testing and inspections, and arrange for the delivery of test and 
inspection reports to the Owner and Architect.  The Construction Manager shall notify the Owner and Architect of 
any/all noted deficiencies arising from the test results and inspections, and shall be responsible to coordinate with 
Owner’s testing agency to ensure all deficiencies are properly addressed in subsequent test reports and inspections and 
documented.

§ 3.3.9 The Construction Manager shall endeavor to obtain satisfactory performance from each of the Contractors. 
The Construction Manager shall recommend courses of action to the Owner when requirements of a Contract are not 
being fulfilled.

§ 3.3.10 The Construction Manager shall monitor and evaluate actual costs for activities in progress and estimates for 
uncompleted tasks and advise the Owner and Architect, at least monthly, and in writing, as to variances between actual 
costs and budgeted or estimated costs and how the same relate to the Owner’s fixed limit. If a Contractor is required to 
submit a Control Estimate, the Construction Manager shall meet with the Owner and Contractor to review the Control 
Estimate. The Construction Manager shall promptly notify the Contractor if there are any inconsistencies or 
inaccuracies in the information presented. The Construction Manager shall also report the Contractor’s cost control 
information to the Owner.



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

15

§ 3.3.11 The Construction Manager shall develop cash flow reports and forecasts for the Project and include them in 
the Construction Manager’s progress reports for review and approval by the Owner, on a monthly basis, and when 
requested by the Owner and advise the Owner and Architect as to variances between actual and budgeted estimated 
costs.

§ 3.3.12 The Construction Manager shall maintain accounting records on authorized Work performed under unit costs, 
additional Work performed on the basis of actual costs of labor and materials, and other Work requiring accounting 
records.  The Construction Manager agrees that the Owner or any of its duly authorized representatives shall, for a 
period not less than seven (7) years from the date of Substantial Completion, have access to and the right to examine 
where pertinent to verifying the Cost of the Work or other items reimbursed to Contractor under the Agreement on the 
basis of costs, books, documents, records, contracts, correspondence, instructions, receipts, vouchers, purchase orders, 
memoranda, papers, and all other records of the Construction Manager related to the Agreement for any reason.

The Construction Manager’s accounting and control systems shall be satisfactory to the Owner. The Owner and the 
Owner’s auditors shall, during regular business hours and upon reasonable notice, be afforded access to, and shall be 
permitted to audit and copy, the Construction Manager’s records and accounts, including complete documentation 
supporting accounting entries, books, correspondence, instructions, drawings, receipts, subcontracts, Subcontractor’s 
proposals, purchase orders, vouchers, memoranda and other data relating to this Agreement.  

§ 3.3.12.1 The Construction Manager shall develop and implement procedures for the review and processing of 
Applications for Payment by Contractors for progress and final payments.  Included in Construction Phase Services 
below in Section 11.1.2.

§ 3.3.12.2 At intervals appropriate to the Project and Contract Documents, but not less than monthly, the Construction 
Manager shall review and certify to the Owner, after consulting with the Architect, the amounts due the respective 
Contractors as follows:

.1 Where there is only one Contractor responsible for performing the Work, the Construction Manager 
shall, within seven days after the Construction Manager receives the Contractor’s Application for 
Payment, review the Application, certify the amount the Construction Manager determines is due the 
Contractor, and forward the Contractor’s Application and Certificate for Payment to the Architect and 
Owner. 

.2 Where there is more than one Contractor responsible for performing different portions of the Project, 
the Construction Manager shall, within seven days after the Construction Manager receives each 
Contractor’s Application for Payment: (1) review the Applications and certify the amount the 
Construction Manager determines is due each Contractor; (2) prepare a Summary of Contractors’ 
Applications for Payment by summarizing information from each Contractor’s Application for 
Payment; (3) prepare a Project Application and Certificate for Payment; (4) certify the total amount the 
Construction Manager determines is due all Contractors collectively; and (5) forward the Summary of 
Contractors’ Applications for Payment and Project Application and Certificate for Payment to the 
Architect and Owner.

§ 3.3.12.3 The Construction Manager’s certification for payment shall constitute a representation to the Owner, based 
on the Construction Manager’s visits, inspections and evaluations of the Work and on the data comprising the 
Contractors’ Applications for Payment, that the Work has progressed to the point indicated and, that to the best of the 
Construction Manager’s knowledge, information and belief, the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract 
Documents, and the Contractors are entitled to payment in the amount certified. The foregoing representations are 
subject to (1) an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract Documents upon Substantial Completion; 
(2) results of subsequent tests and inspections; (3) correction of minor deviations from the Contract Documents will be 
corrected during punch-list activities, to the reasonable satisfaction of the Owner; and (4) specific qualifications 
expressed by the Construction Manager. The issuance of a Certificate for Payment shall further constitute a 
recommendation to the Architect and Owner that the Contractor be paid the amount certified.

§ 3.3.12.4 The certification of an Application for Payment or a Project Application for Payment by the Construction 
Manager shall not be a representation that the Construction Manager has reviewed construction means, methods, 
techniques, procedures, or sequences for a Contractor’s own Work but shall be a representation that sworn statements 



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

16

have been received and reviewed by the Construction Manager from Subcontractors and suppliers in order to 
substantiate each Contractor’s right to payment.

§ 3.3.12.5 The Owner intends to establish a joint escrow account with the Construction Manager for purposes of 
allowing the Construction Manager to facilitate the distribution of payments to the Contractors.  The Owner will 
provide the Construction Manager two (2) checks each month:  1) one for all of the Contractors’ payments due and 
owing; and 2) one for the Construction Manager’s compensation then due and owing.  As part of Basic Services, the 
Construction Manager shall, on a monthly basis, unless otherwise agreed to by the Owner, provide to the Owner a list 
of Contractors to be paid and in what exact amount(s).  When the Construction Manager provides the Owner with such 
list, it indicates to the Owner that both the Architect and Construction Manager have reviewed and confirmed the 
Work provided to date and the progress made under each individual Contractor’s contract in accordance with 
Paragraphs 3.3.12.3 and 3.3.12.4 above.  When the Owner provides a check to the Construction Manager in the 
amount(s) requested, it is understood and acknowledged by the Construction Manager that such check is being held 
"in trust" by the Construction Manager only to pay the Owner’s Contractors in the amounts indicated, except the 
amount that relates directly to the Construction Manager’s Compensation will not be deemed to be held "in trust".  The 
interest on such account belongs to the Owner.  The Construction Manager shall also provide a "crime insurance 
policy" or provide an endorsement to its Certificate(s) of Insurance which in essence provides the same coverage with 
minimum limits of $5,000,000.00 and the same shall be provided to the Owner as a reimbursable General Condition 
Item.  Construction Manager will issue payment to the Owner upon payment under the applicable third-party portion 
of the Crime Insurance Policy.  Additionally, the Owner shall be named as loss payee on such policy to the extent 
permissible, at no additional cost to the Owner.

§ 3.3.13 The Construction Manager shall receive and review the safety programs developed and implemented by each 
Contractor for purposes of coordinating the safety programs with those of the other Contractors and for making 
recommendations for any additional safety measures to be considered in the Work of the Contractors. The 
Construction Manager will also conduct regular periodic safety inspections and timely inform both the Owner and the 
Contractors of any unsafe conditions discovered during these inspections or disclosed to Construction Manager at any 
time, and shall direct the relevant Contractor to correct such conditions. The Construction Manager’s responsibilities 
for coordination of safety programs shall not extend to direct control over or charge of the acts or omissions of the 
Contractors, Subcontractors, agents or employees of the Contractors or Subcontractors, or any other persons 
performing portions of the Work and not directly employed by the Construction Manager nor shall they in any way 
waive, limit or excuse the Contractor’s full duty and liability with respect to its performance of the Work.

§ 3.3.14 The Construction Manager shall determine that the Work of each Contractor is being performed in 
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents and endeavor to guard the Owner against defects and 
deficiencies in the Work.  The duties and responsibilities of the Construction Manager shall in no way waive, limit or 
excuse the Contractor’s full duty and liability with respect to its performance of the Work and its obligations to the 
Owner under the Contract Documents.  In order to make such determination, the Construction Manager shall assign a 
representative of the Construction Manager to the Project who will be present while Work is in progress, and on-site to 
inspect the site and Work, as often as necessary and appropriate to the stage of construction, to familiarize the 
Construction Manager with the progress and quality of the Work and to determine for the Owner’s benefit and 
protection if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents and construction schedule, and shall 
provide prompt notice in writing to the Owner and Architect of any major or material deviations from the Contract 
Documents in the Work. The Construction Manager shall provide services at no additional cost, made necessary by 
major defect or deficiencies in the Work of the Contractor(s) which, through reasonable care, should have been 
discovered by the Construction Manager and promptly reported to the Owner and the Contractor(s), but which the 
Construction Manager failed to so discover and/or report with the understanding that in some instances it may be 
difficult for the Construction Manager to evaluate for example, pre-fabricated equipment, as the Construction 
Manager cannot physically evaluate such a piece of equipment before it is installed in the Project. 

The Construction Manager shall have the authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents 
and shall consult with and timely notify the Architect about the rejection. The Construction Manager shall promptly 
notify the Owner in writing of the intent to reject such Work and shall reject such nonconforming Work unless the 
Owner stops the Architect and the Construction Manager in writing within twenty-four (24) hours after being notified.  
Upon rejection, the Construction Manager shall direct the Contractor(s) to take appropriate corrective action and 
advise the Owner of the corrective action.  The failure of the Construction Manager to reject Work shall not constitute 
acceptance of the Work. The Construction Manager shall record any rejection of Work in its daily log and include 



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

17

information regarding the rejected Work in its progress reports to the Architect and Owner pursuant to Section 
3.3.22.1. Upon written authorization from the Owner, in conjunction with the Architect, the Construction Manager 
may require and make arrangements for additional inspection or testing of the Work in accordance with the provisions 
of the Contract Documents, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed or completed, and the Construction 
Manager shall give timely notice to the Architect and Owner of when and where the tests and inspections are to be 
made so that the Architect may be present for such procedures.

For purposes of this Agreement, the term "inspect" shall be defined as the evaluation of construction and materials 
used therein, sufficient to permit the Construction Manager to render his or her professional opinion as to the Work 
conforming with the Contract Documents.

§ 3.3.15 The Construction Manager shall advise and consult with the Owner and Architect during the performance of 
its Construction Phase Services. The Construction Manager shall have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to 
the extent expressly authorized by law and provided in this Agreement. The Construction Manager shall not have 
control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or 
for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work of each of the Contractors, since these are solely the 
Contractor’s rights and responsibilities under the Contract Documents provided that on the basis of its on-site 
inspections, the Construction Manager has reported to the Owner any construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences or procedures that do not appear to conform with industry standards, and has also reported to the Owner any 
Work that appears not to be in conformance with the Contract Documents. The Construction Manager shall not be 
responsible for a Contractor’s failure to perform the Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract 
Documents. The Construction Manager shall be responsible for the Construction Manager’s negligent acts or 
omissions, but shall not have control over or charge of, and shall not be responsible for, acts or omissions of the 
Owner, the Owner’s consultants, its Separate Contractors, or any Contractors, Subcontractors, the Architect, the 
Architect’s consultants or their agents or employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.

§ 3.3.16 The Construction Manager shall transmit to the Architect and Owner requests for interpretations, and requests 
for information of the meaning and intent of the Drawings and Specifications, and provide its written 
recommendation. The Construction Manager shall assist in the resolution of questions that may arise.

§ 3.3.17 The Construction Manager shall review requests for changes, assist in negotiating Contractors’ proposals, 
submit recommendations to the Architect and Owner, and, if the proposed changes are accepted and approved by the 
Architect and the Owner, prepare Change Orders or Construction Change Directives that incorporate the Architect’s 
modifications to the Contract Documents. All Change Order requests must contain a detailed proposal from the 
Contractor, and Subcontractor or Supplier backup as well as any other supporting documentation such as RFI’s, field 
change authorizations ("FCAs"), submittals, test reports, photos, signed time and materials sheets, as required, etc. to 
substantiate and properly support the Change Order request.  The Construction Manager will create, update and 
provide to the Owner a numbered change order log in conjunction with each Contractors’ submitted progress reports 
and shall contemporaneously review all changes and potential changes in the Work with the Owner and Architect for 
reason, cost, cause and responsibility.  The Change Order log shall be provided to the Owner and Architect, at least 
monthly, or as otherwise agreed to by the parties, and shall include all appropriate back-up and support 
documentation.

§ 3.3.18 The Construction Manager shall assist the Initial Decision Maker in the review, evaluation and 
documentation of Claims.

§ 3.3.19 Utilizing the submittal schedules provided by each Contractor, the Construction Manager shall prepare, and 
revise as necessary, a Project submittal schedule incorporating information from the Owner, Owner’s consultants, 
Owner’s separate contractors and vendors, governmental agencies, and all other participants in the Project. The 
Project submittal schedule and any revisions shall be submitted to the Architect for approval.

§ 3.3.20 The Construction Manager shall promptly review all Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and other 
submittals from the Contractors for compliance with the submittal requirements of the Contract, coordinate submittals 
with information contained in related documents, and transmit to the Architect those that the Construction Manager 
recommends for approval. The Construction Manager’s actions shall be taken in accordance with the Project submittal 
schedule approved by the Architect, and in all instances, with such reasonable promptness as to cause no delay in the 
critical path of the Work and without financial impact to the Owner or in the activities of the Contractors, the Owner, 



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

18

or the Architect.  The Construction Manager will evaluate the cost of substitutions proposed by Contractors.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Construction Manager understands that thirty (30) days shall be the allocated 
timeline for the Architect’s initial review of complete submittals. If submittals are improperly formatted, do not 
include the minimum information required of Architect, not reviewed by Construction Manager or otherwise deemed 
incomplete, the Architect will not review such submittal. In such event, the Construction Manager must remove 
submittal from online platform, re-assemble information and re-confirm that it is complete. Once confirmation is 
received that submittal is now complete, the Architect will initiate initial review. Re-submittals shall also allocate 
thirty (30) days for Architect’s subsequent review.

§ 3.3.20.1 If professional design services or certifications by a design professional related to systems, products, 
materials, or equipment are specifically required of the Contractors by the Contract Documents, the Construction 
Manager shall review those submittals for sequencing, constructability, and coordination impacts on the other 
Contractors. The Construction Manager shall discuss its findings with the Owner and the Architect, and coordinate 
resolution, as necessary, of any such impacts.

§ 3.3.21 The Construction Manager shall keep a daily log containing a record of weather, each Contractor’s Work on 
the site, number of workers, identification of equipment, Work accomplished, problems encountered, delays, and 
other similar relevant data as the Owner may require. The log shall be available to the Owner and Architect.

§ 3.3.21.1 The Construction Manager shall collect, review for accuracy, and compile the Contractors’ daily logs; and 
include them in the Construction Manager’s reports prepared and submitted in accordance with section 3.3.21.2.

§ 3.3.21.2 The Construction Manager shall record the progress of the Project. On a monthly basis, or more frequently 
as agreed to, the Construction Manager shall submit written progress reports to the Owner and Architect, showing 
percentages of completion and other information identified below:

.1 Work completed for the period for each Contractor and the Project as a whole, including percentage of 
completions;

.2 Project schedule status;

.3 Submittal schedule and status report, including a summary of remaining and outstanding submittals;

.4 Request for information, Change Order, and Construction Change Directive status reports;

.5 Tests and inspection reports;

.6 Status reports of nonconforming and rejected Work; 

.7 Daily logs;

.8 Summaries of all Contractors’ Applications for Payment;

.9 Cumulative total of the Cost of the Work to date including the Construction Manager’s compensation 
and reimbursable expenses at the job site, if any; 

.10 Cash-flow and forecast reports;

.11 Photographs to document the progress of the Project;

.12 Status reports on permits and approvals of authorities having jurisdiction; and

.13 Any other items the Owner may require:

None

§ 3.3.21.3 In addition, for Projects constructed on the basis of the Cost of the Work, the Construction Manager shall 
include the following additional information in its progress reports:

.1 Contractors’ work force reports;

.2 Equipment utilization report;

.3 Cost summary, comparing actual costs to updated cost estimates; and

.4 Any other items as the Owner may require:

None

§ 3.3.22 The Construction Manager and each Contractor shall maintain at the Project site, a copy of all Contract 
Documents, including Contracts, Project Schedule, Drawings, Specifications, addenda, Change Orders, Construction 
Change Directives, and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to indicate field changes and 
selections made during construction, and the approved Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, purchases, materials, 
equipment, applicable handbooks, maintenance and operating manuals and instructions and similar required 



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

19

submittals. These shall be in electronic form or paper copy, available to the Owner, Architect, and Contractors. Upon 
completion of the Project, the Construction Manager shall deliver them to the Owner.

§ 3.3.23 The Construction Manager shall arrange for the delivery, storage, protection and security of 
Owner-purchased materials, systems and equipment that are a part of the Project until such items are incorporated into 
the Work.  Costs of storage, protection and security for Owner purchased items shall be paid for by the Owner, if 
approved in advance and in writing by the Owner.

§ 3.3.24 With the Architect, the Owner’s maintenance personnel, and the Owner’s Commissioning Agent, if any, the 
Construction Manager shall arrange, observe, coordinate and facilitate the Contractors’ final testing and start-up of 
utilities, operational systems and equipment and observe any commissioning as the Contract Documents may require.

§ 3.3.25 When the Construction Manager considers each Contractor’s Work or a designated portion thereof 
substantially complete, the Construction Manager shall, in addition to or in conjunction with that Contractor, prepare 
for the Architect a list of incomplete or unsatisfactory items and a schedule for their completion. The Construction 
Manager shall assist the Architect in conducting inspections to determine whether the Work or designated portion 
thereof is substantially complete.

§ 3.3.26 When the Work of all of the Contractors, or designated portion thereof, is substantially complete, the 
Construction Manager shall obtain and review a certificate of substantial completion prepared by the Contractor, or 
prepare a Certificate of Substantial Completion, and the Construction Manager and the Architect shall execute, a 
Certificate of Substantial Completion. The Construction Manager shall submit the executed Certificate to the Owner 
for approval and execution and then to Contractors. The Construction Manager shall coordinate the correction and 
completion of the Work with the assistance of the Owner and the Architect. Following issuance of a Certificate of 
Substantial Completion of the Work or a designated portion thereof, the Construction Manager shall perform an 
inspection to confirm the completion of the Work of the Contractors and make recommendations to the Architect 
when the Work of all of the Contractors is ready for final inspection. The Construction Manager shall assist the 
Architect in conducting the final inspection.

§ 3.3.27 The Construction Manager shall forward to the Owner, with a copy to the Architect, the following 
information received from the Contractors: (1) certificates of insurance ; (2) consent of surety or sureties, if any, to 
reduction in or partial release of retainage or the making of final payment; (3) affidavits, receipts, releases and waivers 
of liens or bonds indemnifying the Owner against liens; and (4) any other documentation required of the Contractors 
under the Contract Documents, including warranties, As-Designed record drawings and similar submittals.  The 
Construction Manager shall review and provide marked-up prints, drawings, and other data furnished by contractors to 
the Architect for inclusion in As-Designed record drawings.

§ 3.3.28 The Construction Manager shall coordinate receipt, and delivery to the Owner, of other items provided by the 
Contractors, such as keys, manuals, and record drawings. The Construction Manager shall forward to the Architect a 
final Project Application for Payment and Project Certificate for Payment, or a final Application for Payment and final 
Certificate for Payment for each Contractor, upon each Contractor’s compliance with the requirements of the Contract 
Documents.  When the Construction Manager provides the Owner with a Contractor’s request for Final Payment, it 
shall be an indication to the Owner that the requested Contractor has satisfactorily completed the Work in accordance 
with the Contract Documents.  In addition the Construction Manager will provide to the Owner the marked-up prints, 
drawings, and other data furnished by Contractors to the Architect for inclusion in As-Designed record drawings.

§ 3.3.29 Duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of the Construction Manager as set forth in the Contract 
Documents shall not be restricted, modified or extended without written consent of the Owner.

§ 3.3.30 As part of its Basic Services, the Construction Manager shall review and discuss the comprehensive list of 
items to be corrected by Contractor (a "Warranty List") prepared by the Architect with the Owner at twenty-three (23) 
months following the Date of Substantial Completion.  Construction Manager will assist the Owner in resolving such 
Warranty List, as necessary, and will provide call-back services related to such outstanding issues, facility operations 
and performance for a period of twenty-four (24) months following the date of Substantial Completion.  In the event 
that the actual resolution of the warranty item extends past the twenty-four (24) months following the date of 
Substantial Completion, Construction Manager shall fulfill its obligations under this Section 3.3.30 so long as the 
Owner requested a resolution to the specific warranty item prior to the expiration of the aforementioned time period. 



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

20

§ 3.3.31 To the extent required by law or as required by the Owner, the Construction Manager shall require and ensure 
each Prime Contractor for each separately bid portion of the Work, under its Standard Form of Agreement Between 
the Owner and Contractor, to obtain and maintain a performance bond and payment bond in an amount covering that 
Prime Contractor in a form and with a surety acceptable to the Owner in connection with its obligations thereunder.  
The amount of each bond shall be equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Sum.   The Construction 
Manager shall deliver the required bonds to the Owner at least three (3) days before the commencement of any Work 
at the Project site.

§ 3.3.32 The Architect is required under its contract with the Owner to prepare or provide a set of reproducible 
As-Designed record drawings showing changes in the Work made during construction based on marked-up prints, 
drawings and other data furnished by the Contractor(s) through the Construction Manager to the Architect, as well as 
providing the Architect with its own trailer set of marked-up prints and drawings, including, but not limited to, the 
location of water, sewer, telephone, electric, gas, video, data and any other utility lines. The Construction Manager 
shall verify these drawings as accurate; provided the Construction Manager’s verification shall be made to the best of 
the Construction Manager’s knowledge.  These drawings shall be submitted to the Architect within sixty (60) days of 
Project closeout and prior to Final Payment.

§ 3.3.33 As a part of its Basic Services, the Construction Manager shall assist the Owner and the Architect in 
determining existing conditions.

§ 3.3.34 As a part of its Basic Services, the Construction Manager shall assist the Owner and the Architect in the 
planning and sequencing of construction activities in order to accommodate necessary work during occupancy in a 
manner acceptable to the Owner.

§ 3.3.35 As a part of its Basic Services, the Construction Manager shall assist the Owner in the event of the termination 
or default of the Architect or Contractor and by major defects or deficiencies in the work of the Architect or 
Contractor.  This includes taking necessary measures to meet the Project schedule and budget.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing:  

.1 The Construction Manager Basic Services does not prohibit the Owner from requiring the surety, if 
any, to reimburse the Construction Manager/Owner for such services performed due to such default; 
and

.2 This provision shall not apply in the event the Construction Manager makes a recommendation of a 
Contractor to the Owner and the Owner elects to select a different Contractor.

§ 3.3.36 On the basis of its regular on-site inspections, Construction Manager will report to the Owner any observed 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures that do not appear to conform with industry 
standards, and shall also report to Owner any work that appears not to be in conformance with the Contract Documents 
or deficient in the quality of workmanship.

§ 3.3.37 The Construction Manager shall provide daily full-time on-site field supervision during the entire 
Construction Phase when the Work is being performed.  The Owner reserves the right to approve the Construction 
Manager’s field supervisor, and to require the replacement of the field supervisor upon two (2) weeks’ notice. 

§ 3.3.38 The Construction Manager shall inspect the Work of the Contractors on the Project as it is being performed to 
confirm that the work performed and the materials furnished are in accordance with the Contract Documents and that 
Work on the Project is progressing on schedule.  In the event that the quality control testing should indicate that the 
Work, as installed, does not meet the requirements of this Project, the Architect shall determine the extent of the Work 
that does not meet the requirements and the Construction Manager shall direct the Contractor(s) to take appropriate 
corrective action, and advise the Owner of the corrective action.

§ 3.3.39 The following shall be provided by the Construction Manager as a part of its Basic Services: 
(1) Preparation of documentation for alternate bid or proposal requests proposed by the Owner
(2) Preparation for, or attendance at,  public presentations, meetings or hearings
(3) Assistance to the Initial Decision Maker, if other than the Architect



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

21

(4) All necessary fast-tracking, equipment and material expediting and bid-packaging deemed necessary in 
order to meet the Owner’s schedule.

§ 3.3.40 As the Architect progresses through Schematic Design, Design Development and Construction Documents, 
the Construction Manager shall prepare and update the Cost of the Work estimates, as provided in the Project 
Preconstruction Schedule, with increasing detail and refinement in order to assure the Owner that the Project scope 
can be accomplished within the Owner’s established Project budget.  The Construction Manager shall provide the Cost 
of the Work estimates within the standard of care of the profession aiming to ensure that the estimates are as accurate 
as possible given the information available at the time. The Cost of the Work estimates are intended to assist the 
Owner and/or the Architect in planning and designing the Work, recognizing that actual costs may vary and are subject 
to change based on market conditions, final design, and other factors beyond the Construction Manager’s control.  

§ 3.3.41 The Construction Manager shall require in each Project Manual/Bid Package that it issues on behalf of the 
Owner that each Contractor certifies to the Owner that no owner, employee, agent, representative, contractor and/or 
other personnel of the Contractor will be on any School District premises if they are a registered criminal sexual 
offender under the Sex Offenders Registration Act, Public Act 295 of 1994, or have been convicted of "Listed 
Offense" as defined under Section 722 of the Sex Offenders Registration Act, MCL 28.722 (the "Certification").  This 
Certification shall be accomplished through obtaining an Affidavit Of Compliance – Criminal Background Checks, in 
a form approved by the Owner.  Additionally, the Construction Manager shall also obtain such Certification from each 
owner/employee of the Construction Manager who will work on the Project and be on site at any of the Owner’s 
facilities.

§ 3.3.42 It is acknowledged by the Construction Manager that a substantial portion of the Project shall consist of the 
acquisition and implementation of technology.  In that regard, the Owner agrees to directly contract for and utilize the 
services of a technology designer in connection with designing the technology system.  However, the Construction 
Manager agrees that it will coordinate the integration of the technology installation with the entire construction 
Project.

§ 3.3.43 The Construction Manager shall coordinate the submission of all close-out documents for the Architect’s 
review, which close-out documents will be prepared by the Contractors and submitted to the Construction Manager for 
its review.  Immediately following the Architect’s review and approval, the Construction Manager shall provide the 
Owner with one (1) paper copy and one (1) electronic copy of all close-out information. The Construction Manager is 
responsible to require and ensure that As-Designed Record documents from the following Contractors are provided: 
mechanical, plumbing, electrical and site utilities. Additionally, the Owner shall also be provided with a copy of a 
complete electronic file from the Project including RFI’s, submittals, Construction Documents including Addenda, 
bulletins, ASI’s, Drawings, Specifications, Change Documents and Project Manuals. Close-out documents shall 
include but are not limited to operations manuals, warranties, videos of training sessions, permit information and 
approvals.

§ 3.3.44 Prior to the termination of the Construction Manager’s services, the Construction Manager shall be prepared 
to serve and shall serve when requested by the Owner as a witness in connection with any public hearing, arbitration 
proceeding, legal proceeding or administrative law proceeding to which the Owner or the Construction Manager is a 
party concerning the Project as part of its Basic Services.

ARTICLE 4   BASIC SERVICES
§ 4.1 Basic Services
§ 4.1.1 Basic Services identified as Construction Manager’s responsibility are listed in the table below are  included in 
Basic Services and are required for the Project. The Construction Manager shall provide the listed Services only if 
specifically designated in the table below as the Construction Manager’s responsibility, and the Owner shall 
compensate the Construction Manager as provided in Section 11.1.2. Unless otherwise specifically addressed in this 
Agreement, if neither the Owner nor the Construction Manager is designated, the parties agree that the listed Service is 
not being provided for the Project.
(Designate the Construction Manager’s Basic Services and the Owner’s Services required for the Project by 

indicating whether the Construction Manager or Owner shall be responsible for providing the identified Service. 

Insert a description of the Services in Section 4.1.2 below or attach the description of services as an exhibit to this 

Agreement.)



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

22

Supplemental Services Responsibility
(Construction Manager, Owner or

Not Provided)

§ 4.1.1.1 Measured drawings Owner’s Architect  

§ 4.1.1.2 Tenant-related services Not Provided

§ 4.1.1.3 Commissioning
Owner, Construction Manager shall 
assist and coordinate

§ 4.1.1.4 Development of a commissioning plan
Owner, Construction Manager shall 
assist and coordinate

§ 4.1.1.5 Sustainable Project Services Not Provided

§ 4.1.1.6 Furniture, furnishings and equipment delivery, and installation 
coordination

Construction Manager shall 
coordinate for scheduling purposes 
with Owner’s Architect

§ 4.1.1.7 Furniture, furnishings and equipment procurement assistance Owner’s Architect

§ 4.1.1.8 Assistance with site selection Not Provided

§ 4.1.1.9 Assistance with selection of the Architect Not Provided

§ 4.1.1.10 Furnish land survey Owner

§ 4.1.1.11 Furnish geotechnical engineering services Owner

§ 4.1.1.12 Provide insurance advice Not Provided

§ 4.1.1.13 Provide supplemental Project risk analysis and mitigation 
strategies

Construction Manager

§ 4.1.1.14 Stakeholder relationships management Owner

§ 4.1.1.15 Owner moving procurement and coordination services
Construction Manager through a RFP 
process

§ 4.1.1.16 Coordination of Owner’s separate contractors Construction Manager

§ 4.1.1.17 Other Supplemental Services Not Provided

(Row deleted)

§ 4.1.2 Description of Supplemental Services
§ 4.1.2.1 A description of each Supplemental Service identified in Section 4.1.1 as the Construction Manager’s 
responsibility is provided below.
(Describe in detail the Construction Manager’s Supplemental Services identified in Section 4.1.1 or, if set forth in an 

exhibit, identify the exhibit.)

 N/A 

§ 4.1.2.2 A description of each Supplemental Service identified in Section 4.1.1 as the Owner’s responsibility is 
provided below.
(Describe in detail the Owner’s Supplemental Services identified in Section 4.1.1 or, if set forth in an exhibit, identify 

the exhibit.)

N/A  

§ 4.1.3 Reserved.

§ 4.2 Construction Manager’s Additional Services
§ 4.2.1 The Construction Manager may provide Additional Services after execution of this Agreement, without 
invalidating this Agreement, if mutually agreed in writing prior to commencing such services, or if required by 
circumstances beyond the Construction Manager’s control. In the absence of mutual agreement in writing, the 
Construction Manager shall notify the Owner prior to providing Additional Services and secure Owner’s written 
approval prior to commencing such services. If the Owner deems that all or a part of such Additional Services is not 
required, the Owner shall give prompt written notice to the Construction Manager, and the Construction Manager shall 
not provide those services. Except for services required due to the fault of or caused by the Construction Manager, its 
employees, agents and Construction Manager’s consultants acts, errors and/or omissions, any Additional Services 
provided in accordance with this Section 4.2 shall entitle the Construction Manager to compensation pursuant to 
Section 11.3.  If, however, services described in this Section 4.2 are required due to circumstances within the 
reasonable control of the Construction Manager under this Agreement, such services shall be provided as a part of 



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

23

Basic Services.  Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, no compensation shall be paid to the Construction 
Manager for Additional Services that became necessary as a result of the Construction Manager’s breach of this 
Agreement or the professional negligence of the Construction Manager, its employees, agents, and Construction 
Manager’s consultants.

§ 4.2.2 Upon recognizing the need to perform the following Additional Services, the Construction Manager shall 
notify the Owner with reasonable promptness and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. The 
Construction Manager shall not proceed to provide the following Additional Services until the Construction Manager 
receives the Owner’s written authorization:

.1 Services necessitated by a material change in the initially agreed upon Project scope, previous 
instructions or approvals given by the Owner, or a material change in the Project including, but not 
limited to size, quality, complexity, the Owner’s schedule or budget for Cost of the Work, or 
procurement or delivery method;

.2 Services necessitated by the enactment or revision of codes, laws, regulations or official interpretations 
after the date of this Agreement;

.3 Services necessitated by the failure of performance on the part of the Owner or the Owner’s other 
consultants or contractors;

.4 Reserved;

.5 Reserved;

.6 Reserved;

.7 Consultation concerning replacement of Work resulting from fire or other cause during construction 
and furnishing services required in connection with the replacement of such Work when such changes 
are not the fault of or caused by the Construction Manager’s employees, agents and Construction 
Manager’s consultants negligent acts, errors, omissions, etc.; 

.8 Services required in an emergency to coordinate the activities of Contractors in the event of risk of 
personal injury or serious property damage, consistent with Section 3.3.13.

§ 4.2.3
(Paragraphs deleted)

Reserved.

§ 4.2.4 Except for services required under Section 3.3.30, Construction Phase Services provided more than ninety (90) 
days after the time frame established in Section 3.3.2, when such extension is not the fault or caused by the 
Construction Manager’s employees, agents and Construction Manager’s Consultants’ negligent acts, errors, 
omissions, etc. may be compensated as Additional Services to the extent the Construction Manager incurs additional 
cost in providing those Construction Phase Services and only to the extent the parties mutually agree in writing prior to 
the Construction Manager commencing such services.

§ 4.2.5 If the services covered by this Agreement have not been completed within sixty ( 60 ) months from the date of 
the sale of the Bonds, and if sold in separate series, from the date of the sale for that particular series, through no fault 
of, or in any way caused by, the Construction Manager, the extension and compensation of the Construction 
Manager’s services beyond that time shall be subject to negotiation by the parties.

ARTICLE 5   OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES
§ 5.1 Acknowledging the Owner’s status as a public body, and unless otherwise provided for under this Agreement, 
the Owner shall provide information reasonably requested by the Construction Manager in writing in a timely manner 
regarding requirements for and limitations on the Project, including a written program, which shall set forth the 
Owner’s objectives; schedule; constraints and criteria; special equipment; systems; Owner-furnished equipment, 
move-in schedule and site requirements.  The Construction Manager will notify the Owner when any such information 
that is time sensitive along with a reasonable time frame for the receipt of same. However, the failure by the Owner to 
furnish any information to the Construction Manager shall not relieve the Construction Manager of any liability 
hereunder, nor extend the time in which the Construction Manager is to perform such duties unless the Construction 
Manager notifies the Owner in writing that the lack of such information may impede the progress of the Project.

§ 5.2 The Owner shall provide a budget for the Project, based on consultation with the Architect and Construction 
Manager, including (1) the budget for the Cost of the Work as defined in Section 6.1; (2) the Owner’s other costs; and 



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

24

(3) reasonable contingencies related to all of these costs. The Owner shall update the Owner’s budget for the Project as 
necessary throughout the duration of the Project until final completion. 

§ 5.3 Reserved.

§ 5.4 The Owner shall retain an Architect to provide services, duties and responsibilities as described in AIA 
Document B132–2019, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect, Construction Manager as 
Adviser Edition, as modified between the Owner and Architect.  If requested by the Construction Manager, the Owner 
shall provide the Construction Manager with a copy of the scope of services in the agreement executed between the 
Owner and Architect.

§ 5.5 The Owner shall identify a representative authorized to act on the Owner’s behalf with respect to the Project 
subject to Owner’s parameters, which parameters, if any, shall be given to the Construction Manager in writing when 
such representative is designated. The Owner shall render decisions pertaining to documents the Construction 
Manager submits within a reasonable period of time in order to avoid unreasonable delay in the orderly and sequential 
progress of the Construction Manager’s services subject to the Owner’s policies which require Board action. The 
Construction Manager will notify the Owner when any such decisions are time sensitive along with a reasonable time 
frame for the receipt of same.  The Owner’s Designated Representative is identified in Section 1.1.9 above.

§ 5.6 When necessary for the Project and requested by the Construction Manager in writing, the Owner shall furnish, 
with assistance from the Architect and Construction Manager, surveys to describe physical characteristics, legal 
limitations and utility locations for the site of the Project, and a written legal description of the site if such surveys are 
reasonably required by the scope of the Project. The surveys and legal information shall include, as applicable, grades 
and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining property and structures; designated wetlands; adjacent drainage; 
rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries, and contours of the site; 
locations, dimensions, and other necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements and trees; and 
information concerning available utility services and lines, both public and private, above and below grade, including 
inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to a Project benchmark.

§ 5.7 When necessary for the Project and requested by the Construction Manager in writing, the Owner shall furnish, 
with the assistance from the Architect, services of geotechnical engineers, which may include but are not limited to 
test borings, test pits, determinations of soil bearing values, percolation tests, evaluations of hazardous materials, 
seismic evaluation, ground corrosion tests and resistivity tests, including necessary operations for anticipating subsoil 
conditions, with written reports and appropriate recommendations if such surveys are reasonably required by the 
scope of the Project.

§ 5.8 Reserved.

§ 5.9 Reserved.

§ 5.10 The Owner shall coordinate the services of its own consultants with those services provided by the Construction 
Manager. Upon the Construction Manager’s request, the Owner shall furnish copies of the scope of services in the 
contracts between the Owner and the Owner’s consultants. The Owner shall require that its consultants and contractors 
maintain insurance, including professional liability insurance, as appropriate to the services or work provided.

§ 5.11 The Owner shall furnish tests, inspections and reports required by law or the Contract Documents, such as 
structural, mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests for hazardous materials.

§ 5.12 The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing services, that may be 
reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner’s needs and interests. 

§ 5.13 The Owner shall provide prompt written notice to the Construction Manager and Architect if the Owner 
becomes aware of any fault or defect that it knows to be a fault or defect in the Project, including errors, omissions or 
inconsistencies in the Architect’s Instruments of Service or any fault or defect in the Construction Manager’s services 
but the Owner’s failure or omission to do so shall not relieve the Construction Manager of its responsibilities 
hereunder and the Owner shall have no duty of observation, inspection, or investigation.  The Construction Manager 



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

25

shall provide the Architect and the Owner prompt notice if it becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project or 
nonconformance with the Contract Documents.

§ 5.14 The Owner reserves the right to perform construction and operations related to the Project with the Owner’s 
own forces, and to award contracts in connection with the Project which are not part of the Construction Manager’s 
responsibilities under this Agreement. The Construction Manager shall notify the Owner if any such independent 
action will interfere with the Construction Manager’s ability to perform the Construction Manager’s responsibilities 
under this Agreement. 

§ 5.15 The Owner shall endeavor to communicate with the Contractors and the Construction Manager’s consultants 
through the Construction Manager about matters arising out of or relating to the Contract Documents. The Owner and 
Construction Manager shall include the Architect in all communications that relate to or affect the Architect’s services 
or professional responsibilities. 

§ 5.16 Reserved.

§ 5.17 The Owner shall provide the Construction Manager reasonable access to the Project site prior to 
commencement of the Work and shall obligate the Contractors to provide the Construction Manager reasonable access 
to the Work wherever it is in preparation or progress.

§ 5.18 Reserved.  

§ 5.19 The Owner shall require such its Contractors to: (a) indemnify the Construction Manager to the same extent the 
Owner is indemnified; and (b) include the Construction Manager as an additional insured on its liability coverages. 
This requirement shall not apply however, where the Owner has entered into a contract with the Contractor before 
execution of this Agreement or where the Owner determines it is not economically feasible to obtain such terms, and 
timely notifies the Construction Manager accordingly. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Construction Manager is 
responsible for putting together the Request For Proposals for the Project, so the onus is on the Construction Manager 
to ensure that this language is contained therein.

ARTICLE 6   COST OF THE WORK
§ 6.1 For purposes of this Agreement, the Not-To-Exceed limit of the Cost of the Work for the Project, including all 
hard construction costs, General Conditions, and contingency is detailed in 1.1.1 above.   Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, the Cost of the Work does NOT include the compensation of the Architect, its employees, agents or the 
Architect’s consultants, the Construction Manager, its employees, agents or the Construction Manager’s consultants 
or Construction Manager’s Personnel Reimbursable Rates, the costs of the land, rights-of-way, financing, other costs 
which are the responsibility of the Owner, such as Technology Designer, Project Financial Consultant, Project Market 
Study Consultant, Project Investment Banker, etc., and any other "soft costs" that are the responsibility of the Owner. 
Technology design services should not be included in the Construction Manager’s Scope of Work, except for 
coordination purposes.  If any portion of the Construction Manager’s compensation is based upon a percentage of the 
Cost of the Work, then, for the purpose of determining such portion, it shall not include the compensation of the 
Construction Manager, the Construction Manager’s consultants, Personnel Reimbursable Rates or Office General 
Condition Costs.  

§ 6.2 The Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work is fixed as set forth in Section 1.1.1 above, and may be adjusted 
throughout the Project as required under Sections 5.2 and 6.4. Evaluations of the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the 
Work, and the estimates of the Cost of the Work prepared by the Construction Manager, represent the Construction 
Manager’s best judgment as a person or entity familiar with the construction industry. It is recognized, however, that 
neither the Construction Manager nor the Owner has control over the cost of labor, materials; or equipment; the 
Contractors’ methods of determining bid prices; or competitive bidding, market, or negotiating conditions. 
Accordingly, the Construction Manager cannot and does not warrant or represent that bids will not vary from the 
Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, or from any estimate of the Cost of the Work, or evaluation, prepared or 
agreed to by the Construction Manager. The foregoing statement does not waive the fixed limit of the Cost of Work.

§ 6.3 If a discrepancy exists between the Construction Manager’s cost estimates and the Architect’s cost estimates, the 
Construction Manager and the Architect shall work together to reconcile the cost estimates.



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

26

§ 6.4 If at any time the Construction Manager’s estimate of the Cost of the Work exceeds the Owner’s budget for the 
Cost of the Work, the Construction Manager, in consultation with the Architect and as a Basic Service, shall make 
appropriate recommendations to the Owner to adjust the Project’s size, quality, or budget for the Cost of the Work.

§ 6.5 If the Construction Manager’s estimate of the Cost of the Work at the conclusion of any Phase exceeds the 
Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, the Owner shall

.1 give written approval of an increase in the budget for the Cost of the Work;

.2 in consultation with the Construction Manager and Architect, revise the Project program, scope, or 
quality as required to reduce the Cost of the Work (including any necessary rebidding); or

.3 implement any other mutually acceptable alternative.

§ 6.6 If the Owner chooses to revise the Project program, scope, or quality to reduce the Cost of the Work pursuant to 
Section 6.5.2, or if the bids or proposals received from the prospective Contractors, in the aggregate, exceed the 
Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, and the Owner chooses to revise the Project program, scope, or quality to 
reduce the Cost of the Work , the Construction Manager shall cooperate with the Owner and Architect to develop the 
necessary revisions, update the cost estimate, and obtain additional bids. The Construction Manager will perform the 
services described in Sections 6.4 and 6.6 as a Basic Service and without additional compensation.

ARTICLE 7   COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES
Unless otherwise stated conspicuously in writing, the Construction Manager, its employees, agents and the 
Construction Manager’s consultants, if any, shall not own or claim a copyright in the Instruments of Service. The 
Construction Manager and the Construction Manager’s consultants, if any, warrant that in transmitting Instruments of 
Service, or any other information, the transmitting party is the originator of such information or has permission from 
the copyright owner to transmit such information for its use on the Project or on subsequent projects.

ARTICLE 8   CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
§ 8.1 General
§ 8.1.1 The Owner and Construction Manager shall commence all claims and causes of action against the other and 
arising out of or related to this Agreement, whether in contract, tort, or otherwise, in accordance with the requirements 
of the dispute resolution method selected in this Agreement and within the period specified by applicable law.

§ 8.1.2 To the extent damages are covered by property insurance, the Owner and Construction Manager waive all 
rights against each other and against the contractors, consultants, agents, and employees of the other for damages, 
except such rights as they may have to the proceeds of such insurance as set forth in AIA Document A232–2019, 
General Conditions of the Contract for Construction as amended for this Project. The Owner or the Construction 
Manager, as appropriate, shall require of the contractors, consultants, agents, and employees of any of them, similar 
waivers in favor of the other parties enumerated herein.

§ 8.1.3 Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Construction Manager shall indemnify and hold 
harmless the Owner, its Board of Education, its Board Members, in their official and individual capacities, its 
administrators, employees, agents, contractors, successors and assigns, and its Architect from and against any and all 
claims, counter claims, suits, debts, demands, actions, judgments, liens, costs, expenses, damages, injuries and 
liabilities, including reasonable attorney’s fees and reasonable expert witness fees arising out of or in connection with 
Construction Manager’s performance of the services pursuant to this Agreement and/or from Construction Manager’s 
violation of any of the terms of the Agreement, including, but not limited to, and only to the extent caused by: (i) the 
negligent acts or willful misconduct of the Construction Manager, its officers, directors, employees, successors, 
assigns, contractors, consultants and agents; (ii) any breach of the terms of this Agreement by the Construction 
Manager, its officers, directors, employees, successors, assigns, contractors, consultants and agents; (iii) any violation 
or breach of any applicable Federal, State or local law, rule, regulation, ordinance, policy and/or licensing and 
permitting requirements applicable to providing the services; or (iv) any breach of any representation or warranty by 
the Construction Manager, its officers, directors, employees, successors, assigns, contractors, consultants and agents 
under this Agreement.  The Construction Manager shall notify the Owner by certified mail, return receipt requested, 
immediately upon actual knowledge of any claim, suit, action, or proceeding for which the Owner may be entitled to 
indemnification under this Agreement.  This Section shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this 
Agreement and shall not be limited by the Construction Manager’s insurance obligations contained in this Agreement.



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

27

§ 8.1.4 The Construction Manager and Owner waive consequential damages for claims, disputes, or other matters in 
question, arising out of or relating to this Agreement. This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all 
consequential damages due to either party’s termination of this Agreement, except as specifically provided in Section 
9.7.

§ 8.2 Alternative Dispute Resolution
§ 8.2.1 On those occasions when a dispute arises between the parties to this Agreement, the parties shall be compelled 
to seek an alternative means of resolving the dispute as a condition precedent to litigation.  Therefore, the parties agree 
to the following terms and conditions:  

§ 8.2.1.1   The party bringing a claim shall give notice to the other party and, in writing, propose a meeting within 
seven (7) days after the claim arises in which to discuss and attempt to resolve the claim.

§ 8.2.1.2  In the event the meeting between the parties to resolve the claim does not resolve the dispute or does not take 
place within said seven (7) day period, the parties shall designate, by mutual agreement, an independent mediator who 
shall convene a meeting of the parties within a period of fourteen (14) days of the later of the initial meeting between 
the parties or the date notice was given pursuant to Section 8.2.1.1.  The mediator shall render his/her decision within 
seven (7) days of said meeting.

§ 8.2.1.3 The purpose of the alternative dispute resolution is to attempt to resolve the dispute between the parties.  The 
mediator shall not be empowered with the authority to render a binding opinion or award.  The confidentiality of the 
alternative dispute resolution shall be governed by the Michigan Court Rules and the Michigan Rules of Evidence.

§ 8.2.1.4 In the event the independent mediator’s attempt to resolve the dispute between the parties fails, then each 
party will be free to pursue recovery of claims at law.

§ 8.2.1.5 During the pendency of this alternative dispute resolution process, the parties agree that the statute(s) of 
limitations applicable to all claims that are the subject of this process shall be tolled. 

§ 8.2.1.6 Should a party’s claim also concern claims against or by Contractor, Architect and/or Construction Manager, 
then Owner may include Contractor, Architect and/or Construction Manager in the alternative dispute resolution 
process.

§ 8.2.1.7 Construction Manager shall continue providing all services during any dispute, including during the 
alternative dispute resolution process, provided that the Construction Manager receives undisputed payments in 
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 8.2.2 Reserved.

§ 8.2.3 Reserved.

§ 8.2.4 If the parties do not resolve a dispute through the Alternate Dispute Resolution process pursuant to this Section 
8.2, the method of binding dispute resolution shall be the following: 
(Check the appropriate box.)

[  ] Arbitration pursuant to Section 8.3 of this Agreement

[  X  ] Litigation , unless otherwise mutually agreed to by the parties, subject to the venue requirements of 

Section 10.1

[  ] Other: (Specify)



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

28

§ 8.3 Reserved

(Paragraphs deleted)

§ 8.4 The provisions of this Article 8 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 9   TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION
§ 9.1 Except for payments reasonably disputed in good faith, if the Owner fails to make payments to the Construction 
Manager in accordance with this Agreement, such failure shall be considered substantial nonperformance and cause 
for termination or, at the Construction Manager’s option, cause for suspension of performance of services under this 
Agreement. If the Construction Manager elects to suspend services for this purpose, the Construction Manager shall 
give seven (7) days’ written notice to the Owner to cure within five (5) business days before suspending services. In 
the event of such a suspension of services, the Construction Manager shall have no liability to the Owner for delay or 
damage caused the Owner because of such suspension of services. Before resuming services, the Owner shall pay the 
Construction Manager all sums due prior to suspension.  When the Project is resumed, the Construction Manager may 
seek an equitable adjustment from the Owner for expenses incurred in the interruption and resumption of Construction 
Manager’s services.  However, if the parties cannot agree on the amount of the adjustment, Construction Manager 
follow the alternative dispute resolution procedure contained in Section 8.2 above.

§ 9.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Construction Manager shall be compensated for services performed prior 
to notice of such suspension.   When the Project is resumed, the Construction Manager may seek an equitable 
adjustment from the Owner for expenses incurred in the interruption and resumption of Construction Manager’s 
services.  However, if the parties cannot agree on the amount of the adjustment, Construction Manager follow the 
alternative dispute resolution procedure contained in Section 8.2 above.

§ 9.3 If the Owner suspends the entire Project (not individual projects) for more than one hundred eighty (180) 
cumulative days for reasons other than the fault of the Construction Manager, the Construction Manager may 
terminate this Agreement by giving not less than seven (7) days’ written notice.

§ 9.4 The Construction Manager may terminate this Agreement upon not less than thirty (30) days’ written notice to 
the Owner should the Owner fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no 
fault of the Construction Manager and only if the Owner fails to cure said default within thirty (30) days’ of written 
notice.

§ 9.5 The Owner may terminate this Agreement for cause after providing Construction Manager three days’ notice to 
cure should the Construction Manager fail to substantially perform in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.   
The Owner may also terminate this Agreement for any reason upon not less than seven (7) days’ written notice to the 
Construction Manager for the Owner’s convenience and without cause.  Should the Owner’s termination for cause be 
deemed improper, then such termination shall be treated as a termination for convenience. Should Owner terminate 
Construction Manager for cause, in the Owner’s sole discretion, the Owner shall be entitled to withhold payments 
otherwise due to Construction Manager, on this Project or other projects, and otherwise recover damages from the 
Construction Manager to cover damages, costs, expenses, and fees caused by the Construction Manager’s breaches, as 
well as costs and attorney fees incurred by the Owner to recover such damages.

§ 9.6 If the Owner terminates this Agreement for its convenience not the fault of the Construction Manager pursuant to 
Section 9.5, the Owner shall compensate the Construction Manager for Construction Manager’s Fee, Construction 
Manager Personnel Costs, General Condition Items, Office General Condition Costs and Construction Manager 
Insurance Fee associated with completed Work or partially completed Work in progress, prior to termination on a 
Project by-Project basis, reasonably incurred prior to termination.

§ 9.7 In addition to any amounts paid under Section 9.6, if the Owner terminates this Agreement for its convenience 
pursuant to Section 9.5, or the Construction Manager terminates this Agreement pursuant to Section 9.3, the Owner 
shall pay to the Construction Manager the following termination fee:
(Set forth below the amount of any termination fee, or the method for determining any termination fee.)

Zero ($0.00) Dollars  

§ 9.8 Reserved.



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

29

ARTICLE 10   MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
§ 10.1 This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the State of Michigan, without regard to any conflict of law 
principles.  In the event the parties resort to litigation, the parties hereby (1) irrevocably consent and submit to the 
jurisdiction of any Federal, state, county or municipal court sitting in the State of Michigan, County of Oakland, in 
respect to any action or proceeding brought therein concerning any matters arising out of or in any way relating to this 
Agreement; (2) expressly waive any rights pursuant to the laws of any other jurisdiction by virtue of which exclusive 
jurisdiction of the courts of any other jurisdiction might be claimed; (3) irrevocably waive all objections as to venue 
and any and all rights it may have to seek a change of venue with respect to any such action or proceeding; and (4) 
agree that any final judgment rendered in any such action or proceeding shall be conclusive and may be entered in any 
other jurisdiction by suit on the judgment or in any other manner provided by law and expressly consent to the 
affirmation of the validity of any such judgment by the courts of any other jurisdiction so as to permit execution 
thereon.  The Construction Manager shall incorporate the requirements of this choice of law and forum selection 
clause into all agreements with its Consultants and other persons or entities (of any tier) providing Project-related 
services who, as Project participants, are in direct or indirect privity with the Construction Manager.

§ 10.2 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in AIA Document A232–2019, General 
Conditions of the Contract for Construction, as modified for this Project, except for purposes of this Agreement, the 
term "Work" shall include the work of all Contractors under the administration of the Construction Manager.  In the 
event of any conflict between this Agreement and the General Conditions, this Agreement shall prevail.

§ 10.3 The Owner and Construction Manager, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns, and 
legal representatives to this Agreement. Neither the Owner nor the Construction Manager shall assign this Agreement 
without the written consent of the other.

§ 10.4 If the Owner requests the Construction Manager to execute certificates, the proposed language of such 
certificates shall be submitted to the Construction Manager for review at least seven (7) days prior to the requested 
dates of execution, unless circumstances require a shorter time frame. If the Owner requests the Construction Manager 
to execute consents reasonably required to facilitate assignment to a lender, the Construction Manager shall execute all 
such consents that are consistent with this Agreement, provided the proposed consent is submitted to the Construction 
Manager for review at least seven (7) days prior to execution. The Construction Manager shall not be required to 
execute certificates or consents that would require knowledge, services, or responsibilities beyond the scope of this 
Agreement.

§ 10.5 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with, or a cause of action in favor 
of, a third party against either the Owner or Construction Manager.

§ 10.6 Unless otherwise required in this Agreement, the Construction Manager shall have no responsibility for the 
discovery, presence, handling, removal or disposal of, or exposure of persons to, hazardous materials in any form at 
the Project site including but not limited to asbestos, asbestos products, polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) or other toxic 
substances or regulated substances or wastes (collectively referred to as "Hazardous Materials"), except as described 
in this Section.  It is, however, acknowledged by the Construction Manager that the Owner has disclosed to it that the 
school buildings and facilities which are the subject of the construction management services to be provided by the 
Construction Manager may contain Hazardous Materials.  It is further acknowledged that in implementing the 
construction Projects which may result from the Construction Manager’s services, as herein defined, the removal or 
treatment of such Hazardous Materials may become necessary before any construction is commenced.  The 
Construction manager shall not knowingly approve the use of any asbestos containing building material (ACBM) or 
any known hazardous building materials to be used in the construction of the Project.  Upon the issuance of the Final 
Certificate for Payment, the Construction Manager shall require each Contractor to certify to the Owner, Architect and 
Construction Manager that no ACBM or any known hazardous building materials were used in the construction of the 
Project. The Owner will provide written documentation to the Construction Manager regarding any such Hazardous 
Material of which it is aware, that it discovers, or that is made known to the Owner.  As a Basic Service, the 
Construction Manager will coordinate services of Hazardous Materials consultant(s) and/or contractor(s) with all 
other individuals or entities involved in the Project in an effort to minimize to the extent practicable disruption in the 
Project work and schedule, but shall not be responsible for the performance of such consultant and/or contractor.  The 
Construction Manager shall be responsible to the Owner if and to the extent, after recognizing the presence and 



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

30

general location of Hazardous Materials that were pre-existing at the Site, or generated during construction, or after it 
should have recognized such presence and general location, it exacerbates such contamination.

§ 10.7 Reserved.

§ 10.8 Confidentiality.
§ 10.8.1 The Construction Manager shall not knowingly or negligently communicate or disclose at any time to any 
person any information concerning the Work or the Project, except: (i) with prior written consent of the Owner, (ii) 
information which has become part of the public domain prior to the date of the Agreement, (iii) information which 
becomes part of the public domain by means other than an unauthorized act or omission of the Construction Manager, 
(iv) as may be required to perform the Work or by any Applicable Law, (v) to its professional advisors or lender (all of 
whom shall be required to maintain such information in confidence) or (vi) Construction Manager is required to be 
disclosed by law, regulation, or court order, provided that the Construction Manager provides prompt written notice to 
the Owner to enable the Owner to seek a protective order or take other appropriate action prior to such disclosure.  The 
provisions of Section 10.8 are not limited by this modification, however it shall be interpreted as prohibiting the 
Construction Manager from using the Owner as a reference or using any photograph or likeness of any School District 
building, use of its logo or the like, without obtaining the written permission of the Owner’s representative identified 
in Section 1.1.8 above. The Construction Manager may list the School District as a client.

§ 10.8.2 The Construction Manager shall promptly upon the request of the Owner return and surrender to the Owner 
the original or legible copies of any materials, records, notices, memoranda, recordings, Drawings, Specifications and 
mock-ups and any other documents furnished by the Owner to the Construction Manager.  However, Construction 
Manager may keep one copy of any materials, records, notices, memoranda, recordings, Drawings, Specifications, and 
mock-ups and any other document furnished by the Owner to the Construction Manager for record-keeping purposes 
only.    

§ 10.8.3 The Construction Manager shall maintain, and shall cause all members of the Construction Team, and its and 
their directors, officers, employees, and agents, to maintain, during and after the term of the Agreement, the 
confidentiality of all trade secrets, know-how, confidential data or other proprietary information of the Owner when 
designated as such and shall not use such information for any purpose whatsoever except for uses permitted by Section 
10.8.1.

§ 10.8.4 The Construction Manager shall not identify, either expressly or by implication, the Owner, or its corporate 
affiliates, or use any of their trademarks, trade names, service marks, other proprietary marks, or reference the 
Services performed under the Agreement, in any advertising, press releases, publicity matters, or other promotional 
materials without the Owner’s prior written approval.

§ 10.8.5 The Construction Manager shall not, without the express written consent of the Owner, discuss the Work or 
any part thereof with persons under circumstances in which such communications can reasonably be expected to be 
published in newspapers, magazines or trade journals or broadcast on radio or television. This restriction shall not 
apply to statements consistent with a crisis management plan development and agreed to by both parties with respect 
to the Work. This restriction also shall not apply to any fair response by the Construction Manager to publicity 
released by the Owner that is detrimental to the reputation of the Construction Manager. Any such contact shall be 
referred to the Owner for response. Further, without the Owner’s consent, the Construction Manager shall not 
participate in professional or trade seminars or publish or submit articles for publication, the subject of which is, in 
whole or in part, the Work. Any such proposed article or publication shall be submitted to the Owner for review and 
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

§ 10.8.6 The Construction Manager shall cause all members of the Construction Team to specifically acknowledge that 
the provisions of this Section 10.8 are binding upon them.

§ 10.9 The invalidity of any provision of the Agreement shall not invalidate the Agreement or its remaining 
provisions. If it is determined that any provision of the Agreement violates any law, or is otherwise invalid or 
unenforceable, then that provision shall be revised to the extent necessary to make that provision legal and 
enforceable. In such case the Agreement shall be construed, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to give effect to the 
parties’ intentions and purposes in executing the Agreement.



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

31

ARTICLE 11   COMPENSATION
§ 11.1 For the Construction Manager’s Basic Services described under Article 3, the Owner shall compensate the 
Construction Manager as follows:

§ 11.1.1 For Pre-Bond Services in Section 3.2:
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation, including stipulated sums, multiples or percentages.)

See separate Capital Needs Planning Agreement dated July 17, 2024.Under that Agreement, Construction Manager is 
entitled to an amount of $262,100.00 for Pre-Bond Services.

§ 11.1.2 For All Basic Services:
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation, including stipulated sums, multiples or percentages.)

Compensation for all Basic Services (including without limitation Work that is subject to Change Orders or 
Construction Change Directives) shall be a fee of 1.99% of the Cost of the Work (as defined in Article 6) for services 
rendered ("Construction Manager’s Fee"). The definitive Cost of the Work shall be determined once bids are received 
from the Contractors and awarded by the Owner on a Project-by-Project basis, but in no event shall the Cost of Work 
on which the Construction Manager’s Fee is based exceed the Not-To-Exceed limit on the Cost of the Work defined in 
Section 1.1.1 above. The Construction Manager’s Fee as set forth above shall include any and all costs, including 
Overhead & Profit, incurred by the Construction Manager in the performance of this Agreement, except for Personnel 
Reimbursement Rates (Construction Manager Personnel Costs) and Office General Condition Costs and General 
Condition Items identified below or otherwise approved by Owner in writing.  If any portion of the Construction 
Manager’s Fee is based upon a percentage of the Cost of the Work, then, for the purpose of determining such portion, 
the Cost of the Work shall not include the compensation of the Construction Manager, the Construction Manager’s 
consultants, Personnel Reimbursable Rates, or Office of General Condition Costs, items excluded from the Cost of the 
Work in Section 1.1.3.2 and Section 6.1, or items listed below.

In addition to the Construction Manager’s Fee, the Construction Manager will be reimbursed for the following items 
in accordance with the following:

1. Construction Manager Personnel Costs is a total Not-To-Exceed amount of $5,901,030.00 for Construction 
Manager’s staff directly engaged on the Project based upon the Hourly Rates and Staffing Plan established in Exhibit 

A and the Project schedule included as Exhibit F (which includes all of Construction Manager’s Personnel necessary 
to complete the Project). This total Not-To-Exceed amount for Construction Manager Personnel Costs shall be further 
broken down by Project. The Not-To-Exceed amount will be paid to the Construction Manager monthly based upon 
progress of the Work performed for the Project.  However, in the event of a material change to the Project schedule, 
the Construction Manager’s Not-To-Exceed amount for Construction Manager Personnel Costs may be revised to 
reflect change to the Project schedule, as mutually agreed to in writing by the parties, at an appropriate reduction or 
increase in Construction Personnel Cost associated with the modified Project schedule.  Even though the Construction 
Manager provided the Owner with a number of hours budgeted for Basic Services, the Construction Manager shall 
provide all Basic Services to the Owner under this Agreement for the Not-To-Exceed amount for Construction 
Manager Personnel Costs even if it takes the Construction Manager additional hours over its budgeted hours, unless 
agreed to by the Owner in writing due to an increase in the Project schedule which is through no fault of, or in any way 
caused by, the Construction Manager. All Construction Manager Personnel Costs and Office General Condition Costs 
shall be provided by the Construction Manager at cost without mark-up to the Owner.  All General Condition Items 
shall be provided by the Construction Manager at cost, but is subject to the Construction Manager’s Fee.

2. Construction Manager’s General Condition Items as set forth in Exhibit B have been calculated as a 
Not-To-Exceed amount of $4,681,335.00.  As set forth in Exhibit B, General Condition Items do not include 
Construction Manager Personnel Costs or Office General Condition Items.  The General Condition Items amount will 
be included as part of the Cost of the Work for determining the Construction Manager’s Fee as set forth above; 
however, and the conclusion of the Project, any unspent portion of the General Condition Items amount will be 
retained by the Owner and the Construction Manager’s Fee shall be reconciled and adjusted as set forth below.

3. Construction Manager Insurance Fee has been calculated as a Not-To-Exceed amount of $113,382.00 as set 
forth in Section 11.7 below.



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

32

4. Construction Manager’s Office General Condition Items (for computers, technology licenses, phones, office 
supplies etc.) is a total Not-To-Exceed amount of $150,000.

Except as otherwise provided for below, the Construction Manager’s Fee, Construction Manager Personnel Costs, 
Office General Condition Costs, General Condition Items, Construction Manager Insurance Fee shall be paid to the 
Construction Manager monthly based upon progress of the Work performed for the Project on a Project by-Project 
basis.

Notwithstanding the fact that the Owner and Construction Manager may agree to a Construction Manager’s Fee, the 
Owner and Construction Manager acknowledge that the Owner has the right to modify the scope of the Projects by 
removing projects, adding projects or revising/modifying projects.  Accordingly, if there is: (a) a material change to 
the scope of Projects or Project schedule which necessitates a reduction or increase in Construction Manager 
Personnel Costs associated with the modified scope of Projects or Project schedule under this Agreement which are 
not due to the fault of, or in any way caused by, the Construction Manager; (b) the total Owner’s construction 
contingency is not fully used; or (c) the total General Condition Items are not fully spent/used; (d) the total 
Construction Manager Personnel Costs are not fully used; or (e) the total Office General Condition Costs are not fully 
spent/used, the Owner will be entitled to a deductive change order at the end of the Project for such unused/unspent 
portions.  However, the Owner and Construction Manager agree to meet annually, or as otherwise agreed to by the 
parties, to review the Construction Manager Personnel Costs, construction contingency, General Condition Items and 
Office General Condition Costs to determine if the same should be revised prior to the end of the Project based on the 
progress of the Project on a Project-by Project basis. 

§ 11.2 For the Construction Manager’s Basic Services designated in Section 4.1.1, and for any Sustainability Services 
required pursuant to Section 4.1.3, the Owner shall compensate the Construction Manager as follows:
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation. If necessary, list specific services to which particular methods of 

compensation apply.)

N/A

§ 11.3 For Additional Services that may arise during the course of the Project, including those under Section 4.2, the 
Owner shall compensate the Construction Manager as follows:
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation.)

As mutually agreed upon by the parties in writing before the Work is commenced.

§ 11.4
(Paragraphs deleted)

§ 11.5 The hourly billing rates for services of the Construction Manager and the Construction Manager’s consultants 
are set forth below. The rates shall be adjusted in accordance with the Construction Manager’s and Construction 
Manager’s consultants’ normal review practices.
(If applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.)

See Exhibit A

§ 11.6 Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses
§ 11.6.1 Reimbursable Expenses 
(Paragraphs deleted)

may be incurred by the Construction Manager as necessary for the Project and shall be reviewed and approved by the Owner 
in writing before such expense(s) is incurred.

§ 11.6.2 For Reimbursable Expenses the compensation shall be the expenses incurred by the Construction Manager 
and the Construction Manager’s consultants plus Zero percent (  0  %) of the expenses incurred.



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

33

§ 11.7 Construction Manager’s Insurance. If the types and limits of coverage required in Section 2.8 are in addition to 
the types and limits the Construction Manager normally maintains, the Owner shall pay the Construction Manager for 
the additional costs incurred by the Construction Manager for the additional coverages as set forth below.
(Insert the additional coverages the Construction Manager is required to obtain in order to satisfy the requirements 

set forth in Section 2.8, and for which the Owner shall reimburse the Construction Manager.)

Reimbursement for the Construction Manager’s liability insurance on a monthly shall be at the rate of $13.50/$1,000 
of the Construction Manager’s Construction Manager’s defined in Section 11.1.2. above (and not the total Cost of the 
Work). 

§ 11.8 Payments to the Construction Manager
§ 11.8.1 Initial Payment
§ 11.8.1.1 An initial payment of Zero ($ 0 ) shall be made upon execution of this Agreement and is the minimum 
payment under this Agreement. 

§ 11.8.2 Progress Payments
§ 11.8.2.1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services performed 
unless and to the extent reasonably disputed by the Owner in good faith. Undisputed payments are due and payable 
within thirty (30) days of the Owner’s receipt of the Construction Manager’s invoice. Amounts unpaid forty five ( 45 
) days after the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal rate 
prevailing from time to time at the principal place of business of the Construction Manager.
(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.)

0.00 % Zero Percent

§ 11.8.2.2 The Owner shall not withhold amounts from the Construction Manager’s compensation to impose a penalty 
on the Construction Manager, or to offset sums requested by or paid to Contractors for the cost of changes in the Work, 
unless the Construction Manager agrees or has been found liable for the amounts in an alternative dispute resolution 
proceeding. However, the Owner does reserve the right to withhold payment of disputed amounts, until such time as 
the dispute is resolved.

§ 11.8.2.3 Records of Reimbursable Expenses, expenses pertaining to Basic and Additional Services, and services 
performed on the basis of hourly rates shall be available to the Owner.  Construction Manager shall submit detailed 
monthly invoices based on the progress of the Project, Reimbursable Expenses and/or Personnel Costs, if applicable, 
for approval and payment by the Owner.  Owner’s payments to the Construction Manager shall not exceed the 
percentages of the total Basic Compensation for each phase of the Project as set forth in Section 6, or the maximum 
Reimbursable Expenses allowable.

ARTICLE 12   SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Special terms and conditions that modify this Agreement are as follows:
(Include other terms and conditions applicable to this Agreement.)

§ 12.1 To the fullest extent possible, the provisions of this Agreement, including the Exhibits, General Conditions, 
Supplementary Conditions and all other documents constituting the Agreement shall be deemed to supplement and 
complement each other.  In the event of any inconsistency between the provisions of the Contract Documents, which 
conflict relates to the scope of the Project hereunder, such inconsistency shall be resolved in the manner that defines 
the Project the most comprehensively.  In the event of any other ambiguity between provisions of the Contract 
Documents, the ambiguity will be resolved by giving effect to the most stringent provision (i.e., the provision, which 
requires the highest standard of performance).

§ 12.2 The Construction Manager shall, upon completion of the Project, or earlier upon termination of this Agreement, 
deliver to the Owner all records and files of the Project reasonably obtainable, which shall have been organized in a 
reasonable manner by the Construction Manager, including all field marked copies of Construction Documents, which 
shall include all alternates, addenda, bulletins, construction change directives, field orders, and /or other data 
generated by the Contractor during the course of construction of the Project.  In addition, the Construction Manager 
shall review Close-Out Documents provided by each Contractor through the Construction Manager to confirm that all 
required documents have been provided as required by the Specifications contained in the Project Manual.



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

34

§ 12.3 The Construction Manager shall act as the Owner’s agent at the site of the Work to the extent so designated in 
writing and mutually agreed to by the parties to the Agreement in accordance with the Agreement.  This shall include, 
but is not limited to the arranging for construction support and general condition items, as reviewed and approved by 
the Owner

§ 12.4 The Construction Manager shall enforce compliance with all rules and regulations promulgated by the Owner in 
connection with the use and occupancy of the Project Site(s) and the surrounding area. The Contractor shall 
immediately notify the Owner in writing if, during the performance of the Work, the Contractor reasonably determines 
compliance with any portion of such rules and regulations to be impractical, setting forth the problems of such 
compliance and suggesting alternative means through which the results intended by such portions of the rules and 
regulations can be achieved. The Owner may, in its sole discretion, adopt such suggestions, develop new alternatives 
or require compliance with the existing requirements of the rules and regulations.

§12.5 The Owner, being a public body, shall render decisions within a reasonable time after being requested to do so by 
the Construction Manager.  The Construction Manager, shall prepare and submit all recommendations for which 
approval is required by the Owner as soon as reasonably possible unless another schedule is agreed to by the Owner in 
writing. 

§12.6 The Construction Manager shall disclose to the Owner in writing the special terms and conditions entered into 
with any Contractor, seller, third party or any other vendor engaged for the Project by anyone other than the Owner.  
Cash discounts obtained on payments made by the Construction Manager shall accrue to the Owner if (1) before 
making the payment, the Construction Manager included them in an Application for Payment and received payment 
therefor from the Owner, or (2) the Owner has deposited funds with the Construction Manager with which to make 
payments; otherwise, cash discounts shall accrue to the Construction Manager. Trade discounts, equipment rental 
discounts, rebates, refunds, insurance and surety bonding credits, and amounts received from sales of surplus materials 
and equipment shall accrue to the Owner, and the Construction Manager shall make provisions so that they can be 
secured.

§ 12.7 As part of Basic Services, the Construction Manager shall perform the services identified in the Team 
Responsibility Matrix, dated October 1, 2024, and attached hereto as Exhibit G, under the heading of "Construction 
Manager."  The services required to be performed by the Construction Manager under the Team Responsibility Matrix 
demonstrates the coordination required by all of the parties but does not in any way relieve the Construction Manager 
of any of its contractual obligations required hereunder.

§ 12.8 The Construction Manager agrees to render its professional services in accordance with the Project Schedule 
attached hereto as Exhibit F.

§ 12.9  The Construction Manager shall require that each owner/employee/Consultant of the Construction Manager 
who will work on the Project and be on site at any of the Owner’s facilities, certify to the Owner that no owner, 
employee, agent, representative, contractor, consultant and/or other personnel of the Construction Manager will be on 
any School District premises if they are a registered criminal sexual offender under the Sex Offenders Registration 
Act, Public Act 295 of 1994, or have been convicted of "Listed Offense" as defined under Section 722 of the Sex 
Offenders Registration Act, MCL 28.722 (the "Certification").  This Certification shall be accomplished through 
obtaining an Affidavit of Compliance – Criminal Background Checks, in a form approved by the Owner.

§ 12.10  If the Construction Manager is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the Work by an act or 
neglect of the Owner, Owner’s own forces, Architect, any of the other Multiple Prime Contractors or an employee of 
any of them, or by changes ordered in the Work, or by labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, epidemics, 
unavoidable casualties or other causes beyond the Construction Manager’s control; or by delay authorized by the 
Owner pending litigation, mediation, or arbitration, as applicable, or by  other causes that the Owner determines may 
justify delay, then the Construction Manager may seek an equitable adjustment from the Owner to the Contract Time 
and/or the Construction Manager’s Fee and if mutually agreed to by the parties the same shall be ratified in a Change 
Order.  However, if the parties cannot agree on the amount of the adjustment, Construction Manager shall follow the 
alternative dispute resolution procedure contained in Section 8.2 above.



Init.

/

AIA Document C132 – 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of 
Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 16:52:48 
ET on 05/29/2025 under Order No.6417165033 which expires on 03/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1816423273)

35

§ 12.11  If the Project Schedule is delayed due to any cause or fault of the Construction Manager, the Construction 
Manager shall not be eligible for any additional Construction Manager Personnel Costs necessary to staff such 
additional time.

ARTICLE 13   SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT
§ 13.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Construction 
Manager and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement 
may be amended only by written instrument signed by both the Owner and Construction Manager.

§ 13.2 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents identified below:
.1 AIA Document C132™–2019, Standard Form Agreement Between Owner and Construction Manager 

as Adviser, as modified herein
.2 Building Information Modeling Exhibit, if completed:

N/A

.3 Exhibits:
(Check the appropriate box for any exhibits incorporated into this Agreement.)

[ N/A ] AIA Document E235™–2019, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, Construction Manager as Adviser 
Edition, dated as indicated below:
(Insert the date of the E235-2019 incorporated into this agreement.)

[  ] Other Exhibits incorporated into this Agreement:
(Clearly identify any other exhibits incorporated into this Agreement, including any exhibits identified 

in Section 4.1.2.)

Exhibit A – Personnel Reimbursable Rates and Staffing Plan
Exhibit B – General Condition Items
Exhibit C - Key Personnel
Exhibit D – Detailed Description of the Project
Exhibit E – Construction Manager’s Insurance Certificate(s)
Exhibit F – Project Schedule
Exhibit G –Team Responsibility Matrix 
Exhibit H –Scope of Services
Exhibit I – AIA Document A232-2019, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, as 
amended for the Project  

.4 Other documents:
(List other documents, if any, forming part of the Agreement.)

None

This Agreement is entered into as of the day and year first written above.

OWNER (Signature) CONSTRUCTION MANAGER (Signature)

(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title)



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

PERSONNEL REIMBURSABLE RATES 
AND 

STAFFING PLAN 
 

 
Reimbursable Rates for the Project Personnel will be reimbursed using the following rates: 
 
   
 

Category Hourly Rate 
Project Director $135.00-$160.00 
Senior Project Manager $125.00-145.00 
Project Manager $100.00-120.00 
Senior Superintendent $125.00-145.00 
Superintendent $75.00-120.00 
Assistant Superintendent $65.00 - 80.00 
Project Engineer $80.00-100.00 
Document Control Coordinator $65.00-75.00 
Bond Program Finance Specialist $125.00-135.00 
Project Financial Control $65.00 - 80.00 
Safety Manager $95.00-105.00 
Pre-Construction $100.00-125.00 
Communications $120.00-130.00 

 
 

See the Construction Manager’s Attached Staffing Plan 
 
 
 
Note:   
 
Personnel rates include the salaries of personnel and the portion of the cost of their mandatory 
and customary contributions and benefits related thereto, such as employment taxes and other 
statutory employee benefits, insurance, sick leave, holidays, vacations, pensions, and similar 
contributions and benefits. 
 
The rates set forth above are valid for the duration of the Project. 



L'Anse Creuse Public Schools Barton Malow Builders

2024 Bond Program Date: 5/23/25

Staffing Schedule

$110,887,645

$102,455,648

60

Estimated Billing Estimated

J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D Hours Rate Cost

Number of Buildings

Dollar Amount

Pre-Construction Phase

Estimating/Scheduling 800 100.00$            80,000$                     

800 80,000$                    0.08%

Construction Phase

Project Executive 8 h/w 4h/w 2h/w 1,325 157.50$            208,684$                  

Sr. Project Manager 16h/w 24h/w 16h/w 8h/w 4,711 141.75$            667,790$                  

Project Manager 20h/w 40h/w 20h/w 16h/w 8,262 115.50$            954,219$                  

Sr. Superintendent   at 40 h/w MSE, Higgins & Burdi LCHSN Reno & Atwood Pankow Campus & Burdi Pankow Campus & Green 8,314 141.75$            1,178,453$              

Superintendent 2   at 40 h/w Fields, Flooring, & Sidewalks MSC LCHS & Graham Reno MSS & MSC Reno & Lot and LCHS Lot 7,794 110.25$            859,289$                  

Superintendent 1  at 40 h/w Carkenord MSN Reno & HSN Parking Lot 4,157 94.50$              392,818$                  

Assist Superintendent  at 40 h/w Parking Lots MSE, Carkenord, & Higgins Reno & Site Lobb, South River, Tenn, & Yacks Reno 5,716 63.00$              360,083$                  

Project Engineer 8 h/w 40 h/w 24h/w 16h/w 8,348 79.80$              666,190$                  

Document Control Coordinator 8 h/w 1,974 63.00$              124,392$                  

Accountant 8 h/w 10h/w 2,540 131.25$            333,440$                  

Safety + Fire Safety Manager 2h/w 485 99.75$              48,375$                     

Communications 4 h/w 1,022 105.00$            107,297$                  

54,648 5,901,030$              5.76%

Office Costs 2,500$              150,000$                  0.15%

Fee 2,038,867$              1.99%

Total Cost 8,169,897$              7.97%

Budget 11,596,410$            

CM Savings (3,426,513)$            

Bond Planning 262,100$                  

Final Savings (3,164,413)$            

$15.6M $24M $25M $28.4M $9.4M

Percentage

5 5 8 13 9

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

CM Contract & Construction:

Construction:

Months:



 

 B – 1 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

GENERAL CONDITION ITEMS 
 

 
Prior to the start of Construction, the Construction Manager shall provide a cost estimate 
breakdown for all General Conditions required for completion of a Project for the Owner’s review 
and approval, which estimate shall not exceed the amount identified in the 2024 Bond Application 
For Prequalification without the prior written consent of the Owner.  These items will be paid for 
monthly, at cost, without any mark-up. The Owner shall have the option of providing the 
Construction Manager with any General Condition items where such items meet or exceed the 
Construction Manager’s reasonable requirements. The Construction Manager has calculated the 
General Condition Items for the entire Bond to be in the range of four and a half (4.50%) percent 
at a value of $4,681,335.00.  However, the previous amount does not include office costs which 
are calculated at a not-to-exceed amount of $150,000.00. 
 
Any General Condition items purchased by the Construction Manager for the Project in 
conjunction with this Agreement which are charged to the Owner shall be the property of the 
Owner during and at the completion of the Project.  General Condition Items shall be included in 
a Contractor’s bid package, supplied by the Owner, bid out by the Construction Manager on behalf 
of the Owner or otherwise agreed to by the parties.  The Owner shall have the final decision in 
determining how these items shall be supplied to the Owner for the Project. General Condition 
items are identified as follows: 
 
FIELD OFFICE SUPPORT 

 Office Trailer Rental 
 Office Space or Trailer Setup 
 Maintain Field Office 
 Security System 
 Office Cleaning 
 Construction Manager’s Trailer Rental 
 Construction Manager’s Space or Trailer Setup 
 Electric Hookup – Trailers and Office 
 Electric Usage – Trailers and Office 
 Water Hookup – Trailers and Office 
 Water Usage – Trailers and Office 
 Sewer Hookup – Trailers and Office 
 Office Furniture/Furnishings 
 Copier/Supplies 
 Photocopying Out-sourced 
 Drawing Reproduction 
 Postage/Overnight Express 

 
 
 



 

 B – 2 
 

GENERAL CONDITION ITEMS: 
 
 
TEMPORARY UTILITIES – TEMPORARY HEAT 

 Temporary Heat Setup and Maintenance 
 Temporary Heat-Fuel 
 Maintenance of Perm. System 
 Temporary Water & Sewer Hookup 
 Temporary Water & Sewer Usage 
 Temporary Electric Hookup 
 Temporary Electric Usage 

 
TEMPORARY FACILITIES, FENCES AND BARRICADES 

 Temporary Storage Sheds 
 Temporary Toilets/Port-a-johns 
 Temporary Fence 
 Barricades 
 Covered Walks/Overhead Protection 
 Temporary Rail 
 Temporary Roads 
 Job Signs 
 Temporary Parking/Bus Services 
 Temporary Roof Protection 
 Drinking Water 
 Temporary Partitions-Dust Part. 
 Temporary Ladder & Stairs 
 Dust Control, Road Maintenance 

 
WEATHER PROTECTION 

 Snow Removal 
 Weather Protection Enclosures 
 Pumping/De-watering 
 Erosion Control 

 
SAFETY AND SECURITY 

 Watchman-Security Service 
 Guard Shacks 
 Safety Program 
 Safety Incentives 
 Extinguishers 
 First Aid Kit 
 Hard Hats and Rain Gear 
 Safety Signs 
 



 

 B – 3 
 

 
CLEAN-UP 

 Clean-up Foreman 
 Periodic Clean-up 
 Final Clean-up 
 Final Glass Cleaning 
 Hauling trash by truck 
 Dumpsters 
 Dump Fees with Dumpsters 
 Rubbish chutes-install/maintain/remove 
 Dump carts 

 
PROTECTION OF FINISHED AND EXISTING WORK 

 Protect Existing Facilities 
 Protect Finished Work 
 Elevator Protection-Cabs and Jambs 

 
TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT 

 Surveying Equipment and Supplies 
 Small Tools 
 Miscellaneous Equipment 

 
MATERIAL HANDLING AND HOISTS 

 Temporary Elevator Cabs 
 Hoist and Crane Communications 
 Cranes 
 Crane Operators 
 Elevator Operators 
 Hoist Operators 
 Buck Hoists/Single or Double 

 
CONSULTANT AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 Testing and Inspection 
 Air Monitoring Services 
 Test and Balance 
 Special Certifications 
 Legal Expenses 

 
PERMITS AND FEES  
 

 General Building Permits (including any permits or applications required to be made 
with the State of Michigan Department of Consumer and Industry Services) 

 State Fire Marshal 
 Local Fire Marshal 
 HVAC and Plumbing Permits 



 

 B – 4 
 

 Electrical Permits 
 DNR Permit 
 Flood Plain Permits 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE (NOT INCLUDED IN THE COST OF THE WORK) 
 

 General Liability Insurance (may only be applied to Construction Manager’s Fee, defined 
in Section 11.1.2. (and not the total Cost of the Work) at $13.50/$1,000). 

 
 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

KEY PERSONNEL 
 
The Construction Manager agrees to commit the following key individuals for the duration of the 
Project, as well as the necessary resources of the firm to meet the Project goals and schedule: 
 
 

  Position   Individual 
 
    Project Director  Daryl Dombrow   
    Senior Project Manager Samuel Esser 
    Senior Superintendent  Jeff Jones 
    Project Manager  Jade Warner 
    Superintendent  Mike Orlando 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Owner and Construction Manager will mutually agree upon the Superintendent assigned to 
the Project. The Construction Manager shall not remove any of the above-referenced personnel 
from the Project without the prior written consent or request of the Owner unless such personnel 
cease to be in the employ of the Construction Manager.  In the event any such personnel must be 
replaced, Construction Manager shall promptly find an acceptable replacement in consultation 
with the Owner. 



 

 

 
EXHIBIT D 

 
 

DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECT 
 

(See the Attached Detailed Description of the Project.  Also, see the Owner’s   
Application For Prequalification, which is incorporated herein by this reference) 

 
The School District has identified specific Projects in the Detailed Description of the Project, 
which is attached hereto and in the Application For Prequalification which is incorporated herein 
by reference (collectively the “Bond Documents”). The Projects described in such Bond 
Documents are, in this Agreement, being divided into the following three (3) categories: 
 
            (1)        Projects which are covered under the Construction Manager’s Basic Services: 
 

(a)        All Projects identified in the Bond Documents except as set forth in (2) and 
(3) below; and 

 
(2)      The Owner reserves the right and has the option of removing from under the 

Construction Manager’s Basic Services any Project or portions of Projects, at a later 
date, by providing the Construction Manager with notice of the same and by 
reducing the fee contained in Paragraph 11.1.2 of this Agreement using the same 
percentage of the Cost of the Work that was used to determine the Construction 
Manager’s fee for all of the other Projects.   

 
(3)       Projects which the Owner, at a later date, has the option of assigning to the 

Construction Manager’s Scope of Work, which will then be deemed a part of the 
Construction Manager’s Basic Services, or having the work performed by separate 
contractors or the Owner’s own forces: 

 
a. Buses 
b. Asbestos Removal 
c. Technology  
d. Loose Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 
e. See attached COW Schedule, which removes certain Work from Construction 

Manager’s Services 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



L'Anse Creuse Public Schools

2024 Bond Program

Cost of Work

Bond Application Series 1 and 2 Summary Sheet Subtotals (page 118) By BMB By Owner & Others Totals

1 A/E Fees and Costs (Both PIA and IDS including their reimbursable costs) $12,148,176

2 Instructional Technology $15,165,275

3 Loose Furniture and Equipment $3,191,726

4 Buses $2,979,733

5 Remodeling Total $80,908,592

6 Site Work Total $43,511,789

7 Contingency $14,277,738

8 CM Fees and Costs $11,596,410

9 General Conditions (4% of Remodeling & Site Work)* $4,920,561

Subtotal $155,215,090 $33,484,910 $188,700,000

Removed Work

10 Less Tech Infrastructure^ ($14,519,760) $14,519,760

11 Less Playgrounds ($2,604,656) $2,604,656

12 Less Playgrounds Contingency ($260,466) $260,466

13 Less Playground PIP Surface ($1,951,032) $1,951,032

14 Less Playground Contingency ($195,103) $195,103

15 Less Roofs ($15,798,912) $15,798,912

16 Less Roofs Contingency ($1,579,891) $1,579,891

17 Less Pool Filtration ($1,293,646) $1,293,646

18 Less Pool Filtration Contingency ($129,365) $129,365

19 Less Theater Lights ($405,169) $405,169

20 Less Theater Lights Contingency ($40,517) $40,517

21 Less JACE for BAS (Amount Post Bond Agreed to use from Temperature Controls) ($500,000) $500,000

22 Less MSN Lockers ($156,279) $156,279

23 Less MSN Lockers Contingency ($15,628) $15,628

24 Less Digital Site Signs ($1,162,256) $1,162,256

25 Less Digital Site Signs Contingency ($116,226) $116,226

26 Less Sidewalks (Board Approval Amount includes Contingency) ($308,732) $308,732

27 Less General Conditions - Building Permits (for Lines 10, 11, 15, 17, 19, 21, 22, & 24) ($125,394) $125,394

28 Less CM Fees and Costs Budgeted ($11,596,410) $0

Subtotal ($52,759,442) $41,163,032

Cost of Work Total $102,455,648 $74,647,942 $177,103,590

CM Fee and Costs (Proposed Contract) $8,431,997 $3,164,413

Bond Totals $110,887,645 $77,812,355 $188,700,000

*Portion of Bond App Cost Summary line items in Column 13 

^ Tech Infrastructure, Safety, & Security

Tech Infrastructure $6,990,941

Tech Safety & Security $6,208,841

10% Contingency $1,319,978

total $14,519,760



 

 

 
EXHIBIT E 

 
INSURANCE CERTIFICATE(S) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

C

1,000,000

01/01/2026

MWZY 315247 25

CHI-010811690-04

1,000,000

10,000,000

WC 6186394-04 (WI)

X

16535

10,000,000

Aggregate

N

X

01/01/2025
01/01/2025

American Zurich Insurance Company

8

01/01/2026

01/01/2025

Each Occ/AggrD

23752

01/01/2026

Detroit.CertRequest@Marsh.com

BAP 6020422-04

Excess General Liability

E

5,000,000

1,000,000

5,000,000

26247
Zurich American Insurance Company

1,000,000

X

B

X

X

12/19/2024

10,000,000

01/01/2025

5,000,000

Partners in Architecture, PLC and L'Anse Creuse Public Schools is/are included as Additional Insured (except Workers Compensation) where required by written contract. 

X

01/01/2025

               24076 F. V. Pankow Boulevard

               Clinton Township, MI  48036

               L'Anse Creuse Public Schools


Ascot Insurance Company

01/01/2026

A

American Guarantee & Liability Ins Co

CN102957321-*-CasX-25-26

Each Occurence

10,000

01/01/2026

5,000,000

AUC 3062359-04

EXNA2510000159-04

B

5,000,000

24147

1,000,000

1,000,000

01/01/2026

WC 6020417-04 (AOS)

               One Towne Square, Suite 1100

               MARSH USA LLC.


X

               Southfield, MI  48076

               26500 American Drive

               Barton Malow Builders LLC


               Southfield, MI  48034

GLO 6020419-04

01/01/2025

               Attn: Kathy Konon


01/01/2025

B

Marsh | U.S. Operations & Technology

01/01/2026

40142

866-966-4664

Old Republic Insurance Company



















SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

CHI-010810779-04

Aggregate:

N

01/01/2025

Detroit.CertRequest@Marsh.com

A&E Professional LiabilityA

12/19/2024

5,000,000

1,000,000

               24076 F. V. Pankow Boulevard

               Clinton Township, MI  48036

               L'Anse Creuse Public Schools


Each Occurrence:

24147

01/01/2026

               One Towne Square, Suite 1100

               MARSH USA LLC.


               Southfield, MI  48076

               26500 American Drive

               Barton Malow Builders LLC


               Southfield, MI  48034

MWZZ 315246 25

               Attn: Kathy Konon


Marsh | U.S. Operations & Technology
866-966-4664

Old Republic Insurance Company



ACORD 101 (2008/01)
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,
FORM NUMBER: FORM TITLE:

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page           of

AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:
LOC #:

AGENCY

CARRIER NAIC CODE

POLICY NUMBER

NAMED INSURED

EFFECTIVE DATE:

22

�

Detroit

Effective/Expiration Dates: 01/01/2025 - 01/01/2026�
Carrier: Indian Harbor Insurance Company�

SIR: $1,000,000�
Each Claim/Aggregate Limit: $5M XS $5M�

(Professional Liability continued)�
��

Policy No.: CEO742018210�
�

Certificate of Liability Insurance

CN102957321

               MARSH USA LLC.�
               26500 American Drive�
               Barton Malow Builders LLC�

               Southfield, MI  48034

25



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANYP ROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

26883

CPO 25012527 2,000,000CONTRACTORS POLLUTION

Marsh | U.S. Operations & Technology

01/01/2026

CHI-010811308-01

11/19/2024

250,000LIABILITY DEDUCTIBLE

Detroit.CertRequest@Marsh.com

01/01/2024 LIMIT

L'Anse Creuse Public Schools and Partners in Architecture, PLC is/are included as additional insured where required by written contract entered into prior to claim or loss. 

               26500 American Drive
               Barton Malow Builders LLC

               Southfield, MI  48034

AIG Specialty Insurance Company

               One Towne Square, Suite 1100
               MARSH USA LLC.

               Southfield, MI  48076

N

               24076 F. V. Pankow Boulevard

               Clinton Township, MI  48036

               L'Anse Creuse Public Schools
               Attn: Kathy Konon

866-966-4664

A



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANYP ROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

20281

J06421106 5,000,000CRIME

Marsh | U.S. Operations & Technology

01/01/2025

CHI-010817734-01

11/19/2024

500,000SIR

Detroit.CertRequest@Marsh.com

01/01/2024 LIMIT

               26500 American Drive
               Barton Malow Builders LLC

               Southfield, MI  48034

Federal Insurance Company

               One Towne Square, Suite 1100
               MARSH USA LLC.

               Southfield, MI  48076

N

               24076 F. V. Pankow Boulevard

               Clinton Township, MI  48036

               L'Anse Creuse Public Schools
               Attn: Kathy Konon

866-966-4664

A



 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT F 
 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 

The Preliminary Project Schedule is attached hereto, which Schedule will be updated during the 
term of this Agreement as mutually agreed to by the parties. 

 



Activity ID Activity Name Original

Duration

Start Finish

LCPS Master Bond ScheduleLCPS Master Bond ScheduleLCPS Master Bond ScheduleLCPS Master Bond ScheduleLCPS Master Bond Schedule

Site WorkSite WorkSite WorkSite WorkSite Work

BP 25-07 - Pankow Stage Lighting UpgradesBP 25-07 - Pankow Stage Lighting UpgradesBP 25-07 - Pankow Stage Lighting UpgradesBP 25-07 - Pankow Stage Lighting UpgradesBP 25-07 - Pankow Stage Lighting Upgrades

1 Design 120d 01-Apr-25* 15-Sep-25

5 Bidding 45d 16-Sep-25 17-Nov-25

A1050 Fabrication 139d 18-Nov-25 29-May-26

A1060 Construction 66d 01-Jun-26 31-Aug-26

A1070 Close-Out 45d 01-Sep-26 02-Nov-26

BP #26-02 - AES, SRES, TES Parking Lot UpgradesBP #26-02 - AES, SRES, TES Parking Lot UpgradesBP #26-02 - AES, SRES, TES Parking Lot UpgradesBP #26-02 - AES, SRES, TES Parking Lot UpgradesBP #26-02 - AES, SRES, TES Parking Lot Upgrades

8 Design 208d 01-Dec-25* 16-Sep-26

9 Procurement 45d 17-Sep-26 18-Nov-26

10 Fabrication 138d 19-Nov-26 31-May-27

11 Construction 66d 01-Jun-27 31-Aug-27

12 Close-Out 45d 01-Sep-27 02-Nov-27

BP #26-05 - Atwood EL and S. River EL Site UpgradesBP #26-05 - Atwood EL and S. River EL Site UpgradesBP #26-05 - Atwood EL and S. River EL Site UpgradesBP #26-05 - Atwood EL and S. River EL Site UpgradesBP #26-05 - Atwood EL and S. River EL Site Upgrades

14 Design 196d 01-Jan-26* 01-Oct-26

15 Procurement 45d 02-Oct-26 03-Dec-26

16 Fabrication 127d 04-Dec-26 31-May-27

17 Construction 66d 01-Jun-27 31-Aug-27

18 Closeout 45d 01-Sep-27 02-Nov-27

BP #-26-06 -Tenniswood Site UpgradesBP #-26-06 -Tenniswood Site UpgradesBP #-26-06 -Tenniswood Site UpgradesBP #-26-06 -Tenniswood Site UpgradesBP #-26-06 -Tenniswood Site Upgrades

20 Design 196d 01-Jan-26* 01-Oct-26

21 Procurement 45d 02-Oct-26 03-Dec-26

22 Fabrication 127d 04-Dec-26 31-May-27

23 Construction 66d 01-Jun-27 31-Aug-27

24 Close-Out 45d 01-Sep-27 02-Nov-27

BP #27-01 - GES and MSC Site UpgradesBP #27-01 - GES and MSC Site UpgradesBP #27-01 - GES and MSC Site UpgradesBP #27-01 - GES and MSC Site UpgradesBP #27-01 - GES and MSC Site Upgrades

32 Design 196d 04-Jan-27* 04-Oct-27

33 Procurement 45d 05-Oct-27 06-Dec-27

34 Fabrication 127d 07-Dec-27 31-May-28

35 Construction 66d 01-Jun-28 31-Aug-28

36 Close-Out 45d 01-Sep-28 02-Nov-28

BP #27-02 - Carkenord Site UpgradesBP #27-02 - Carkenord Site UpgradesBP #27-02 - Carkenord Site UpgradesBP #27-02 - Carkenord Site UpgradesBP #27-02 - Carkenord Site Upgrades

38 Design 200d 01-Jan-27* 01-Oct-27

39 Procurement 45d 04-Oct-27 03-Dec-27

40 Fabrication 128d 06-Dec-27 31-May-28

41 Construction 66d 01-Jun-28 31-Aug-28

42 Close-Out 45d 01-Sep-28 02-Nov-28

BP #27-03 - Higgins Field and Lot UpgradesBP #27-03 - Higgins Field and Lot UpgradesBP #27-03 - Higgins Field and Lot UpgradesBP #27-03 - Higgins Field and Lot UpgradesBP #27-03 - Higgins Field and Lot Upgrades

44 Design 200d 01-Jan-27* 01-Oct-27

45 Procurement 45d 04-Oct-27 03-Dec-27

46 Fabrication 128d 06-Dec-27 31-May-28

47 Construction 66d 01-Jun-28 31-Aug-28

48 Close-Out 45d 01-Sep-28 02-Nov-28

BP #27-04 - Middle School East Lot UpgradesBP #27-04 - Middle School East Lot UpgradesBP #27-04 - Middle School East Lot UpgradesBP #27-04 - Middle School East Lot UpgradesBP #27-04 - Middle School East Lot Upgrades

56 Design 200d 01-Jan-27* 01-Oct-27

57 Procurement 45d 04-Oct-27 03-Dec-27

58 Fabrication 128d 06-Dec-27 31-May-28

59 Construction 66d 01-Jun-28 31-Aug-28

60 Close-Out 45d 01-Sep-28 02-Nov-28

BP #27-06 - LCHS Site UpgradesBP #27-06 - LCHS Site UpgradesBP #27-06 - LCHS Site UpgradesBP #27-06 - LCHS Site UpgradesBP #27-06 - LCHS Site Upgrades

O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Design

Bidding

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Closeout

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

1 of 4 15-May-25 13:49

Remaining Level of Effort

Actual Level of Effort

Actual Work

Start Milestone

SM Critical

SM/FM Actual

Finish Milestone

FM Critical

Remaining Work

Critical Remaining Work

Start Date: 02-Dec-24

Finish Date: 01-Jan-30

Data Date: 01-Nov-24

Run Date: 15-May-25

LCPS Master Bond Schedule

Draft Schedule

Page 1 of 4



Activity ID Activity Name Original

Duration

Start Finish

68 Design 173d 01-Jan-27* 31-Aug-27

69 Procurement 45d 01-Sep-27 02-Nov-27

70 Fabrication 151d 03-Nov-27 31-May-28

71 Construction 66d 01-Jun-28 31-Aug-28

72 Close-Out 45d 01-Sep-28 02-Nov-28

BP #27-06 - HSN Site UpgradesBP #27-06 - HSN Site UpgradesBP #27-06 - HSN Site UpgradesBP #27-06 - HSN Site UpgradesBP #27-06 - HSN Site Upgrades

74 Design 173d 01-Jan-27* 31-Aug-27

75 Procurement 45d 01-Sep-27 02-Nov-27

76 Fabrication 151d 03-Nov-27 31-May-28

77 Construction 66d 01-Jun-28 31-Aug-28

78 Close-Out 45d 01-Sep-28 02-Nov-28

28-01- School Reno and Lots28-01- School Reno and Lots28-01- School Reno and Lots28-01- School Reno and Lots28-01- School Reno and Lots

A1230 Design 173d 01-Jun-27* 27-Jan-28

A1240 Procurement 45d 28-Jan-28 30-Mar-28

A1250 Fabrication 151d 31-Mar-28 31-May-29

A1260 Construction 66d 01-Jun-29 31-Aug-29

A1270 Close-Out 45d 03-Sep-29 02-Nov-29

Building WorkBuilding WorkBuilding WorkBuilding WorkBuilding Work

BP #25-01 - Elementary Floor UpgradesBP #25-01 - Elementary Floor UpgradesBP #25-01 - Elementary Floor UpgradesBP #25-01 - Elementary Floor UpgradesBP #25-01 - Elementary Floor Upgrades

99 Design 180d 02-Dec-24* 31-Jan-25

100 Procurement 45d 03-Feb-25 28-Mar-25

101 Fabrication 262d 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-26

102 Construction 153d 01-Apr-26 30-Oct-26

103 Close-Out 45d 02-Nov-26 01-Jan-27

BP #25-02 - LCHS and LCHSN Ballfields and Tennis CourtsBP #25-02 - LCHS and LCHSN Ballfields and Tennis CourtsBP #25-02 - LCHS and LCHSN Ballfields and Tennis CourtsBP #25-02 - LCHS and LCHSN Ballfields and Tennis CourtsBP #25-02 - LCHS and LCHSN Ballfields and Tennis Courts

105 Design 50d 02-Dec-24* 07-Feb-25

106 Procurement 45d 10-Feb-25 11-Apr-25

107 Fabrication 252d 14-Apr-25 31-Mar-26

108 Construction 153d 01-Apr-26 30-Oct-26

109 Close-Out 45d 02-Nov-26 01-Jan-27

BP #25-05 - LCHS and HSN Pool Dehumidification UpgradesBP #25-05 - LCHS and HSN Pool Dehumidification UpgradesBP #25-05 - LCHS and HSN Pool Dehumidification UpgradesBP #25-05 - LCHS and HSN Pool Dehumidification UpgradesBP #25-05 - LCHS and HSN Pool Dehumidification Upgrades

111 Design 50d 01-Jan-25* 11-Mar-25

112 Procurement 45d 12-Mar-25 13-May-25

113 Fabrication 230d 14-May-25 31-Mar-26

114 Construction 153d 01-Apr-26 30-Oct-26

115 Close-Out 45d 02-Nov-26 01-Jan-27

BP #26-06A - CE, HE, MSE, MSC Interior UpgradesBP #26-06A - CE, HE, MSE, MSC Interior UpgradesBP #26-06A - CE, HE, MSE, MSC Interior UpgradesBP #26-06A - CE, HE, MSE, MSC Interior UpgradesBP #26-06A - CE, HE, MSE, MSC Interior Upgrades

117 Design 159d 07-Mar-25* 15-Oct-25

118 Procurement 45d 16-Oct-25 17-Dec-25

119 Fabrication 74d 18-Dec-25 31-Mar-26

120 Construction 153d 01-Apr-26 30-Oct-26

121 Close-Out 45d 02-Nov-26 01-Jan-27

BP #26-06B - CE, HE, MSE, MSC Exterior UpgradesBP #26-06B - CE, HE, MSE, MSC Exterior UpgradesBP #26-06B - CE, HE, MSE, MSC Exterior UpgradesBP #26-06B - CE, HE, MSE, MSC Exterior UpgradesBP #26-06B - CE, HE, MSE, MSC Exterior Upgrades

123 Design 159d 07-Mar-25* 15-Oct-25

124 Procurement 45d 16-Oct-25 17-Dec-25

125 Fabrication 74d 18-Dec-25 31-Mar-26

126 Construction 153d 01-Apr-26 30-Oct-26

127 Close-Out 45d 02-Nov-26 01-Jan-27

BP #25-08 - Burdi RenovationsBP #25-08 - Burdi RenovationsBP #25-08 - Burdi RenovationsBP #25-08 - Burdi RenovationsBP #25-08 - Burdi Renovations

129 Design 164d 01-Apr-25* 14-Nov-25

130 Procurement 45d 17-Nov-25 09-Jan-26

131 Fabrication 57d 12-Jan-26 31-Mar-26

O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

2 of 4 15-May-25 13:49

Remaining Level of Effort

Actual Level of Effort

Actual Work

Start Milestone

SM Critical

SM/FM Actual

Finish Milestone

FM Critical

Remaining Work

Critical Remaining Work

Start Date: 02-Dec-24

Finish Date: 01-Jan-30

Data Date: 01-Nov-24

Run Date: 15-May-25

LCPS Master Bond Schedule

Draft Schedule

Page 2 of 4



Activity ID Activity Name Original

Duration

Start Finish

132 Construction 153d 01-Apr-26 30-Oct-26

133 Close-Out 45d 02-Nov-26 22-Jan-27

BP #26-01 - AES, GES RenovationsBP #26-01 - AES, GES RenovationsBP #26-01 - AES, GES RenovationsBP #26-01 - AES, GES RenovationsBP #26-01 - AES, GES Renovations

135 Design 284d 01-Sep-25* 01-Oct-26

136 Procurement 45d 02-Oct-26 26-Nov-26

137 Fabrication 89d 27-Nov-26 31-Mar-27

138 Construction 152d 01-Apr-27 29-Oct-27

139 Close-Out 45d 01-Nov-27 31-Dec-27

BP #26-03 - LCHS RenovationsBP #26-03 - LCHS RenovationsBP #26-03 - LCHS RenovationsBP #26-03 - LCHS RenovationsBP #26-03 - LCHS Renovations

141 Design 262d 07-Jul-25* 07-Jul-26

142 Procurement 45d 08-Jul-26 08-Sep-26

143 Fabrication 146d 09-Sep-26 31-Mar-27

144 Construction 152d 01-Apr-27 29-Oct-27

145 Close-Out 45d 01-Nov-27 31-Dec-27

BP #26-04 - LCHSN RenovationsBP #26-04 - LCHSN RenovationsBP #26-04 - LCHSN RenovationsBP #26-04 - LCHSN RenovationsBP #26-04 - LCHSN Renovations

A1080 Design 262d 07-Jul-25* 07-Jul-26

A1090 Procurement 45d 08-Jul-26 08-Sep-26

A1100 Fabrication 146d 09-Sep-26 31-Mar-27

A1110 Construction 152d 01-Apr-27 29-Oct-27

A1120 Close-Out 45d 01-Nov-27 31-Dec-27

BP #26-07A - LCHS and LCHSN Interior RenovationsBP #26-07A - LCHS and LCHSN Interior RenovationsBP #26-07A - LCHS and LCHSN Interior RenovationsBP #26-07A - LCHS and LCHSN Interior RenovationsBP #26-07A - LCHS and LCHSN Interior Renovations

26 Design 217d 02-Jun-25* 31-Mar-26

27 Procurement 45d 01-Apr-26 02-Jun-26

28 Fabrication 216d 03-Jun-26 31-Mar-27

29 Construction 152d 01-Apr-27 29-Oct-27

30 Close-Out 45d 01-Nov-27 31-Dec-27

BP #26-07B - LCHS and LCHSN Exterior RenovationsBP #26-07B - LCHS and LCHSN Exterior RenovationsBP #26-07B - LCHS and LCHSN Exterior RenovationsBP #26-07B - LCHS and LCHSN Exterior RenovationsBP #26-07B - LCHS and LCHSN Exterior Renovations

92 Design 218d 02-Jun-25* 01-Apr-26

93 Procurement 45d 02-Apr-26 03-Jun-26

94 Fabrication 215d 04-Jun-26 31-Mar-27

95 Construction 152d 01-Apr-27 29-Oct-27

96 Close-Out 45d 01-Nov-27 31-Dec-27

BP #27-05A - MSN and MSS Interior UpgradesBP #27-05A - MSN and MSS Interior UpgradesBP #27-05A - MSN and MSS Interior UpgradesBP #27-05A - MSN and MSS Interior UpgradesBP #27-05A - MSN and MSS Interior Upgrades

50 Design 283d 01-Jul-26* 30-Jul-27

51 Procurement 45d 02-Aug-27 01-Oct-27

52 Fabrication 130d 04-Oct-27 31-Mar-28

53 Construction 151d 03-Apr-28 30-Oct-28

54 Close-Out 45d 31-Oct-28 01-Jan-29

BP #27-05B - MSN and MSS Interior UpgradesBP #27-05B - MSN and MSS Interior UpgradesBP #27-05B - MSN and MSS Interior UpgradesBP #27-05B - MSN and MSS Interior UpgradesBP #27-05B - MSN and MSS Interior Upgrades

62 Design 283d 01-Jul-26* 30-Jul-27

63 Procurement 45d 02-Aug-27 01-Oct-27

64 Fabrication 130d 04-Oct-27 31-Mar-28

65 Construction 151d 03-Apr-28 30-Oct-28

66 Close-Out 45d 31-Oct-28 01-Jan-29

BP #27-08 - Burdi UpgradesBP #27-08 - Burdi UpgradesBP #27-08 - Burdi UpgradesBP #27-08 - Burdi UpgradesBP #27-08 - Burdi Upgrades

80 Design 173d 01-Jan-27* 31-Aug-27

81 Procurement 45d 01-Sep-27 02-Nov-27

82 Fabrication 108d 03-Nov-27 31-Mar-28

83 Construction 151d 03-Apr-28 30-Oct-28

84 Close-Out 45d 31-Oct-28 01-Jan-29

BP #27-09 - Panknow and Pellerin Interior UpgradesBP #27-09 - Panknow and Pellerin Interior UpgradesBP #27-09 - Panknow and Pellerin Interior UpgradesBP #27-09 - Panknow and Pellerin Interior UpgradesBP #27-09 - Panknow and Pellerin Interior Upgrades

86 Design 262d 01-Sep-26* 01-Sep-27

O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

3 of 4 15-May-25 13:49

Remaining Level of Effort

Actual Level of Effort

Actual Work

Start Milestone

SM Critical

SM/FM Actual

Finish Milestone

FM Critical

Remaining Work

Critical Remaining Work

Start Date: 02-Dec-24

Finish Date: 01-Jan-30

Data Date: 01-Nov-24

Run Date: 15-May-25

LCPS Master Bond Schedule

Draft Schedule

Page 3 of 4



Activity ID Activity Name Original

Duration

Start Finish

87 Procurement 45d 02-Sep-27 03-Nov-27

88 Fabrication 107d 04-Nov-27 31-Mar-28

89 Construction 151d 03-Apr-28 30-Oct-28

90 Close-Out 45d 31-Oct-28 01-Jan-29

BP #28-02 - Green and S. River Interior and Exterior UpgradesBP #28-02 - Green and S. River Interior and Exterior UpgradesBP #28-02 - Green and S. River Interior and Exterior UpgradesBP #28-02 - Green and S. River Interior and Exterior UpgradesBP #28-02 - Green and S. River Interior and Exterior Upgrades

A1180 Design 262d 01-Jun-27* 31-May-28

A1190 Procurement 45d 01-Jun-28 02-Aug-28

A1200 Fabrication 172d 03-Aug-28 30-Mar-29

A1210 Construction 280d 02-Apr-29 30-Oct-29

A1220 Close-Out 45d 31-Oct-29 01-Jan-30

BP 28-03 - Pellerin, Wheeler, Brender Interior UpgrdesBP 28-03 - Pellerin, Wheeler, Brender Interior UpgrdesBP 28-03 - Pellerin, Wheeler, Brender Interior UpgrdesBP 28-03 - Pellerin, Wheeler, Brender Interior UpgrdesBP 28-03 - Pellerin, Wheeler, Brender Interior Upgrdes

A1130 Design 369d 01-Jan-27* 31-May-28

A1140 Procurement 45d 01-Jun-28 02-Aug-28

A1150 Fabrication 172d 03-Aug-28 30-Mar-29

A1160 Construction 280d 02-Apr-29 30-Oct-29

A1170 Close-Out 45d 31-Oct-29 01-Jan-30

O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

Design

Procurement

Fabrication

Construction

Close-Out

4 of 4 15-May-25 13:49

Remaining Level of Effort

Actual Level of Effort

Actual Work

Start Milestone

SM Critical

SM/FM Actual

Finish Milestone

FM Critical

Remaining Work

Critical Remaining Work

Start Date: 02-Dec-24

Finish Date: 01-Jan-30

Data Date: 01-Nov-24

Run Date: 15-May-25

LCPS Master Bond Schedule

Draft Schedule

Page 4 of 4



 

 

EXHIBIT G 
 

TEAM RESPONSIBILITY MATRIX 
 
 

See attached Team Responsibility Matrix dated October 1, 2024



RESPONSIBILITY MATRIX DATED NOVEMBER 5, 2024

L'Anse Creuse Public Schools

PROJECT TEAM:

OWNER:  Farmington Public SchoolsL'Anse Creuse Public Schools 

ARCHITECT:  Partners in Architecture, PLC

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER:  Barton Malow Builders LLC

INTRODUCTION:

The following matrix lists functional tasks assigned to one or more members of the L'Anse 
Creuse Public Schools Project Team. 

Tasks are listed by category and general sequence.  Some tasks are clarified by footnotes.

1 November 5, 2024



RESPONSIBILITY MATRIX                                                                                                  

TEAM SELECTION OWNER A/E CM

Initiate Project 1 0 0

Owner Selects CM 1 0 0

Owner Selects A/E 1 0 0

Establish Team Responsibilities 1 1 1

Establish Fees 1 1 1

Execute Contractual Agreements 1 1 1

Establish Communication Procedures 1 1 1*

PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

Develop Owner's Program 1* 1 1

Establish Owner's Budget 1 2 1 (1)

Establish Budget Guidelines and Controls 1 2 1*

Analyze Program vs. Budget 1 1 1*

Develop Hazardous Material Program 1 2 2

Establish Site Requirements 1 1* 2

Conduct Site Evaluation 1 1* 2

Conduct Utilities Evaluation 0 1 2

Develop Preliminary Project Master Schedule 1 1 1*

Establish Preliminary Occupancy Schedule 1 2 1 (2)

Develop Preliminary Cash Flow Schedule 0 0 1

SCOPE VALIDATION & SCHEMATIC DESIGN

Study Spatial Relationships 2 1 2

Prepare Functional and Flow Diagrams 0 1 0

Recommend Basic Materials & Systems 2 1 2

Coordinate with Governmental Agencies 2 1 2 (3)

Update Project Master Schedule 1 1 1*

Update Occupancy Schedule 1 2 1 (4)

Prepare Detailed Design Schedule 2 1* 1 (5)

Complete Scope Validation Design Packages 0 1 0

Develop Schematic Estimate 1 2 1* (6)

Analyze Estimate (Program/Budget/Estimate) 2 1 1*

Refine Program (Relating to Bond Scope/Budget/Estimate) 1 1* 1

Scope Validation Report 0 1* 1
Board's Review and Approval of Schematic Design & Estimate 1 2 2

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT OWNER A/E CM

Obtain Survey & Soils Testing 1* 1 2 (7)

Retain Special Consultants 1 1 2

Prepare Site Plan 0 1 0

Evaluate Architectural Component & System Alternates 0 1 2

Evaluate Structural Systems 0 1 2

Responsiblity:1 = Major, 2 = Minor, 0 = None,* = Lead 2 November 5, 2024



RESPONSIBILITY MATRIX                                                                                                  

Evaluate Mechanical & Electrical Systems 0 1 2

Prepare Outline Specifications 0 1 2

Initiate Preliminary Utility Co. Review 2 1 2

Complete Design Development Packages 0 1 0

Prepare Design Development Estimate 0 2 1

Analyze Estimate (Program/Budget/Estimate) 2 1 1*

Conduct Value Engineering Analysis 0 1 1 (8)

Finalize Selection of Components & Systems 1 1* 2

Design Development Report 0 1* 1

Board's Review & Approval of Design Documents & Estimate 1 2 2

Obtain Fed./State/Local Bldg. & Health Authority Approvals 2 1 2 (9)

Obtain State Fire Marshal Plan Approval  2 1 2 (9)

Obtain Dept. of Natural Resources Approval 2 1 2 (9)

Prepare Local Planning or Zoning Board Approvals 2 1 2 (9)

Update Master Schedule 1 1 1*

Prepare Preliminary Construction Schedule 2 0 1

Identify Long-Lead Purchase Items 0 1 1*

Prepare Long-Lead Purchase & Phased Construction Documents 0 1* 1

Bid and Purchase Long-Lead Items 2 2 1

Evaluate Labor & Trade Contractor Market 0 0 1

Establish General Conditions 2 2 1

Update Cash Flow Schedule 0 0 1

Establish Reporting & Accounting Procedures 1 2 1 (10)

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS OWNER A/E CM

Prepare Construction Plans & Technical Specifications 0 1 0

Implement Phased Construction, if Applicable 2 2 1

Review Construction Plans & Technical Specifications 1 1* 1 (11)

Final Government Agency Review Approval 2 1 2

Finalize Owner Occupancy Schedule 1 0 1*

Prepare Project Manual 0 2 1 (12)

Establish Contract Conditions 2 2 1 (13)

Determine Bid Divisions of Work 0 2 1

Update Construction Schedule 0 0 1

Prepare Trade Contractor Bid Lists 2 2 1

Review Trade Contractor Bid Lists 1 1 1*

Update Cash Flow Schedule 2 0 1

Board's Approval of Construction Documents & Schedule 1 2 2

BIDDING AND AWARDING

Advertise for Trade Contractor Bids 2 0 1

Place Legal Ads for Bidding 1 2 1 (14)

Distribute Bidding Documents 0 0 1

Responsiblity:1 = Major, 2 = Minor, 0 = None,* = Lead 3 November 5, 2024



RESPONSIBILITY MATRIX                                                                                                  

Obtain Builders Risk Insurance 1 0 2 (15)

Conduct Trade Contractor Pre-Bid Conference 0 2 1 (16)

Prepare & Distribute Addenda 0 1 1*

Receive & Tabulate Trade Contractors' Bids 2 2 1 (17)

Evaluate Bids for Specification Compliance 0 1 1*

Evaluate Bids and Make Award Recommendations 2 1 1*

Conduct Pre-Award Conferences 2 1 1*

Evaluate Cost of Project as Bid 0 2 1

Update Construction & Master Schedule 0 0 1

Board's Review & Approval of Trade Contracts 1 2 2

Issue Notice to Proceed 2 0 1*

Develop Detailed Construction Schedule 0 0 1

Issue Trade Contracts 1 0 1*

CONSTRUCTION OWNER A/E CM

Mobilization for Construction 0 0 1

Verify & Monitor Insurance & Bond Requirements 2 2 1

Provide Full Time Field Coordination & Reporting 0 0 1

Establish Beneficial Occupancy Schedule 0 0 1

Inspect & Monitor Trade Contractors' Work 0 2 1

Inspect for Conformance to Design 0 1 2

Interpret Plans & Specifications 0 1 2

Evaluate Progress & Update Construction Schedule 0 0 1

Process Shop Drawings & Sample Control 0 2 1

Check & Approve Shop Drawings & Samples 0 1 2

Approve Trade Contractor Progress Payments 1 1 1 (18)

Disperse Payments to Contractors 2 0 1

Provide Project Cost Controls 0 0 1

Conduct Job Meetings 0 2 1

Prepare & Process Bulletins 2 1 2 (19)

Prepare & Process Change Documents 0 1 1*

Review & Approve Change Documents 1 2 2 (20)

Administer Safety Program 0 0 1

Administer Quality Control Program 0 2 1 (21)

Maintain As-Constructed Drawings 0 2 1

Coordinate Owner Occupancy Schedule 1 2 1

CLOSE OUT & OCCUPANCY

Prepare Punch List 2 1* 1

Coordinate Completion of Punch List 0 2 1

Certify Substantial Completion 2 1 2

Obtain Final Approval from Fire Marshal 0 1* 1

Conduct Demonstration on Systems & Equipment 1 1 1 (21)

Start-Up & Recommended Maintenance 1 2 1

Responsiblity:1 = Major, 2 = Minor, 0 = None,* = Lead 4 November 5, 2024



RESPONSIBILITY MATRIX                                                                                                  

Submit Operation Manuals & Warranties 0 1 1*

Inspect for Final Compliance with Documents 2 1 2

Perform Final Accounting 0 0 1

Determine Final Payments 1 1 1*

Coordinate Work under Guarantee 0 2 1

Provide Continuing Consultation in Post Occupancy 0 1 1

Owner's Acceptance 1 0 0

Responsiblity:1 = Major, 2 = Minor, 0 = None,* = Lead 5 November 5, 2024



RESPONSIBILITY MATRIX

FOOTNOTES
(1) The Owner establishes limits of expenditures, the Construction Manager develops breakdowns for

total cost.
(2) The Owner sets the desired occupancy based on the construction duration anticipated by the

Construction Manager.
(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10) Owner develops reporting and accounting procedures.  Construction Manager provides reports to Owner 
in accordance with such procedures.

(11)

(12) Construction Manager to prepare description of work for each trade and equipment contractor in 
accordance with the Architect/Engineer's specifications.

(13) Construction Manager to initiate trade contract conditions to be reviewed and approved by the Owner.

(14) Owner shall place the legal advertisement in the local newspaper and on the State's website required for 
school district construction bids, but the Construction Manager shall provide Owner with the legal 
advertisement for publication.

(15) Builders Risk Insurance obtained by Owner.

(16)

(17)

(18)

(19)

(20)

(21)

(22)

The Owner establishes limits of expenditures, the Construction Manager develops breakdowns for total 
cost.
The Architect/Engineer obtains the necessary surveys and soil tests to properly execute the work, which 
is contracted and paid for directly by the Owner to the survey and testing agency or as a Reimburseable 
Expense to the Architect.
The Construction Manager recommends cost effective alternate systems for analysis by the 
Architect/Engineer with joint concurrence in recommending systems to the Owner for approval.

Following consultation with the Owner, the Architect/Engineer coordinates governmental agency plan 
reviews as required and assisted by the Construction Manager.
The Owner sets the desired occupancy based on the construction duration anticipated by the 
Construction Manager.
The Architect/Engineer set their production schedules based on the overall project milestones 
established by the Construction Manager.  Architect/Engineer is responsible to meet the design 

The Architect/Engineer will submit all required drawings, specifications, transmittals, applications and 
fees to the appropriate governing agencies after approval from the Owner.  Owner to reimburse fees to 
Architect/Engineer.

The Owner reviews plans and specifications for program requirements, Construction Manager reviews 
for cost and duration control and to determine if there are any issues or concerns relative to 

Chaired by Construction Manager with Architect/Engineer in attendance for questions and drafting of 
addenda.
Owner receives bids, assisted by the Construction Manager at a public bid opening, with 
Architect/Engineer in attendance.

Contractors to conduct demonstration to Owner with Architect/Engineer and Construction Manager in 
attendance.

Construction Manager and Architect/Engineer approves certification for payment to trade Contractors 
and submits summary to Owner for approval of payment.
Architect/Engineer prepares bulletins for trade or equipment Contractors and submits to Owner and  
Construction Manager to review and approve.
Architect/Engineer and Construction Manager approve bulletin/field change order/Owner directive 
pricing, and Owner approves expenditure.
Architect/Engineer establishes quality control plan in technical specifications and Construction Manager 
implements the plan.

6 November 5, 2024CLARKHILL\21958\501085\279005973.v2-2/28/25



 

 

EXHIBIT H 
 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER SERVICES 

Scope of Preconstruction Services          

GENERAL 

The Construction Manager's Preconstruction Services shall include, but shall not be limited to,  
estimating Cost of the Work, construction budget control, review of design and constructability, 
value engineering, life-cycle costing, influence the methods and sequence of construction, scoping 
of bid packages and work categories, and soliciting bids from Contractors, and tabulating bids 
received, and review and recommend bid awards. The Owner reserves the right to make reasonable 
changes to this schedule as Project requirements dictate. 

A. SCHEDULE, PHASING AND LOGISTICS PLAN DEVELOPMENT 

1. The Construction Manager shall assist in the development of a Master Preconstruction 
Schedule beginning with the Schematic Design and continuing through the bidding and 
Contract award. The final date on the Preconstruction Schedule will be the bid date of the 
Owner awarding and signing the construction Contract of the last Bid Package. The 
Preconstruction Schedule will place significant emphasis on the phasing and logistics 
planning of the Project. It will take into careful consideration areas of the existing and 
adjacent facilities and site that must remain open during construction. 

2. The Preconstruction Schedule will identify the responsibilities among the members of 
the Construction Team. Key milestone dates, including, without limitation, for design 
phases, budget delivery, permit request submission, state submission and review, release 
of documents for bidding, and tentative bid and bid award. 

3. Additionally, the Preconstruction Schedule should identify long lead items that may 
require procurement during the term of this Agreement. Major building equipment items 
such as boilers, chillers, air handlers, generators, switchgear, etc., may be in this category. 
The schedule must also identify when architecturally significant Owner furnished 
equipment must be delivered to this Project. 

4. The Construction Manager will assist in developing the schedule so that realistic dates can 
be set and met. The Preconstruction Services Schedule will be distributed to all members 
of the Construction Team and monitored on a regular basis during the 
Design/Preconstruction Services review meetings. It is the responsibility of the 
Construction Manager to continually emphasize to all members of the Construction Team 
that meeting the Preconstruction Services Schedule milestones is the key element in 
ensuring a timely design phase of the Project, allowing for a prompt construction start date. 
The Preconstruction Services Schedule shall include reasonable time for Owner review 
and comment. 

5. Concurrent with submission of each Budget Estimate as defined in Section C below, the 
Construction Manager shall prepare and submit to the Owner a precedent annotated bar 



 

 

chart, CPM or other scheduling method suitable to the Owner for the Construction Phase 
of the Project. This schedule shall be updated with each Budget Estimate and shall reflect 
any revisions in the Budget Estimates, which affect the construction duration. Activity 
detail on the schedules must directly correspond to the budget line items. 

6. Concurrent with the submission of a Cost of the Work estimate for any phase of the Work 
as defined in Section C, below, the Construction Manager shall provide pertinent 
information and assist in the development of a Master Construction Schedule associated 
with each particular phase of Work, beginning with the Construction Manager's 
mobilization and ending with Project Completion/Final Inspection/Occupancy. The 
strategy of phasing the Project as determined during Preconstruction should be identified 
from start through completion on the overall schedule. It shall have a minimum number of 
activities, as required to adequately represent to the Owner the complete Scope of Work 
and define the Project's critical path and associated activities. The format of the Master 
Construction Schedule will be an expansion of the base line schedule as developed in 
conjunction with each budget estimate with dependencies indicated on a monthly grid 
identifying key milestone dates including, without limitation, construction start, phase 
completion, structural top-out, dry-in, M/E/P rough-in completion, permanent power, 
conditioned air, metal stud, and drywall completion date and Owner occupancy date. 

B. DOCUMENT REVIEW 

1. Design/Preconstruction Services review meetings may be held as often as biweekly 
through the design phase of the Projects. Meetings shall be held at the Owner's office. 

2. The Construction Manager shall develop and maintain a Request for Information (RFI) 
Log and/or an Issues and Answers Log to aid in the prompt transfer of information 
between all members of the Construction Team. The log will be monitored and updated 
on a continual basis and addressed at the review meetings. Unresolved issues are to be 
identified in each review meeting with follow-up responsibilities and response dates 
being assigned to the appropriate team members, including the Construction Manager. 

3. The Construction Manager shall provide the members of the Construction Team 
continual input addressing constructability, availability of materials and qualified trades 
for specialized systems, comparative cost/benefit analyses for various building systems, 
and budget/schedule impact as specific phases of the overall design are developed in 
order to ensure the development and completion of Contract Documents within the 
budget and schedule limitations. 

4. If necessary in order for the Construction Manager to provide accurate information, it 
shall, at no additional cost to the Owner, involve the services of outside consultants 
and/or subcontractors in the review and budgeting of specialized systems such as 
structural, skin/curtain-wall, equipment, elevators, furnishings, plumbing, fire 
suppression, mechanical, electrical, utility service connections, pneumatic tube, food 
service, low voltage, and life safety. 

 

 

 



 

 

 

C. DESIGN BUDGET/ESTIMATES  

The Construction Manager shall prepare and submit three (3) formal Budget/Estimates for the 
Project and/or each sub-component of the Project during the Preconstruction Services Phase. 

1. The Construction Manager shall prepare and present to the Owner and the Construction 
Team the first formal Project Budget/Estimate at the conclusion of Schematic Design 
Phase. This first Budget/Estimate shall be divided into the 16 CSI Divisions and allows 
the Owner to rely upon it as a maximum Cost of the Work of the Project. 

2. The Construction Manager shall prepare and present to the Owner and the Construction 
Team a second formal Project Budget/Estimate at the conclusion of Design 
Development Phase. This second Budget/Estimate shall be a "full take-off estimate" of 
sufficient substance and detail so the Owner will be able to rely upon as a maximum 
Cost of the Work. The Construction Manager shall fully engage the Architect and other 
design team members to ensure that the scope, quality and costs of the Project are 
aligned and within the initial maximum Cost of the Work. 

3. The Construction Manager shall prepare and submit a third Budget/Estimate at the 
conclusion of Construction Documents Phase.  This Budget/Estimate shall establish 
and represent the final estimate of the Project and/or each subcomponent of the Project. 

D. VALUE (PLANNING) ENGINEERING  

Concurrent with the submission of each Budget/Estimate, the Construction Manager shall 
submit a detailed list of value engineering options and the associated estimated costs. The 
Construction Manager shall meet and work with the members of the Construction Team in the 
evaluation of the various options and incorporate selected options into the Budget Estimates. 
The Construction Manager shall participate as a Construction Team member in maximizing 
the Project value for the Owner. 

E. EQUIPMENT REVIEW AND COORDINATION OF DIRECT OWNER 
CONTRACTS  

1. The Construction Manager shall assist the Owner in reviewing and budgeting the owner 
furnished equipment and furnishings material and installation costs or other items 
potentially affecting the construction contract, and shall include these budgets or 
allowances to the extent they are reasonably known, in each Budget Estimate to ensure 
that all costs are accounted for.  

2. When required, the Construction Manager will work with the Architect during the 
Preconstruction Services Phase of the Project to assist the Owner in receiving bids and 
placing purchase orders for long lead equipment. 

  



 

 

F. CASH FLOW ANALYSIS  

Concurrent with the submission of each Budget Estimate and the Master Construction Phase 
Schedule as defined in Section A, above, the Construction Manager shall submit a cash flow 
analysis for the overall construction duration of the Project. This analysis should be derived 
from cost loading the construction schedule as developed and revised by the Construction 
Manager, showing projected monthly billings for Completed Work in Place. The analysis 
shall list individual monthly billings, accumulated billings to date, and percentages of 
completion on a monthly basis. 

G. SCOPING OF BID PACKAGES AND WORK CATEGORIES (FOR EACH 
 PROJECT) 

Bid Packages are defined as those portions of the overall Project scope that are released for 
competitive bidding at staggered bid dates. Bid Packaging identifies opportunities for phased 
construction in order to accelerate the Construction Schedule to deal with Project constraints. 
The main intent in developing Bid Packages and Work Categories is to account for every item 
of work in the overall Project and identify the trade or Construction Manager responsible for 
performing the Work. Additionally, the development of Bid Packages and Work Categories 
is to overcome scope overlaps or omissions between trades. The Construction Manager, with 
assistance of the Architect and members of the Construction Team, shall define and prepare 
Scope of Work for various bid packages and work categories as required ensuring the Master 
Design and Construction Schedule is maintained and ensuring all required Work shall be 
included. 

H. SUBCONTRACTOR/VENDOR SOLICITATION AND PREQUALIFICATION 

1. The Construction Manager shall aggressively promote and generate interest of local 
and regional bidders and develop a master list of vendors, Contractors and 
subcontractors, which have shown interest in submitting bid proposals for the Project. 
This list should include Vendors and Subcontractors for all categories of work included 
in the total Project. The Construction Manager is required to report the percentage of 
the total Cost of Work that the local firms represent. 

2. This list should include only companies that are responsible, qualified and financially 
capable. 

I.  CONSTRUCTION STAGING AND SITE MANAGEMENT PLANNING  

The Construction Manager, with input from the members of the Construction Team, shall 
develop a proposed site management plan for staging construction operations. This plan will 
test the site to ensure all functionality described in the design is working. At minimum, the 
plan shall include such particulars as primary access roads to and from the construction site, 
construction parking, on-site entrances, construction personnel entrances and traffic patterns, 
location of temporary facilities, location of hoists, cranes and other stationary equipment if 
site accessibility is critical and dictates specific placement, locations of barricades and 
construction fences, emergency egress locations, etc., so that Owner's use of existing site or 
facility can be minimally disrupted or inconvenienced. 

  

http://etc.so/


 

 

J. BIDDING AND CONSTRUCTION PHASE  

1. Work Packaging & Bidding 

a. The Construction Manager shall create a labor analysis, to include types and 
quantities of labor required for the Project. Review the requirements in light of the 
marketplace and make any recommendations necessary to assure the availability of 
an adequate labor force. 

b. The Construction Manager shall develop work-packaging recommendations and 
create package bidding schedule and procedure. 

c. The Construction Manager shall analyze the bid market, notify potential bidders, 
publish bid calendar, and publish all required notices. 

d. Bidding Documents shall consist of bidding requirements and proposed Contract 
Documents, bidding information, bidding forms, proposed contract forms, General 
Conditions and Supplementary Conditions, Specifications and Drawings and other 
necessary Contract Documents. As much as possible, the bidding and contract 
forms shall use the unabridged AIA Contract Documents, modified as necessary 
and appropriate. 

e. The Architect shall cooperate with and assist the Owner and Construction Manager 
in bidding the Project by 

.1  procuring the reproduction of Bidding Documents for distribution to 
prospective bidders; 

.2  distributing the Bidding Documents to prospective bidders, requesting their 
return upon completion of the bidding process, and maintaining a log of 
distribution and retrieval and of the amounts of deposits, if any, received from 
and returned to prospective bidders; 

.3  organizing and conducting pre-bid conferences for prospective bidders; 

.4  preparing responses to questions from prospective bidders and providing 
clarifications and interpretations of the Bidding Documents to all prospective 
bidders in the form of addenda;  

.5  organizing and conducting the opening of the bids, and subsequently 
documenting and distributing the bidding results, as directed by the Owner. 

.6  if required and directed by the Owner, participate in selection interviews and 
negotiations with prospective contractors, and major subcontractors, vendors 
and suppliers; and follow-up with preparing a summary report of the interviews 
and negotiation results; and 

.7  Upon Owner's approval to award bids, assist the Owner in finalizing the Work 
and preparing construction contracts. 

f. The Architect shall, as part of Architect's Basic Services, consider requests for 
substitutions, if the Bidding Documents permit substitutions, and shall consult with 
the Construction Manager and prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved 
substitutions to all prospective bidders. 



 

 

2. During the Bidding Process, the Construction Manager shall: 

a. procuring the reproduction of Bidding Documents for distribution to prospective 
bidders; 

b. distributing the Bidding Documents to prospective bidders, requesting their 
return upon completion of the bidding process, and maintaining a log of 
distribution and retrieval and of the amounts of deposits, if any, received from 
and returned to prospective bidders; 

c. Maintain a list of all potential bidders, subcontractors and vendors that intend 
to bid the Work. 

d. organizing and conducting a pre-bid conference for prospective bidders; 

e. preparing responses to questions from prospective bidders and providing 
clarifications and interpretations of the Bidding Documents to all prospective 
bidders in the form of addenda;  

f. organizing and conducting the opening of the bids, and subsequently 
documenting and distributing the bidding results, as directed by the Owner. 

g. Receive bids, analyze and reconcile, and present bid results arrayed against the 
estimate for each individual work package for the Owner's approval; and 

h. Participate in selection interviews and negotiations with prospective 
contractors, and major subcontractors, vendors and suppliers; and follow-up 
with preparing a summary report of the interviews and negotiation results. 

Receive and log all insurance certificates, performance and payment bonds, and other required 
affidavits and start-up documents.    



 

21958\501085\278985814.v3 

EXHIBIT I 
 

AIA DOCUMENT A232-2019, GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE 
CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION, AMENDED FOR THE PROJECT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 





































































































































Keith Howell 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

Michael W. Van Camp 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

Anita Dzieszkowski 
SUPERVISOR FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6311 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Al Doss Sharon Ross John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER 

AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Initiator:  Mike Van Camp 
  
Board Meeting: June 9, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Employment Recommendations 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
Background:   
 
The attached list contains candidates who have been recommended for employment in the 
position/building that is indicated, as well as current employees who are being recommended 
for a change in some aspect of their employment status.  
 
 
Current Status:   
The Human Resources department has received, from the appropriate administrator, a 
recommendation for the action listed along with any required documentation. Interviews and 
reference checks, if applicable, have been completed.  The Employment Recommendations are 
being submitted for approval by the Board. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion:   
 
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the Employment 
Recommendations as presented. 
 
 
MV/jd 
 

 

 
 

 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


Employment Recommendations

June 9, 2025

Page 1

# * Name Assignment Remarks Effective Degree/Step

INSTRUCTIONAL

1 Babbitt, Aimee Summer School Special Education Teacher 

(TC Room), L'Anse Creuse High School 

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

2 Baumgarten, Madison GSRP Teacher, Anna Mae Burdi Early 

Childhood Center

New Position 8/13/2025 $31.08 

3 Bayly, Jaime Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

4 Beard, Meredith Summer School Coordinator, split 

position, L'Anse Creuse High School - 

North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $3,500.00 

5 Beard, Meredith Principal, L'Anse Creuse High School - 

North

Retirement (29 years, 6 

months)

7/31/2025

6 Brooks, Andrea Preschool Panda's Summer Camp Teacher, 

Anna Mae Burdi Early Childhood Center

Filled Position 6/11/2025 $25.08 

7 Brown, Amy Summer School Math Teacher, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North 

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

8 Carr-Medina, Carroll Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

9 Cavalier, Trindin Summer School Special Education Teacher 

(TC Room), L'Anse Creuse High School - 

North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

10 Crescentini, Luciano Summer School PE/Gym Teacher, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

11 Crescentini, Luciano Summer School Social Studies, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

12 Day, Kendall Title I Extended School Year Teacher- 

Summer Program, Graham Elementary

New Position 6/9/2025 $40.00 

13 Dudzinski, Sheri Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 



Employment Recommendations

June 9, 2025

Page 2

14 Ellul, Nicholas Summer School Coordinator, split 

position, L'Anse Creuse High School - 

North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $3,500.00 

15 French, Sabrina Off to a Great Start Instructor, L'Anse 

Creuse Middle School - East

Filled Position 8/11/2025 $40.00 

16 Griffith, Nicole Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

17 Hein, Janis Speech & Language Pathologist, 

Lobbestael Elementary

Resignation 6/6/2025

18 Hessell, Shayna Title I Extended School Year Teacher- 

Summer Program, Graham Elementary

New Position 6/9/2025 $40.00 

19 Kavanagh, Donald Summer School Online-Edmentum 

Teacher, L'Anse Creuse High School - 

North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

20 Koneczny, Lauren Title I Extended School Year Teacher- 

Summer Program, Graham Elementary

New Position 6/9/2025 $40.00 

21 Laing, John Summer School Math Teacher, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

22 Livingston, Codi Summer Mini Camp Teacher, Anna Mae 

Burdi Early Childhood Center

Filled Position 6/23/2025 $26.83 

23 Mancini, Daniel Off to a Great Start Instructor, L'Anse 

Creuse Middle School - South

Filled Position 8/11/2025 $40.00 

24 Martin, Ronald Summer School Coordinator, L'Anse 

Creuse High School 

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $7,000.00 

25 McMahon, Vicki Title I Extended School Year Teacher- 

Summer Program, Graham Elementary

New Position 6/9/2025 $40.00 

26 Mourtos, Jalyn Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 



Employment Recommendations

June 9, 2025

Page 3

27 Nevado, John Title I Extended School Year Teacher- 

Summer Program, Graham Elementary

New Position 6/9/2025 $40.00 

28 Nyenhuis, Kimberly Off to a Great Start Instructor, L'Anse 

Creuse Middle School - North

Filled Position 8/11/2025 $40.00 

29 O'Connell, Kelli Summer School Science Teacher, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

30 Onyski, Mikalle Title I Extended School Year Teacher- 

Summer Program, Graham Elementary

New Position 6/9/2025 $40.00 

31 Pardi, Daniel Summer School English Teacher, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

32 Polderdyke, Crystal Off to a Great Start Instructor, L'Anse 

Creuse Middle School - Central 

Filled Position 8/11/2025 $40.00 

33 Reppenhagen, Jillian Preschool Panda's Summer Camp Teacher, 

Anna Mae Burdi Early Childhood Center

Filled Position 6/11/2025 $25.08 

34 Smith, Amber Preschool Panda's Summer Camp Teacher, 

Anna Mae Burdi Early Childhood Center

Filled Position 6/11/2025 $25.08 

35 Turak, Heath Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary

Filled Position 6/26/2025 $40.00 

36 Wheeler, Debra Summer School Counselor, L'Anse Creuse 

High School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $40.00 

1 Allam, Judy Title I Paraprofessional, Tenniswood 

Elementary

Retirement (8 years, 8 

months)

6/5/2025

2 Anderson, Nevaeh Summer Day Camp South Counselor, 

South River Elementary

Replaces Jackson Saleh 6/16/2025 $15.48 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL



Employment Recommendations

June 9, 2025

Page 4

3 Andrejewski, Leah Preschool Panda's Summer Camp Aide, 

Anna Mae Burdi Early Childhood Center

Filled Position 6/11/2025 $15.92 

4 Berger, Nancy Paraprofessional, Green Elementary Retirement (39 years, 6 

months)

6/6/2025

5 Bianchi, Michelle Cook/Cashier, L'Anse Creuse High School - 

North

Resignation 5/19/2025

6 Bicksler, Lori Summer Feeding, Class III, South River 

Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $17.85 

7 Borowy, Andrea EL Paraprofessional for Extended Year, 

L'Anse Creuse Middle School - North

New Position 6/5/2025 $17.37 

8 Bothel, Jaclyn Summer Day Camp South Counselor, 

South River Elementary

Replaces Zorica Zaric 6/16/2025 $15.48 

9 Burton, Kari Preschool Panda's Summer Camp Aide, 

Anna Mae Burdi Early Childhood Center

Filled Position 6/11/2025 $16.74 

10 Canup, Jennifer Summer Day Camp North Counselor, 

Carkenord Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $15.48 

11 Corbin, Deborah Cook/Cashier, L'Anse Creuse Middle 

School - Central

Resignation 5/8/2025

12 Cornett, Tracy Athletic Event Worker, L'Anse Creuse 

Middle School - South

Filled Position 5/1/2025 $12.48 

13 DeCeuninck, Kristie Summer Day Camp North Counselor, 

Carkenord Elementary

Filled Position 6/11/2025 $16.21 

14 Evans, Kimberly Summer Feeding, Class I, South River 

Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $15.00 

15 Ferrazza, Jacqueline Spring Boys Running Club Supplemental, 

L'Anse Creuse Middle School - North

New Position 4/21/2025 Flat Rate

$700

16 Ferrazza, Jacqueline Spring Girls Running Club Supplemental, 

L'Anse Creuse Middle School - North

New Position 4/21/2025 Flat Rate

$700

17 Gianakis, Chelsea Preschool Panda's Summer Camp Aide, 

Anna Mae Burdi Early Childhood Center

Filled Position 6/11/2025 $15.48 



Employment Recommendations

June 9, 2025

Page 5

18 Gratton, Don Director for Operations, Larry F. Brender 

Support Services Center

Retirement (4 years, 3 

months)

9/30/2025

19 Gurecki, Hannah Lifeguard for Community Education, Harry 

L. Wheeler Community Center & 

Administrative Offices 

Filled Position 5/27/2025 $15.75 

20 Heilig, Cindy Summer Feeding - Mobile Transporter, 

Class I, South River Elementary

Replaces Amy Cirillo 6/16/2025 $15.00 

21 Iknar, Elisia Summer Day Camp South Counselor, 

South River Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $15.48 

22 Jacques, Timothy Summer Day Camp North Counselor, 

Carkenord Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $16.42 

23 Krula, Melyssa Summer Day Camp South Counselor, 

South River Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $15.71 

24 Lamb, Angela Athletic Event Worker, L'Anse Creuse 

Middle School - South

Filled Position 5/1/2025 $12.48 

25 Lingeman, Skylar Summer Day Camp North Counselor, 

Carkenord Elementary

Replaces Julianna Webb 6/16/2025 $15.48 

26 Livingston, Sue Payroll Specialist, Harry L. Wheeler 

Community Center & Administrative 

Offices 

Retirement (18 years, 1 

month)

12/31/2025

27 Mancini, Sabrina Cook/Cashier, L'Anse Creuse High School - 

North

Resignation 5/22/2025

28 Mayfield, Roger Bus Driver, Larry F. Brender Support 

Services Center

Retirement (10 years, 1 

month)

9/1/2025

29 McDonald, Brian Bowling Club Sponsor, L'Anse Creuse 

Middle School - South

Resignation 5/22/2025

30 McDonald, Brian 8th Grade Assistant Football Coach, L'Anse 

Creuse Middle School - South

Resignation 5/22/2025

31 McDonald, Brian Intramural Sponsor, L'Anse Creuse Middle 

School - South

Resignation 5/22/2025

32 McDonald, Brian 7th & 8th Grade Girls Track Coach, L'Anse 

Creuse Middle School - South

Resignation 5/22/2025



Employment Recommendations

June 9, 2025

Page 6

33 Njoku, Chinaka JV Boys Basketball Head At- Will Coach, 

L'Anse Creuse High School - North

Resignation 5/21/2025

34 Nummer, Jaclyn Summer School Secretary, L'Anse Creuse 

High School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $16.53 

35 * Oliva, Alexa Groundskeeper, Larry F. Brender Support 

Services Center

Replaces Chris Hayes 5/19/2025 $18.36 

36 O'Malley, Kayla Summer Day Camp North Counselor, 

Carkenord Elementary

Replaces Kara Piejak 6/16/2025 $16.42 

37 Pawl, Skye Preschool Panda's Summer Camp Aide, 

Anna Mae Burdi Early Childhood Center

Filled Position 6/11/2025 $16.16 

38 Perkins, Phyllis Senior Class Sponsor, L'Anse Creuse High 

School

Resignation 6/6/2025

39 Pijanowski, Suzanne Bus Driver, Larry F. Brender Support 

Services Center

Resignation 5/11/2025 $15.48 

40 Redinger, Cheryl Summer Records Clerk, L'Anse Creuse High 

School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $17.69 

41 Rossi, Carolyn Bus Driver, Larry F. Brender Support 

Services Center

Retirement (7 years, 10 

months)

6/13/2025

42 Ruell, Sara Summer Day Camp South Counselor, 

South River Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $15.48 

43 Ruffer, Randall Summer School Supervisory Aide, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Filled Position 6/10/2025 $15.48 

44 Sanders, Isabelle Summer Day Camp South Counselor, 

South River Elementary

Replaces Jonathan Blanchard 6/16/2025 $15.48 

45 Torres, Danielle Yearbook Club Sponsor, L'Anse Creuse 

Middle School - East

Replaces Marianne Mertz 8/25/2025 Per Contract 

46 Quantz, Julie Summer Day Camp North Counselor, 

Carkenord Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $16.42 

47 Weir, Jonathan Summer Day Camp North Counselor, 

Carkenord Elementary

Filled Position 6/16/2025 $16.21 

48 Wrubel, Wendy Custodian, Green Elementary Retirement (25 years) 6/27/2025

49 * Yencha, Rachel Girls JV Head Volleyball At-Will Coach, 

L'Anse Creuse High School - North

Replaces Breanna Staton 4/28/2025 Per Contract 



Employment Recommendations

June 9, 2025

Page 7

50 York, Maryjean Athletic Event Worker, L'Anse Creuse 

Middle School - South

Filled Position 5/1/2025 $12.48 

51 Zaldana, Sofia Preschool Panda's Summer Camp Aide, 

Anna Mae Burdi Early Childhood Center

Filled Position 6/11/2025 $16.74 

*New Employee to the District

Updated items are in red.

Years of service reflect LCPS service, only, and does not reflect purchased service or service in other school districts.



Keith Howell 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

Michael W. Van Camp 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

Anita Dzieszkowski 
SUPERVISOR FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6311 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Al Doss Sharon Ross John Da Via Jeffrey Cyprus Sandra Hernden Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER 

AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Initiator:  Mike Van Camp 

  

Board Meeting: June 9, 2025 

 

Agenda Item:  Layoff Resolutions 

  

Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 

Informational Material 

 Other_______________________ 

 

 

Background:   

 

Due to economic reasons, the district is reducing staff to reduce costs for the 2025/2026 school 

year. 

 

Current Status:   

 

A resolution for notice to lay off staff, is being presented to the Board for approval. 

 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion:   

 

It is recommended that the Board approve the resolution and authorize the Superintendent to 

notify, in writing, the staff affected by the resolution. 

 

MV/jd 
 

 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


L’ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

COUNTY OF MACOMB 
 

RESOLUTION FOR NOTICE TO LAYOFF STAFF 

 

A Committee of the Whole voting meeting of the Board of Education of L’Anse Creuse 

Public Schools, County of Macomb, State of Michigan ("the District"), was held on June 

9, 2025 at 6:30 p.m. 

 

 The meeting was called to order by       . 

 

 Present: __________________________________________________ 

   __________________________________________________ 

 Absent: __________________________________________________ 

 

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member __________________ 

and supported by Member _______________________: 

 

WHEREAS, the largest portion of the L’Anse Creuse Public Schools’ (the 

“District”) expenditures are used to pay for employment of personnel; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District, for economic reasons, must reduce its staff to reduce 

costs; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Education (the “Board”) of the District has Policies in 

place that address layoff procedures, including Article X, Personnel, Section 12 and 

Section 13; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board has negotiated collective bargaining agreements with its 

employee groups that address layoff procedures; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that: 

 

1. The individuals on the attached list, attached and incorporated herein as Exhibit 

A, shall be given notice, subject to the procedures in Board Policy or the applicable 

collective bargaining agreement, that the Board of the District has laid off said 

individuals effective June 30, 2025, unless an alternative effective date is provided 

for in Exhibit A. 

 

2. The Superintendent or his Designee is hereby directed to give the individuals 

named in this resolution notice of the layoff, a copy of this Resolution, and a copy 

of the Teachers Tenure Act, if applicable. 

 

3. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the 

provisions of this resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded. 



2 

 

 

 

 

 

Ayes: __________________________________________________ 

 

Nays: __________________________________________________ 

 

 Resolution declared adopted. 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Secretary, Board of Education 

       L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

The undersigned duly qualified and acting secretary of the Board of Education of L’Anse 

Creuse Public Schools, County of Macomb, State of Michigan, hereby certifies that the 

foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board of Education at 

a Committee of the Whole voting meeting held on June 9, 2025, the original of which 

resolution is a part of the Board's minutes and further certifies that notice of the meeting 

was given to the public under the Open Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267, as amended. 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Secretary, Board of Education 

       L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Adam Lipski        Al Doss                                  Sharon Ross                           John Da Via                         Jeffrey Cyprus                        Sandra Hernden                           Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT          VICE PRESIDENT               SECRETARY                       TREASURER          TRUSTEE                                        TRUSTEE                                               TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status in its 
programs, services, activities, or employment. Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 
Administration, 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, MI 48036, (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to: Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 
783-6300. 

 

 
 

 
 

 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

Keith Howell 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BOULEVARD 
CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036 

586.783.6300 
586.783.6310 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Initiator:  Keith Howell  

  

Board Meeting: June 9, 2025 

 

Agenda Item:  Non-Affiliated Contracts 

  

Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 

Informational Material 

 Other_______________________ 

 

 

Background:   

 

In 2022, the Board of Education approved three-year contracts for Non-Affiliated employees 

regarding wages, hours, and terms and conditions of employment. 

 

Current Status:  

 

The current Non-Affiliated contracts expire on June 30, 2025. Board of Education action to 

authorize the Superintendent to issue contracts for the 2025-2026 fiscal year is required. 

 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion:  

 

It is recommended the Board of Education approve the Non-Affiliated contracts for an additional 

one-year period, as presented. 

 

 
 

 

.  



BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Adam Lipski        Al Doss                                  Sharon Ross                           John Da Via                         Jeffrey Cyprus                        Sandra Hernden                           Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT          VICE PRESIDENT               SECRETARY                       TREASURER          TRUSTEE                                        TRUSTEE                                               TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status in its 
programs, services, activities, or employment. Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 
Administration, 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, MI 48036, (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to: Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 
783-6300. 

 

 
 

 
 

 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

Keith Howell 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BOULEVARD 
CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036 

586.783.6300 
586.783.6310 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Initiator:  Keith Howell  

  

Board Meeting: June 9, 2025 

 

Agenda Item:  Furlough days - Non-Affiliated Administrators (working 210 or more 

days)  

  

Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 

Informational Material 

 Other_______________________ 

 

 

Background:   

 

Due to budget cuts, Non-Affiliated Administrators (as defined by the Non-Affiliated 

Administrator Handbook) working 210 or more days annually will be required to take four 

unpaid furlough days for the 2025/2026 school year.  

 

Current Status:  

 

A resolution is being presented to the Board of Education for approval, which stipulates that 

Non-Affiliated Administrators (as defined by the Non-Affiliated Administrator Handbook) 

working 210 or more days annually will be required to take four unpaid furlough days. These 

days, subject to supervisor approval, must be taken when students are not in session, between 

July 1, 2025, and June 30, 2026. 

 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion:  

 

It's recommended that the Board of Education approve this resolution, as presented. 

 

.  



L’ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

COUNTY OF MACOMB 
 

RESOLUTION TO IMPLEMENT FURLOUGH DAYS FOR NON-AFFILIATED 

ADMINISTRATORS FOR THE 2025–2026 SCHOOL YEAR 

 

A Committee of the Whole voting meeting of the Board of Education of L’Anse Creuse Public 

Schools, County of Macomb, State of Michigan (“the District”), was held on June 9, 2025 at 

6:30 p.m. 

 

The meeting was called to order by:         .            

Present:            

             

Absent:            

 

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member     , 

and supported by Member     : 

WHEREAS, The Board of Education (the “Board”) of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

(the “District”) has experienced declining enrollment of the last five years; and 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 pandemic relief funds, known as ESSER funds, have expired; 

and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the declining enrollment and expiration of ESSER funds, the 

Board has engaged in cost management rightsizing of the District; and 

WHEREAS, The Board’s rightsizing efforts include the alignment of District staffing 

levels with current student enrollment to ensure long-term financial sustainability; and 

WHEREAS, the Superintendent has recommended that the Board implement four (4) 

furlough days for non-affiliated administrators working 210 or more days during the 

2025–2026 school year to support the cost management rightsizing efforts; and 

WHEREAS, the Superintendent has recommended that furlough days only occur when 

students are not in session, and that furlough days be approved by supervisors prior to 

any employee use of a furlough day; and 

WHEREAS, employees affected by the implementation of furlough days will have 

their 2025–2026 salary reduced by the equivalent of four calendar workdays per diem, 

and the reduction will be spread evenly across all pay periods for the 2025-2026 school 

year; and 

WHEREAS, the Superintendent’s recommendation of furlough days does not apply to 

Food and Nutrition administrators. 

 

 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Board of Education authorizes the Superintendent to implement four (4) furlough 

days for eligible non-affiliated administrators during the 2025–2026 school year, subject 

to furlough days only being used at times when students are not in session and upon 

approval by the employee’s supervisor prior to the use of furlough days. 

2. The Board of Education authorizes the Superintendent to ensure that all affected 

employees will have their 2025–2026 salary reduced by the equivalent of four calendar 

workdays per diem, and the reduction will be spread evenly across all pay periods for 

the 2025-2026 school year. 

3. The Board of Education authorizes the Superintendent to update the employment 

contracts of employees who are affected by the implementation of furlough days. 

4. The Board of Education directs the Superintendent to provide notice to affected 

employees of the implementation of furlough days prior to July 1, 2025. 

5. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions of 

this resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded 

Ayes:   

Nays:   

Resolution declared adopted. 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Secretary, Board of Education 

       L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

The undersigned duly qualified and acting secretary of the Board of Education of L’Anse 

Creuse Public Schools, County of Macomb, State of Michigan, hereby certifies that the 

foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board of Education at a 

Committee of the Whole voting meeting held on June 9, 2025, the original of which 

resolution is a part of the Board's minutes and further certifies that notice of the meeting was 

given to the public under the Open Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267, as amended. 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Secretary, Board of Education 

       L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 



Board Member Complaint Process 

 

1. Upon receipt of a formal complaint regarding a Board Member, District administrators 

should forward such complaint to the Superintendent, and the Superintendent will forward 

to the Board President.  If multiple members of the Board are named in the complaint, then 

the complaint shall be forwarded in the following order, can receive the complaint: 

President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer, then Trustees in alphabetical order by 

surname. Any Board Member named in a complaint will not attend any closed session 

convened pursuant to Section 8(h) of the Open Meetings Act for the purpose of reviewing 

materials pertaining to the subject investigation /complaint.   

 

2. The Board President and Vice-President will review the complaint and evaluate whether 

the conduct, as alleged, constitutes a violation of Board Policy or the law. If either the 

Board President or Vice-President reasonably believes the conduct, as alleged, constitutes 

a violation of Board Policy or the law, or lacks sufficient information to ascertain whether 

the alleged conduct constitutes such a violation, the Board President can ask for legal 

counsel/opinion letter. The Board President will then refer the complaint to the full Board.  

  

3. At its next meeting, the Board will determine whether to proceed with an investigation in 

open session. If so, the Board will appoint an Investigator. If the Board elects no 

investigation, the Board President will contact legal counsel to determine next steps. 

 

4.  The Investigator will be granted authority to investigate the allegations and prepare a 

written report. The investigator cannot be another member of the Board or an employee of 

the district.  The Board will consult with the district’s legal counsel on recommendations 

for a neutral investigator.  The procedure is as follows: 

 

a. The investigator shall conduct an interview with the Complainant.  If the 

Complainant refuses to participate in an interview or is unavailable, the                     

Investigator may proceed on a written statement or other information in the           

District’s possession. 

b. The Investigator may, in their discretion, gather evidence in a manner which 

corresponds with the nature of the allegations in the complaint. 

c. The Investigator shall conduct an interview with the Respondent. If the 

Respondent refuses to participate in an interview, the Investigator may proceed       

on a written statement or other information in the District’s possession. 

d. District students and staff are directed to cooperate fully with Investigator’s        

reasonable directives. The Investigator may, to the extent permitted by law, make 

adverse factual inferences if any individual refuses to participate in the 

investigation.  

 

5. The Investigator will prepare a written report for consideration by the Board. The written 

report must include: 

 

a. A summary of the investigative steps taken; 



b. A summary of the evidence gathered; 

c. A recommendation regarding findings of fact based on the investigation, and; 

d. A recommendation regarding disposition of the complaint. 

 

6. The Investigator’s Report may be redacted if, in the discretion of the Investigator, 

redactions are in the best interest of the District. The Investigator’s Report will be 

submitted to the Board President and Vice-President, the Complainant, and the Respondent 

with a reasonable amount of time to review the Investigator’s Report before consideration 

by the Board.   

 

7. After submission of the Investigator’s Report, the Board will consider the Investigator’s 

Report at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Education. The Board’s 

consideration of the Investigator’s Report may be in closed session at the request of the 

Respondent in compliance with the Open Meetings Act.  

 

8. During the Board’s consideration of the Investigator’s Report, both the Complainant and 

the Respondent will be provided up to seven (7) minutes to address the Board.  Either party 

may delegate their opportunity to address the Board to a representative.  

 

9. After the Complainant and Respondent are provided an opportunity to address the Board, 

the Board may deliberate or act on the Investigator’s Report. The Respondent will not be 

recognized to speak during the deliberation but may vote. The Board may adopt, modify, 

or reject the recommendations contained in the Investigator’s Report, or may direct the 

Investigator to take such other steps as the Board deems appropriate. The Board’s vote 

must be in an open session in compliance with the Open Meetings Act.  

 

10. The Board’s decision on the complaint is final and may not be further pursued within the 

District.    

 

 

Modified June 2025 


	6.9.25 COTW Agenda
	B.1. 3-Box Employment Recommendation -6-9-2025 - Higgins Elementary Principal
	B.2. 3-Box Employment Recommendation -6-9-2025 - Tenniswood Elementary Principal
	E.1. Student Travel Info 6.9.25
	E.2. MHSAA Resolution 2025 edited with 3rd page combined
	F.1. Budget Report & Quarterly Budget Update
	F.1. Payment Registers
	F.1. Summary of Investments & Wire ACH Transfers
	F.5. Recommendation for District's Annual Renewal of Insurance with M.A.I.S.L
	F.7. Amended Resolution to Add Middle School East as a Voting Precinct
	F.8. Barton Malow Contract
	G.1. Employment Recommendations - June 9, 2025 combined
	H.3. Board Member Complaint Process(38709464.1) - Copy June 1 2025
	B.1. 3-Box Employment Recommendation -6-9-2025 - Higgins Elementary Principal combined.pdf
	3-Box Employment Recommendation -6-9-2025 - Higgins Elementary Principal
	Amanda Melymuka Resume
	               PROFESSIONAL 
	 
	 


	B.2. 3-Box Employment Recommendation -6-9-2025 - Tenniswood Elementary Principal combined.pdf
	3-Box Employment Recommendation -6-9-2025 - Tenniswood Elementary Principal
	Destiny Moore - Resume

	G.2. 3-Box - Layoff Resolution -6-9-2025 combined.pdf
	3-Box - Layoff Resolution -6-9-2025
	Resolution for Layoff Notice - 6-9-2025

	G.4. 3-Box - Non-Affiliated - Furlough Days-6-9-2025 combined.pdf
	3-Box - Non-Affiliated - Furlough Days-6-9-2025
	Resolution Non-Affiliated - Furlough Days-6-9-2025




